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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NIAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Lung On (Chairman)

Ms. Kwok Ying Lan (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Lin Conghui

Ms. Lam Yu Fong

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Ms. Xie Mei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang
Dr. Zhai Pu

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang (Chairman)
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu
Dr. Zhai Pu

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu (Chairman)
Mr. Lam Lung On
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu (Chairman)
Mr. Lam Lung On
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang

SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

Ms. Lam Yu Fong (Chairman)
Mr. Lam Lung On

Ms. Kwok Ying Lan

Mr. Lin Conghui
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chiu Yu Kang

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Lam Lung On
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL ADMINISTRATION AND
MANAGEMENT CENTERS IN THE PRC

Yuzhou Plaza

299 Jingang Road

Pudong New District
Shanghai

People’s Republic of China

Yuzhou Plaza

Keyuan North Road
Nanshan District
Shenzhen

Guangdong

People’s Republic of China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Units 5801-02, 58/F

The Center

99 Queen’s Road Central
Central

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

https://yuzhou-group.com/
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Corporate Information (Continued)

NIER (#)

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young

LEGAL ADVISORS

Paul Hastings (as to Hong Kong law)
Conyers Dill & Pearman (as to Cayman Islands law)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Construction Bank Corporation
Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

Bank of China (Hong Kong)

Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Hang Seng Bank

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation
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MAJOR EVENTS OF 2020
2020 B KREEC

JANUARY —H

On January 9, Yuzhou Group Holdings Company Limited (“Yuzhou Group”,
“Yuzhou”, or “Group”) won the prestigious “Most Valuable Property Company”
award again at the Fourth “Golden Hong Kong Stocks” Annual Awards Ceremony,
which has fully demonstrated Yuzhou’s long-term outstanding performance as
well as high recognition from capital market and investors.

1A9R BMNEEESENE 28k FERRERT BEHE [RAEEL
ERAFIGRE ROEBRTEMNRPURBRETHRLRRE ARKRER
MALTHEERA -

On January 13, Yuzhou Group won the “Best Investor Relations Frontier
Award” in the 3rd China Investor Relations (“IR”) Excellence Award, which
has fully demonstrated the outstanding achievements of the Group in investor
relations.

1A13H  BMNEEAEE = ETEE BIRFERKRE [REREEBEN
B BUKKRDTREEEREEBERATIEH S BAH -

On January 14 to 15, the 9th China Charity Festival cum “Because
of Love” Appreciation Ceremony took place in Beijing, Yuzhou
Group won the “2019 Charity Practice Award”. Mr. Lam Lung On,
J.P, a deputy of the National People’s Congress, the president of
The Hong Kong Chinese Importers’ and Exporters’ Association
and the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Yuzhou Group,
won the “2019 Charitable Characters Award”. This is the third
consecutive year that Yuzhou Group and Mr. Lam Lung On have
won the above charity-related awards.

1TA4REIH FAEPRAGHE [AAE | BERREIL REERT RIMEEKE [2019FERFHEBRTT
B ZEARRKR - BEFELAOHEER BMNEEEZREIEMBELAF#r RE [2010FEREAY

R -FEERMEENMER L EEIFRE LM AR EIR-
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Major Events of 2020 (Continued)

20205 B RSB (#)

JANUARY —H

On January 15, at the Sixth Annual China Enterprise Innovation and
Development Summit cum China Property Huabiao Award Gala, Tangshan
Yuzhou Phoenix Mansion won the “Honor Brand Award” of the “2019 China
Real Estate City Development Representative Masterpiece” with its excellent
product competitiveness. Tangshan Yuzhou Phoenix Mansion combines
modern design with traditional Chinese oriental aesthetics, while adhering to
the “customer-oriented” strategy to continuously improve its product quality.

1A EFANETECXAHMBERFEESEHEMAETE R RRLHA
EEUEMN BEMABRNERZT S §E (2019 B & i E 5 ™ 7
BRREIZ [RERER] -FUEMN BEFMARKRTHES EPEELS
RAOEBES BEUIZEFPAEM ] TEHITEER-

On January 31, the pneumonia epidemic caused by the coronavirus had an impact across
the nation, and Yuzhou Group set up a RMB15 million fund dedicated to fighting the
epidemic. Yuzhou supported coronavirus prevention with funds and supplies in Hubei, Fujian
and other areas. At the same time, Yuzhou Public Welfare Foundation also utilized all its
own resources to purchase medical masks, protective clothing, goggles and other materials
around the world to fully support frontline medical staff to fight the epidemic. Yuzhou
Commercial Company (“&HE%") announced that it will reduce half rent for shopping
malls and community business centers under its management from January 25, in order to
help affected retailers get through hard time during the epidemic. The series of actions have
demonstrated the high social responsibility of Yuzhou Group.

1A HFABRBEIIENMARBEREEFREE IMNEERLERLT ARE1008NERBEEFRES
BRES WESZEIAXENL BESHWNREHEI-BR SNAGEe PR —NEREZREE
NREBEROE ER ZFERENE 2B REEABNEBRBE - BMNBEEM HEBTELNEDT L
EitEmEs L B1ABRREASRY EXREZENTERPAERR -ZIEBZRTANEESENLS
BERk-

FEBRUARY —H

On February 17, Hang Seng Index introduced the Hang Seng China
High Dividend Yield Index. A total of eight Hong Kong-listed companies
in the real estate and construction sector have been included in the
Hang Seng China High Dividend Yield Index, among which Yuzhou
Group has the highest proportion of constituent, accounting for
approximately 3.09%.

2R7TH - BARBHELELATBESREREH -BR LT ARME
BREXFEPHABRAFEMABETESKREXRES HPaME
BAEXDBFOLERS  1GLL#3.09% °
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Major Events of 2020 (Continued)

20205 B RSB (#)

MARCH =H

On March 6, Shanghai Yuzhou Luxury Mansion and Qingdao Yuzhou
Langham Mansion, which located in the eastern region, won the “2019
Top 10 Beautiful Houses in China” and the “Outstanding Property
Award London (OPAL)”, respectively. Previously, with a number of
design highlights, Shanghai Yuzhou Luxury Mansion won the “Fashion
Residence of the Year” award in the selection of the “Fashion 100 +
cum 2019 Splendid Pioneer for City of Fashion Award” which was led
by Shanghai Municipal Commission of Economy and Information, and
won the industry-wide recognition with its solid project capacity.

3H6E  BMREREN RN - ERTMESEM - BIE - B
EOmE 2RI 2019F Eh B+ AETHIERE] M (a2 a i
EAE(OPAL) ] - ibAT EB&EMN ERNEEL AR = EA
EBMEBEMEMICE B SER T I [5F H100+2E201985 [ 5t ##
REITHE[FEERETS] AR UBRENERIRBITEEE

On March 16, the Award Ceremony for “2020 Top 100
Chinese Real Estate Companies” was organized and held
by guandian.cn online. By virtue of its excellent performance,
Yuzhou Group won six industry prestigious awards, namely
the “2020 Top 100 Real Estate Excellence Companies in
China”, the “2020 Top 30 Listed Real Estate Companies in
China”, the “2020 Top 10 Debt Control Listed Real Estate
Companies in China”, the “2020 Top 30 China Real Estate
Management and Team”, the “2020 Top 30 Real Estate
Brand Value in China” and the “2020 Top 30 Real Estate
Business Model in China” in this awards ceremony.

3A168 - BRI E T A [ 202070 Bl 55 i EE 52 481 005 A8 8 a% B8 | LA B B AR AR E 2 =B K897 » fE L IR AR Bk B e
BNEBREZEERNRKRIR 51 [20207F B 2 #100%5 ] + 20207 B E i 2 (23038 | ~ [202070 B £ B 1E
f&RE N Top 10/  [2020F B b E & 12 B2 B X Top 30 ~ [20205 B /5 1 2 & k2 B B Top 30 A [20204 B 5 i & 7
2R Top 30 GIHITEEFHLE -

On March 18, at the “2020 Top 500 China Real Estate Developers Results
Announcement and Top 500 Summit” jointly organized by China Real
Estate Association and China Real Estate Appraisal Centre of Shanghai
E-House Real Estate Research Institute, Yuzhou Group won the “2020
Top 40 China Real Estate Developers” award for the 7th consecutive year
for its consistent and excellent performance, and ranked 3rd in the “2020
Top 10 of Efficiency of China Real Estate Developers”.

3A1BE MTBEEMEXNS 55 EREMEMN T EEE
SEAR A 22 9% Y [202070 B 5 b 22 B 35 1D 250058 8l :E A R & B
50058 1& & | - BN B A B2 18 B /9y R IR 7 F 1B [202070 Bl itb
BRI B 54038 | - R ERT 202070 B 5 25 5 25 0 22 58 4 3 R 1098
%3 |
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Major Events of 2020 (Continued)

20205 B RSB (#)

MARCH =H

On March 26, CLSA, a well-known international investment bank, initiated coverage on
Yuzhou Group, and proposed a target price of HK$4.1. CLSA pointed out that, in recent
years, Yuzhou’s contracted sales have grown steadily and rapidly, and its national layout and
locality development strategy has achieved remarkable results. Its high dividend payout and
win-win relationship with shareholders have also been frequently recognized. Yuzhou was
included in the Hang Seng China High Dividend Yield Index earlier, ranking first in terms of
weighting among mainland real estate developers.

3H26H EHERBRERTHEEFERBERMER BRE4 BT -PEESEL
BMNOCFERGNHEERRSER 2BICHRMRERAMNVRBRUEZS ESRE H
BRARNEHEBERSIRESE REATENRR  PREAAEETEREREREH
BELINANEE—-

On March 31, Yuzhou Group announced its 2019 annual results and achieved the annual contracted sales of
RMB75,115 million, which exceeded the annual sales target with the actual completion rate of 112%, representing a
year-on-year increase of 34.13%. The profitability of the Group continued to improve with the profit of RMB3,967 million,
hitting a record high. The debt structure further optimized with the net gearing ratio of 65.64%, representing a decrease
of 7.06 percentage points compared with that of the first half of 2019. The Group has always been maintaining a high
payout ratio in order to share its interests with shareholders while pursuing the steady growth of revenue and profit. The
Group proposed a second interim dividend of HK21 cents per share and a special dividend of HK4 cents per share
(for the 10th anniversary of the listing of the Group). Taking into account the interim dividend of HK12 cents per share
and the special interim dividend of HK3 cents per share, the total dividends for the year of HK40 cents per share with a
payout ratio of as high as 45.67%.

3A3IA @MEBAH019F 2 F £E HETKNEHEEREARBS1AGEL BERETX X E112% L FE IR
34.13% ° FEKER EIRF FEABEEAREG7ETL AIEL TS BEHEBE—FEIL FaGBHLRE2019
FHEITBE T7.06(E B D 2 E65.64% - FERAFBREREEENBDR SMNBEIRE  BERESZLERRE
RS X ERR B E A1 R E T+ A EERIR B ER4E - BRI E P B B B 1280 R R A B &
[&37%81l - 2 F A 5K BZFR40BN - R B EFEA5.67% ©

APRIL PR

On April 14, according to the report released by DBS, a renowned international
investment bank, Yuzhou Group had high-quality and abundant land banks. In
2019, the Group added approximately 4.6 million sg.m. of saleable resources of
over RMB100 billion, laying a solid foundation for the achievement of the contracted
sales of RMB100 billion in 2020. In light of its current highly-attractive valuation, DBS
reiterated Yuzhou as their “Top pick” among industry, with a “Buy” rating at a target
price of HK$4.58.

4F148  BBEAMRRTERRITEMRS L RMEE2019F 5718 + [ #14608
K FIEEEBARE000ET tREAREE  R2020F TEHEEIT TRE
it BRIt ERARSI N ERRMARTEER ER[EAIFR L TERE
45878 7T
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Major Events of 2020 (Continued)

20205 B RSB (#)

APRIL 4R

On April 15, by virtue of innovative quality and design, Qingdao Yuzhou
Langham Mansion in the eastern region won two international awards
namely the REARD Global Design Award and the Outstanding Property
Award London, as well as winning the ltaly Golden A’Design Award
afterward. The reception center of Fuzhou Yuzhou Manjiang Villa won the
ltaly Silver A’Design Award for its unique interior design concept. Foshan
Yuzhou Langham Bay’s sales center featured its design concept of drawing
inspiration from nature, breaking the boundary between architecture and art,
which won the Italy Bronze A’Design Award. The Italy A’'Design Award is one
of the most influential design competitions in the world, which is known as
the “European Oscar of the Design Industry”.

4R158  BNRBESENSETSSHM - BAENEERE O LE K& EEE
REARDZ BRI EE SR Gt A 82 - fa B L E K RMIBRBR AR 2% XEE
AH) [A'Design Award | &8I A EH i BN EMN - W IEEFRORER
BREHENRTIES  EUIREARF [A'Design Award | 573 42 &SR 58
BILZN - AR EEERBRAEEANLE AP RIMER  ITHREEEE
M2 RRIES X EKXF] [A'Design Award | & R R &R g - B
AF| [A'Design Award | Bttt AR EFE NIRRT E . — WHE A [BUM
BETRBETR] -

On April 20, Huaxi Securities, a well-known brokerage firm, initiated coverage on Yuzhou Group.
Huaxi Securities pointed out that Yuzhou Group achieved outstanding sales performance
in 2019 with its results being released steadily. Yuzhou has high-quality and abundant land
reserves. In 2019, the Group newly acquired 4.622 million sg.m. of land reserves and saleable
resources of over RMB100 billion. Yuzhou'’s financial profile continued to optimize, with its net
gearing ratio reduced to 65.64%, cash in hand reached RMB35.51 billion, and the cash to
short-term debt coverage exceeded two times. Huaxi Securities initially covered Yuzhou with an
“Overweight” rating.

AA208 AMEFHEAEFFBMEABERE EHBEMNEE010FHE R £EBS
TR 2019F 138 * 462208 F oK - #TIE HEEBARB1,000E8 T TFEEETWH &F
EABRRIEE6564% EFREEARKBSARTT ReRELBE UBKFEEL .

BRBEGRT [HEE] TR

On April 23, as the national-wide projects of Yuzhou Group were reopening orderly,
Shanghai Yuzhou Jinmao Residence which is located in the eastern region, stood
out from thousands of candidate projects and was awarded the honor of 2019
“Civilized Construction Site” in Shanghai and “Quality Structure Project” in Qingpu
District.

4R23A - BEEABMNEEAEZEMNHAEBEFETL BMNRSREN EEEMN 2
AR T EREIRE P HAM L - SR LBM2019F E [ XA MR LE
HE [BEEE TR HR-
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Major Events of 2020 (Continued)

20205 B RSB (#)

APRIL .UH

On April 29, the 17th (2020) China Blue Chip Property Conference organized by
Economic Observer was held online. With the outstanding performance, Yuzhou

Group once again won the 2020 China “Blue Chip Enterprises Award”.

4F29R - A (RBER L) TWOFE +L/E (2020) PREESHMEFSIUR LT
ABT- BNEEREERNRBEB2020FEH [EHDX] -

MAY 1 H

On May 18, Hang Seng Indexes Company Limited launched two new indexes namely Hang Seng Large-Mid Cap Value
50 Index and Hang Seng Large-Mid Cap Value Tilt Index. Yuzhou Group was included in the two indexes, which has
fully demonstrated the high recognition of the excellent performance of Yuzhou by the capital market.

5A18R EAEMBRAREHMETIES DA RAELEXRTAEREBESEELEERNTEREERRER B

On May 26, according to the appraisal results released at the “2020
China Real Estate and Property Management Services Listed Companies
Appraisal Results Conference” jointly held by China Real Estate
Association and China Real Estate Appraisal Centre of Shanghai E-House
Real Estate Research Institute in Shanghai, Yuzhou ranked 2nd in the
“2020 Best 5 China Real Estate Listed Companies with Best Business
Performances” and 33rd in the “2020 Best 50 China Real Estate Listed
Companies with Strongest Comprehensive Strengths” by virtue of its
stable management and quality growth.

5A26H P EEMEXHE - L85 /EFHhE 7R - B 5 it E R
PR LB S BIE [ 202070 B E HhEE R W3 E T A B AIFE R RE =
£ EBRT OB @NEEBROLEZRARE FREER.
AR [20207 B 55 b 2 £ 71 A R4S & A 3558 | 624 - 20207 B &
E LT A RERE B 15058 | 334 ¢
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MAY 1 H

JUNE 758

Major Events of 2020 (Continued)

20205 B RSB (#)

On May 28, in the “2020 China’s Top 100 Listed Real Estate Enterprises Conference” organized by
EH Consulting, Yuzhou Group won the “2020 China’s Top 30 Listed Real Estate Enterprises Award”
and ranked 8th in the list of the “2020 China’s Listed Real Estate Enterprises Top 10 Investment
Value” by virtue of its stable management and quality growth. Meanwhile, Mr. Chiu Yu Kang, senior
vice president, CFO and company secretary of Yuzhou Group, was also awarded the “2020 Golden
Financial Officer of Real Estate Enterprises Award”.

5A28H EHREHEEEMA [2020FFH EHECHMEMS | BNEBREEEOL
BREE AmEMNER  SE 20204 B EmEEBM®Top 30] 5304  [20204F B EmE %
BEEE R F8% R BMNEESHKERE aFVBEERAFDWEDTEELE 20204
B EmETSEMEE] -

On June 4, due to the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19") epidemic,
Yuzhou Group held the 2020 annual general meeting through webcasting
in Hong Kong, Shanghai and Shenzhen. During the meeting, shareholders
expressed high recognition on Yuzhou Group’s results and business
performance in the last year. All the resolutions were passed with a high
number of votes and the meeting was successfully concluded.

6H4R AXRBEFE BMNEEBBEEERENTX REB LBR
RYN =M E LR R P RIT2020FRREAFAS - FRTHERREBE
—FRMNKENFEREBRADRETSERN SHRIRHEST
SRECESB BRRAFASEMTK -

On June 12, Yuzhou Group pragmatically held a grand opening ceremony
for its Shenzhen headquarters at Shenzhen Yuzhou Plaza located in
the northern part of Shenzhen Science & Technology Park as part of its
Shanghai-Shenzhen dual headquarters. On the scene, the employees at the
Shenzhen headquarters gathered in celebration of Shenzhen headquarters
established for Shanghai-Shenzhen dual headquarters.

6H12B  ERYIMKELRNRIEMNES BT TRE BE

MEMNEE S FIEAIMFEINEBARER RS BINE
BEFRNETNE TMPE—5 XRAEMR LERINEAIRY
RECH A
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Major Events of 2020 (Continued)

20205 B RSB (#)

JUNE "8

On June 18, Foshan Yuzhou Langham Bay won the triple
champions of sold gross floor area (“GFA”), amounts and units
of online contract signing, gaining the proud performance and
public praise relying on its strength.

6A18H - HILEMN HAEEBE LY FEEEEEE BED
B NREECEI RENRSGTRAMNEEEOME-

On June 29, Yuzhou Group announced that from June 5, 2020,
the Group’s English name had been changed from “Yuzhou
Properties Company Limited” to “Yuzhou Group Holdings
Company Limited” and the Chinese name had been changed
from “SMERNDER AR to “SMEEBZRER A A",
Meanwhile, from 9:00 am on July 3, 2020, the English short
name of the Group for trading in the Shares on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange had been changed from “YUZHOU PPT” to
“YUZHOU GROUP”, and the Chinese short name had been
changed from “E&MHbE" to “B M & H”".

6H29R MK B E - B2020F6 50 8 - & B & X & i [ Yuzhou Properties Company Limited ] % 22 &
['Yuzhou Group Holdings Company Limited | X &£ E R X ZTEh [RMERDER AR B s [BMNEBIERE
BRAR] R 8202067 A3H EF AR FREERNOERSHME B/ XXM G B [YUZHOU PPT ]
B A [YUZHOU GROUP | AR S Hm &Mt E] Etka [RMER] -

On June 30, relying on effective implementation of the “Leading with Locality Development” strategy and the
craftsmanship with great ingenuity, Yuzhou Group’s performance in the first half of the year continued to be strong, and
ranked among the top of property developers. According to the Top 20 list of commercial and residential total sales in
Hefei from January to June 2020 released by JGS (&4 ) Real Estate, Yuzhou Group won No.1 among local property
developers in Hefei.

6A30R  BMER L¥FXRB[FHERD BERBERM 2EHREL] EREBAEXZERBAREOBHNER T
HEKREESEEHEARS BN AFHEZERN X MAI2020F1-6 A 4 L@ mEEHERETop 208 EH R L
ERIEEELE—%-
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Major Events of 2020 (Continued)

20205 B RSB (#)

JULY TR

On July 21, Guotai Junan International, a renowned international investment
bank, initiated coverage on Yuzhou Group and pointed out that Yuzhou
Group’s sales momentum continued to be strong, and the long-term
practice of the “In-depth Cultivation” strategy had achieved fruitful results.
Guotai Junan International expected that Yuzhou Group could achieve the
2020 contracted sales target of RMB100 billion steadily. Besides, Yuzhou
Group’s generous dividend payout and planned spin-off of the property
management business are both attractive. Guotai Junan International
covered Yuzhou Group with a “Buy” rating and proposed a target price of
HK$5.50.

7TH21R  BERZERTERELERERABEEMNEE LB BME
EHRFERY REBTERIRMERZR R - B512020F TE B R A
IBRER - RE - @MNEEIRENARENDERD thiRERS -
RELBERETEAIF4& - BIREL08TT -

On July 27, Yuzhou Group was listed on the Fortune China 500 released by
fortunechina.com in 2020, ranking No.396 for its outstanding performance
indicators such as revenue, profit and asset scale. Being on the list for five
consecutive years since 2016, Yuzhou Group’s strength has been proved
by its years of honors.

7H27H B B X H2020F E (BB ) F H50058 BEITHS o S R
FEEWA -FEMEERESEERENERRR @MEBMLES
396f7 - B2016F A& (BIE) 50058 A @M BBESFLEREE -
NREREES -

AUGUST /\H

On August 12, in the 2020 Boao Real Estate Forum held in Hainan, Yuzhou Group continually won the title of the “2020
Annual Influential Real Estate Enterprises Top 30 in China” of the China Real Estate Fashion Award with its extraordinary
performance.

8H12H - BB BETH2020B X F HERE L BMNEERESBRE B8 B B ER = K% [20209 B 4
B8 NHMERKETop 30] FHRE -
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Major Events of 2020 (Continued)

20205 B RSB (#)

AUGUST /\H

On August 26, at the 3rd Leju Annual Forum focusing on the theme
of “Roaring Tide (JRFF) ” held in Shanghai, Yuzhou Group won the
“2020 Best Governance Chinese Real Estate Enterprise Award” for its
outstanding governance and performance.

8H26H " LARE ] AT EM2020(E=fE) LEMKEERIEBE L
FBEP N AHEL BNEENLEEHNATATELRE AR &
¥ [2020F R B E R RERIBEE] -

On August 27, the Fujian Federation of Industry and Commerce launched the “2020 Fujian Top 100 Private Enterprises”
list in Fuzhou. Yuzhou Group entered the list once again and ranked 18th.

8R27H - ®EE TR A AT M 2 [2020f8 2 E RE B F100%2 | B8 - FNEEBRAELHFE18L -

On August 28, Morgan Stanley Capital International (“MSCI”)
published the Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Ratings
Report, reiterating the BBB ESG Rating of Yuzhou Group. Yuzhou
also continued to maintain the first level of ESG ranking in Chinese
property developers.

8H28H ' MSCI2A A (Morgan Stanley Capital International * B BH &%
NA]) 34 T ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance* B3R5
MHEMER)FTHRE  ER L RIMNE EBBBHESGET & - M4
BRH/EZENERE —SHRAIESGT K °

On September 8, Qingdao Yuzhou Beyond the Sea won the “2019-2020 Sales Center
Space Gold Award” in the “2020 16th China International Architectural Decoration and
Design Art Fair Huading Award” selection.

9F8H  FE&MN - KIEE/E1EA £ [2020%F + /5 @+ YRR SRR A K SR AT AT
TS| B B [2019— 2020 B E R EESE] -
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Major Events of 2020 (Continued)

20205 B RSB (#)

SEPTEMBER /1H

On September 10, the “2020 Top 500 Chinese Non-state-owned Enterprises
Summit” hosted and held by All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce in
Beijing. At the summit, the “2020 Top 500 Chinese Non-state-owned Enterprises”
list was officially released, Yuzhou Group continued its strong momentum and
was included in the list with its revenue of RMB23.2 billion. This is also the 5th
consecutive year that Yuzhou has been ranked among the “Top 500 Chinese
Non-state-owned Enterprises”.

9F108 - 2 B TRyl =m0 [ 202070 Bl R & (b 50058 8 & | L B 1T 1§
gL EAEMT (20200 B REBE5009% | FE - BMEBTEERYDTLE
A232B TR E WA B H 1 E - WIEESFRE [ BER 2250058 ] °

On September 10, at the “2020 Fengqgi Wutong Hong Kong Stock Financial
Summit” (2020[E| 18 47 /& & B &Z 1& & ) | co-hosted by Phoenix Finance
and ifeng Hong Kong Stock and supported by Chinese Financial Association
of Hong Kong, Chinese Securities Association of Hong Kong, Chinese Asset
Management Association of Hong Kong and Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises
Association, Yuzhou Group won the “Most Investment Value Listed Company”
award for its outstanding performance.

9RB10R - EAHRERME RERERBE TN dFETHERHE &
BREEFEHE BETEESEHE BETHECEHETHBEN
2020 ZERERMEES] L - SMNEENERNRR HEZKAKE
EBELMAR ] RIE-

On September 10, the Real Estate ESG Evaluation Center of China Index
Academy released the first China real estate industry in-depth ESG research
report, Yuzhou was honored the title of the “2020 Best ESG Practice Chinese
Real Estate Listed Company”, fully reflecting Yuzhou’s long-term commitment to
high standards of corporate governance and green buildings.

9R10R  ERH EIE B R FHEESGRIFT F /O E M E A & EF M EST
FESGRE BT mE S - RIMEKE [20207 B 5 #h & = A FIESGR
ERCE | RORMEEBMNRBARAERNARGERSRENGERLE-
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Major Events of 2020 (Continued)

20205 B RSB (#)

SEPTEMBER /1.H

On September 17, at the “2020 Appraisal Results Conference of China Real Estate
Brand Value cum the Real Estate Brand Development Summit Forum” (2020
BEMECEMBEENTANREMSEFMEMEERSIERE), Yuzhou
Group won the “2020 Top 50 China Real Estate Developers by Brand Value” and
ranked 31st with a brand value of RMB16.9 billion, representing an increase of 34%
compared with last year.

9R17H - 2020 BIE EC X R EEBEATANREMSEFHERRERS
BB F RMNEEREARTA T N RE 20207 B E I ER B XM E
B5058 53158 | - M EESE169ETT  WEFIE R34 -

On September 22, with the highly recognized outstanding performance,
Yuzhou Group was entitled the “China Property Award of Supreme Excellence
2020”, a title won by Yuzhou Group for consecutive years.

20205F9 H22H  EMEEREGXANERRR KEBETERE
ELEAE2020] EEREMNEEEES FEHZEIER-

On September 23, Yuzhou Group participated in the Hong

Kong Quality Assurance Agency (HKQAA) Sustainability

Rating for Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Indexes

for the first time, and was awarded Rating A in light of the

outstanding performance in environmental protection, social
responsibility and corporate governance, which is the top rating in the industry, with the leading final score among all
the Hang Seng property companies in the selection.

LREREEENF
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Major Events of 2020 (Continued)

20205 B RSB (#)

SEPTEMBER /1H

On September 25, Yuzhou Group announced that Mr. Lam Lung On, J.p, the chairman of the Board of Directors
(the “Board”) and a controlling shareholder of the Group, acquired 1,200,000 shares on the market, representing
approximately 58.10% of the total issued share capital of the Group at the date of this announcement. Since August,
Mr. Lam has continuously increased his shares of Yuzhou Group by 5,200,000 shares, which has fully demonstrated Mr.
Lam’s confidence in the overall development prospects and growth potential of the Group.

9A25H  @MEB A EEREERIEBBAEMEL A FH+ AT 5 EIBIF1208 0% - MEEL A Fa+ MR
##58.10% > B8 A AR MBe L4 P+ B BB ILRMNEE RN ES208/% - TOEIE T MET A Fa+ B EE B
BFRLIE R BN T M D e

On September 26, at the 10th China Valuable Real Estate Annual Conference held in Shenzhen, Yuzhou Group ranked
33rd in the “2020 Top 100 Brand Value List of China Real Estate Listed Companies” and received the “Valuable Real
Estate Enterprise of the Year” by virtue of its excellent performance and stable financial structure. In addition, by
virtue of the strong competitiveness, Yuzhou Property Management (& iMN#1% ) was awarded the “Valuable Property
Management Enterprise of the Year”.

9R26H - ERYERNE+ETEEEMEFS L SMNEEUNERNEE RENP BRI - & [20207 EHi
ELMARMmEEERETop 100] 3358 [FEBEMELK|RE  BMNMEBREARINRF N KE[FEEEY
ERBEE|RE-

On September 28, Yuzhou Group was included in the “2020 Top 500 Chinese Enterprises” list released by China
Enterprise Confederation and China Enterprise Directors Association at the “2020 China Top 500 Enterprises Summit
Forum” held in Zhengzhou, and topped the list for its revenue of RMB23.2 billion. From its selection in the list of the
“China Top 500 Service Enterprises” for the first time in 2013, Yuzhou has been awarded the “China Top 500 Service
Enterprises” for eight consecutive years.

9H28H » 2020 BI500 8 (P X B ERIBEHM BT - REBLPEEEMS S TERECEFXBEEM T 202070 H
H50058 B E) - RINEB LB ITME XK AEF B E - B2013F BRAE [ B RS ¥ 0550058 | LA - 2 5&
BBFRIE (P Bl fR7EE > %50058) o

On September 29, Yuzhou Group announced the launch of its Share Award Scheme - “Yuzhou Share Award Scheme”.
According to the Scheme, Yuzhou will allocate no more than 10% of the issued share capital to provide employee
incentives. The valid period is 10 years commencing from the adoption date, and the maximum number of shares which
may be awarded to a selected employee under the Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Group from time to time. Yuzhou has always attached great importance to the care and growth of its employees. The
launch of the “Share Award Scheme” aims to promote the long-term sustainable growth in the shareholder value of the
Group, to recognize the contributions by certain outstanding employees to the continual operation and development of
the Group, and to attract outstanding talents in the industry for further development, thereby enhancing its employee
cohesion and competitiveness.

9H29R BMEEAMENEL 8 TR BB E - [RRAZE] -REFE FNE2HTBBEHTRN
B10%H RN AR EITE THE BB ERMNEI0F BUREEEESKBEETBBIBNERITRD -&
M—m+2ERETREMRE LREL TBEAZFHE ] EERNTSERREERIFELER S EETES
BETASENKESERERAMMENER X AKBERNSITEESAT KEMERETRBENMERRFE -
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Major Events of 2020 (Continued)

20205 B RSB (#)

OCTOBER +8

10128 - #MBEM - LEER [FTHESREHEHBRES

BRRMNEEEGHFNMNTENEES R (WA R Edame

In the morning of October 14, the Celebration of the 40th
Anniversary of the Establishment of the Shenzhen Special
Economic Zone was held in Shenzhen, Guangdong province.
Lam Lung On, the Chairman of the Board of Yuzhou
Group, a deputy to the National People’s Congress and the
president of the Hong Kong Chinese Importers’ & Exporters’
Association, was invited to attend the Celebration.

10F148 4 RYIRERRETIORFENRGERER
BERITEERT 2BEARRKR - FETELAOBE S
R BNEEEERERMELREERBLFEENNE

On October 12, Suzhou Yuzhou Genius Leading
won the “Kinpan Award for Best Pre-sale Project”
in the “15th Kinpan Award of Southern Jiangsu
Comprehensive Selection Activity”. The Genius
Leading project is the first high-end “mountain
and river” series product polished by Yuzhou
Group in Suzhou.

BELY pREREREESRE|IIEER

On October 16, the Shenzhen headquarters of Yuzhou Group,
was awarded the “U.S. LEED (Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design) Gold” green certification for its outstanding
performance. This is another Yuzhou Group’s office building
after Shanghai Yuzhou Plaza and Xiamen Yuzhou Plaza, which is
awarded the world’s authoritative green certification.

107168 BMNEBRNEMEMESABRENRE  RE X
BLEEDE R ERE G LERENES EFMBMNES
B X-—EESUHARBSERENBNEFE -
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Major Events of 2020 (Continued)

20205 B RSB (#)

OCTOBER +H

On October 18, Jimei University commemorated the 100th
Anniversary of Jimei University Financial Education by Mr. Tan Kah
Kee. In supporting the construction and development of Jimei
University, Chairman Lam Lung On of Yuzhou Group, who was
invited to the commemoration as an alumnus of Grade 1986 of
the Infrastructure Construction Department of Jimei University,
president of Finance and Economics Branch of Jimei University
Alumni Association, executive director and visiting professor of
Jimei University, to congratulate the 100th Anniversary of Jimei
University Financial Education. At this commemoration, he
donated RMB10 million to Jimei University.

10180 EXRBRTLESRERLLAMILHBE100EFAEG ML ETFIEREZRBEEZ1986MA
EXRBRAEMENEER EXABEBKRNE TEHER XBLFRALSAE 8L MELXEFREX
REBEF1,00087T BEEEZASZHBEHER/I0BFF  IFHEFARBERER

On October 19, Yuzhou Group was included in the “Hang
Seng Large-Mid Cap (Investable) Index” newly launched by
the famous index company — Hang Seng Indexes Company
Limited. This is the fourth Hang Seng Index that Yuzhou Group
has been included in a few months after being included in the
“Hang Seng High Dividend Yield Index” in February, and the
“Hang Seng Large-Mid Cap Value 50 Index” and the “Hang
Seng Large-Mid Cap Value Tilt Index” in May.

10A19R - BIMEEER AR X%%%%{"ﬂ**’I‘ﬁia*‘a%l*ﬁﬁﬁ"ﬂ%ﬁ?&ﬁE’J’EEKEP’*”%(T?&iﬁ)?ﬁ%ﬁ‘f%
HOABMABEPESREXREH sAEMABERNTEREESEBAMEBEEXRTEREERMEHIL &
REANBEAARNEHEBLEEH-

In the afternoon of October 28, at the Donation Ceremony for the 60th anniversary of the Founding of Fujian Huagiao
University, keeping the development of university education and the cultivation of talents in mind, Lam Lung On, J.~, the
Chairman of the Board of Yuzhou Group, a deputy to the National People’s Congress and the president of the Hong
Kong Chinese Importers’ & Exporters’ Association, donated RMB5 million to Huagiao University to support its teaching
and scholarship.

10A28E T REEEB/AZRTENEROAFRBEEN 2EARKRR BEFELAOBEER BME
BEERIE MBELAF#r DERRBEZRRASER REBRZRMBESOE T IIFEMBHES -
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Major Events of 2020 (Continued)

20205 B RSB (#)

NOVEMBER +—8

On November 10, Goldman Sachs, a leading international investment
bank, issued a research report initially covering Yuzhou Group with a
“Buy” rating. According to Goldman Sachs, Yuzhou has high-quality land
banks, and the Group’s strong sales performance supports steady growth
in profitability. Goldman Sacks expected that the planned spin-off of the
property management business would increase the dividend payout ratio
and proposed a target price of HK$4.30 per share for Yuzhou Group.

118108 BEBRMNERTERERARRES BB MNER TH
FIEAIFG - mREL BNEELIRELZLEE AYNHEEXER
Flee WL RA BB HFHNEXEBEEE —PRAREKE BT
BNEE B EERIIET

On November 13, in the selection of the “Most Popular

IP for Real Estate Enterprises in 2020” organized by
Xindichan (¥ #0 2 Bf 4 ) and caijing.com.cn (B &
#8), the beautiful city officer of Yuzhou Group, Little

Yu, was awarded as the most popular IP for real estate

enterprise.

1173138 A EN & - B SRR A [2020F &%
Bl ECEIPER | FFRES T EMNEEH T ELT

BENBREERXEMMELEP -
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Major Events of 2020 (Continued)

20205 B RSB (#)

NOVEMBER +—8

On November 18, in light of the outstanding performance and stable financial structure, Yuzhou Group won the “2020
Best China Real Estate Enterprise Award” at the “The Time Forum For Real Estate” held in Guangzhou.

1TA1IBE EEMEBHRN [THRHBERKBERRE] L SNEEABENEE RENMBRE K& 202052
FEEMERERSDE] KE-

On November 19, at the “Thinking Finance Investor Annual Party and Jingiao Prize (%% %€) Award Ceremony” held
in Shanghai, Yuzhou Group was awarded the “2020 Jingiao Prize — Outstanding Social Responsibility Real Estate
Company of the Year” for its outstanding performance in charity since the beginning of the year.

1TA9R ELERRN [BEMEREEFSESRBRERA] L BEMNEEBESFFIAREERDES
THEHRERE K 20206 BB —FERLIH SR EHERT | RE-

On November 22, Yuzhou Wanglin Mansion in Hangzhou was firstly launched and a total of 82 units were sold out
right on the first day. There were 657 registrations, and the overall success rate was only 12.48%. The excellent sales
performance once again proves the strength and product capability of Yuzhou Group.

11TA228 - MMEN ENFEEREREFFEEL2HER SR AR EOTH EBHRERER12.48%  RiHES
B REATEMNEEHEENREBNERT -

On November 23, Yuzhou Group was awarded the “Best IR of Hong
Kong Listed Company” in the third selection of “New Fortune Best
IR of Hong Kong Listed Company”. This is the second consecutive
year that Yuzhou has won the award. There were a total of 458
Hong Kong-listed companies nominated in this selection. Yuzhou
Group stood out from the fierce competition, which has fully
demonstrated the outstanding performance of its investor relations
management.

11A230  BNEBESE=E MUY ERKRERERABTE]ED
e BERE[RERERAF KK EERBMNEBEERE
BISZEE - AE [FMEKRERER R RFE] HF4685TER
FHRARMRERAR SMEBEINEZFHRAmML 75
BraNcEEREERREERETENHERE -
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Major Events of 2020 (Continued)

20205 B RSB (#)

NOVEMBER +—8

On November 25, thanks to the outstanding performance, stable financial structure and remarkable charity
commitment, Yuzhou Group won the “2020 Influential Enterprises” at the “2020 China Urban Operation and
Development Summit” held in Beijing.

11H258 AL SRR (2020 B mEL BERIES | £ SMEEUEBRNEE BRENOPBERIR A
NERGSRFHNREETR RE2020FEXENER| FLRE-

On November 26, at the “11th Real Estate Finance Innovation Summit”
held in Beijing, Yuzhou Group won the honor of “Leading ESG Enterprise
for Listed Real Estate Companies” for its outstanding performance
in green sustainable development and fulfillment of corporate social
responsibility.

11A268 - EIERERN [E+—EHESRAFES] L SMNEE
BREZREAHEER UKBTEEMSEESTENEERRE
R FTHEMESGRERRE] KB -

On November 27, Yuzhou Group announced the establishment of the sustainability committee by the Board of Directors
since then, and appointed Mr. Lam Lung On, the Chairman of the Board of Directors, Ms. Kwok Ying Lan, the Vice
Chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Lin Conghui, executive director of the Group (“‘Executive Director”) and Ms. Lam
Yu Fong, Executive Director, all as members of the sustainability committee, and Ms. Lam Yu Fong as the Chairman of
the sustainability committee. In the future, the sustainability committee will be mainly responsible for reviewing the Group
sustainable development strategy, for providing suggestions on any changes in the strategy, and for reviewing any major
risks, opportunities or investments related to the implementation of sustainable development strategies.

1MA27H BMNEEEMR BNAE EFERNUAKEEREES ZAEERIFENERAELE EXERAITE
BEBLL RTEESMBRELLERRTEEMEFTLLIR/AIREERZEENE BZEIMBT XL AARE
BRZBIF - AR AREERZEERIZATRTASENAIFEERRBANAIFEZRRBENTAE
PRt ERENTAIREEREBRFENEMNENRR HeaiRES-
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Major Events of 2020 (Continued)

20205 B RSB (#)

DECEMBER +—_8

On December 1, at the “2020 China Real Estate Investment and Financing Summit Forum” held in Beijing,
Yuzhou Group was awarded the honor of the “2020 Influential Real Estate Enterprises in China” for its excellent
results, steady financial performance and outstanding contribution to public welfare.

12A18 B REMRN [2020F FEFMERBER EWE] £ BMNEENBRNRE RENMBKRE
ARERSBHENRETR RE [2020F B E NMERE]| RE-

On December 4, the opening ceremony of the “Hong Kong-Macao Youth Innovation and Entrepreneurship Base”
and the “Joint Incubation Space of Shenzhen-Hong Kong Youth Innovation and Entrepreneurship Base” was held
at Shenzhen Yuzhou Plaza under the leadership of the relevant departments of the Shenzhen Government.

12R48 &RV T ERBEPFINEE T TERTFRIMAIEZEN] NREBTFAMAZE BB CER] B
BEAERYEMNESETT

On December 7, Yuzhou Group announced that the aggregate contracted
sales of the properties of the Group for the period from January 1, 2020 to
December 7, 2020 surpassed the Group’s original full-year contracted sales
target of RMB100 billion.

12878 BINEBEZEMGALE  £BR2020F1 818 E2020512A7H HE &
VMESAHERTEHBEBRRTNEFTALHEE BIZARE1,000/E7T °
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Major Events of 2020 (Continued)

20205 B RSB (#)

DECEMBER +_—8

On December 8, at the “2020 China Real Estate General Rating Conference” held in Beijing, Yuzhou Group was
awarded the honor of the “2020 China Real Estate Leading Enterprise” for its excellent results, sound financial
performance and outstanding contribution to public welfare.

12A8H L RBEPWH2020F BIEHELTFEAS L EMNEENERNES RENMBRE UREARE
HRREER RE 20200 HEHEFERELEK | KE-

On December 10, Yuzhou Group won the “ListCo Excellence Award 2020” and “Best ESG Reporting Award” awarded
by Hong Kong ESG Reporting Awards (HERA) consecutively.

128108 ' BNEBEEES [ H £ AR AH2020] fEHBESGRE A #E (HERA ) B3 [ EESGTR & 82 |
RER N

On December 12, at the “2020 People’s Corporate Social Responsibility
Summit Forum” instructed by People’s Daily and hosted by People’s Daily
Online, Yuzhou Group was awarded the “Green Development Award”. In
the “2020 Yicai China Listed Real Estate Enterprises Value List” released by
Yicai, Yuzhou Group ranked 4th in the list of “2020 Top 10 H-share Listed
Real Estate Enterprises by Stability”. On the same day, at the “2020 China
Real Estate New Era Grand Ceremony” organized by Leju, Yuzhou Group
was awarded the “2020 Best China Real Estate Enterprises Mascot” and
the “2020 China Real Estate Influential Official WeChat”.

12A128  E (AR B#HRL) HE - (ARB) THH 2020 AREEH
SEARERE] L BMNEERER [RERRE] E(F UK &
fior) €2020- 55— E EHEEEERE) - &MNE B [20205F
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TEMENFREA E BMNEERE 20200 BEEHETHY
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Major Events of 2020 (Continued)

20205 B RSB (#)

DECEMBER +—_8

On December 17, at the “2020 China Real Estate Super Product
Capability Innovation Conference” organized by EH Consulting,
Yuzhou Group was ranked 33rd in the list of the “Top 100 China Real
Estate Super Product Capability” for its outstanding performance in
craftsmanship and product capacity, and the “Royale Series” was
awarded the “2020 Top 10 China Real Estate Enterprises Residential
Product Line Landscape Creation”. Yuzhou Genius Leading in Suzhou
was awarded the “2020 Top 5 China Real Estate Enterprises Landscape
Creation Benchmarking Project”.

128178 EHEDEET RN (20200 BEHEBR D HEIF A |
L EBNEEREERUCEANTENERERE LEFREDSBR
EfmITop 100] £33% ' [ R | L2020 BECEEERGRSH S
& NTop 10 &R N @M - 1L ERELL #2020 Bl B (b 5= B4 1124518 B
Top 5kZE

On December 23, at the “2020 China Annual Conference on Philanthropy” held in Beijing, Yuzhou Group was awarded
the “2020 China Philanthropy Enterprise” for its commitment in the fight against the COVID-19 epidemic and in the battle
against poverty.

128230 - fEdL REM ) (20200 AAXFE] b BNEESHERSFTHAREBENHEWSHIS LORA &
He (2020 E R Bl A% | 458

On December 31, Industrial Securities, an international well-known security company,
initiated coverage on Yuzhou Group with a “Buy” rating. Industrial Securities pointed
out that Yuzhou Group’s contracted sales grew rapidly with quality improved, the land
bank structure continued to be optimized, the financial structure remained stable and
healthy, and the dividends payout was generous and stable. It also expected that the
planned spin-off of the property management business would further increase the
dividend payout ratio, and proposed a target price of HK$3.90 for Yuzhou Group.

12A318 BEBRNESFEEEIFEAMERES GABERBMNEE LT IEA]
FRo-HEZRSEH BNEEANHESRERERR LTHREBSESENL B
BEBREBERE RELERBT WERISE—SPRALNBE - LTFRMNEE
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Yuzhou Group Holdings
Company Limited (“Yuzhou Group” or the “Company”), | am
pleased to present the annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2020 for your review.

2020 is an unusual year. With the outbreak of the COVID-19
epidemic, the economic and political environment at home and
abroad is complex, and the world is undergoing tremendous
changes that has never been experienced before. The first quarter
of 2020 was the period under the greatest impact of the epidemic.
Due to the stringent epidemic management and control measures
implemented in various provinces and cities, such as lockdown and
traffic control, as well as the delayed resumption of work, and the
sales and construction progress of the real estate market across
the nation have been materially affected. Fortunately, the domestic
anti-epidemic measures have been effective, and a slow but steady
recovery has taken place since March. The real estate industry
has undoubtedly played a role of the stabilizer and ballast for
the economic development. With the epidemic being kept under
control since mid-March, the suppressed demand was released at
once, and coupled with the demand for higher living standards from
the residents, the market has been in the process of rapid recovery.
From May to June, the recovery speed of trading volume in the
real estate market was faster than market expectation, while the
growth rate of investment in real estate development also achieved
a turnaround to positive in June. According to the National Bureau
of Statistics, in 2020, the total investment in national real estate
development amounted to RMB14,144.3 billion, representing an
increase of 7.0% year on year, and 2.9 percentage points decrease

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ETERE (|

in growth rate as compared to the previous year. The
sales of commodity housing recorded a new high of
RMB17,361.3 billion, representing an increase of 8.7%
year on year, and 2.2 percentage points increase in
growth rate as compared to the previous year, of which
the residential sales revenue increased by 10.8%.

Against such background, the Group recorded
contracted sales of RMB104,967.11 million in 2020,
representing an increase of 39.74% year on year and
achieved the annual target of 105%. The contracted
sales area was 6,264,616 sqg.m., representing an
increase of 26.02% year on year. The average sales
price was RMB16,756 per sg.m., representing an
increase of 10.89% vyear on year. Sales amount
recorded a significant increase and sales volume grew
along with higher prices, with the growth rate leading
the industry. This was primarily attributable to our
commitment to the development strategy of focusing
on tier-1 and tier-2 cities, flexible and diverse sales
strategies as well as our high-quality products that
catered to the market demand. Within the larger context
of evolving external risks and industry profits being
under pressure, Yuzhou Group remained implementation
of its strategic policy of local development, adhered to
the development strategy of maintaining balance among
scale, profit and liability, observed discipline in land
acquisition, and has been seeking to generate maximum
interest for shareholders with rigorous cost control,
ingenious product offerings and flexible sales strategies.

Building Homes
with Love

Qingdao Yuzhou Langham Mansion

T8 &M e RN
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

FERE (|)

The abundant and high-quality land resources are the cornerstones
of ensuring continuous growth of sales and results. In 2020, due
to the impact of the epidemic at the beginning of the year, the
real estate market experienced a cold winter. In order to boost
the market confidence, the overall capital environment became
relatively abundant. At the same time, most cities increased the
supply of high-quality land in the second and third quarters, which
significantly increased the land market popularity, and the land
price increased sharply with the increase in the supply of high-
quality land. In the fourth quarter, under the influence of the “Three
Red Lines” policy, financing channels continued to be tightened,
the land market showed a decline, and premium rates decreased
significantly. We captured the window period of land transactions
when appropriate, so that we could acquire high-quality land plots
in the open market, while targeting at large-scale lands with small
investments in various cities through our diversified channels, which
in turn enhances our ability of regional penetration.

In terms of products, although the definition of living is constantly
changing through time, Yuzhou keeps the original aspiration
of “Building Cities with Heart, Building Homes with Love” in
mind, and always focuses on the residential property of housing
products, creating cultural and spiritual connotation for housing
products, arousing and enriching traditional residential culture.
Over the past 27 years, from “Refined Building” 1.0 to 4.5, and
then to “YU CUBE”, the housing product system of Yuzhou has
been continuously iterated and refreshed, from which the product
concept of “Three Being and Six Care” has been extracted, which
means “Being Quality Housing, Being Harmonious Community and
Being Cultural Life; Care Quality, Care Safety, Care Environment,
Care Life, Care All-ages, Care Warm-heart”. Combining the
“Three Being and Six Care” with “101 Value Points of Residential
Buildings”, Yuzhou provides customers with high-quality products
continuously. Yuzhou has insisted on practicing and innovation
for 27 years, with its product line constantly being improved.
What behind the Royale style, Langham style and Honor style are
Yuzhou'’s ingenious design concepts. Ingenuity is the delicateness
of care, and also the ultimate product power with more feelings
and quality. Focusing on the practice and exploration of a better
life, creating a better life with beautiful architecture and ingenuity,
and constantly satisfying people’s ultimate pursuit of an ideal life
are also the self-requirements of Yuzhou on its ingenious products.

30 BMEEEBRAERATR Yuzhou Group Holdings Company Limited

Thanks to excellent product capabilities, Yuzhou's
sales performance has continued to be strong. Take
Hefei as an example, according to JGS Real Estate
DATA, in January 2021, Yuzhou Group continued to
rank first in the top 5 list of the total commercial and
residential sales amount of real estate enterprises in
Hefei. During the past year of 2020, Yuzhou has stood
out as the champion of Hefei for twelve consecutive
months. Launching a number of high-quality projects
in Hefei has continued to support the steady growth
of sales. Outstanding projects in Hefei include Yuzhou
Orchid Garden, Yuzhou Langxi Community, Yuzhou
Town of Sky, etc., among which, 90% of Yuzhou Town
of Sky was sold out immediately upon initial launch,
and Yuzhou Orchid Garden created an excellent record
of selling out 56 additionally launched units within 43
minutes. Topping the list of housing in Hefei again has
not only proved Yuzhou Group’s outstanding product
capabilities, but has also reflected the results of the
Group’s strategic layout.

Yuzhou Group has been actively capturing market
opportunities, and continuously optimizing the debt
structure through various methods such as bond
issuance, early redemption and replacement to enhance
the flexibility of capital utilization and provide strong
support for business development. With the joint
efforts of the management and the investor relations
team, each issuance of bond by Yuzhou Group was
favored by diversified investors from all over the world,
and repeatedly achieved a low or zero new issuance
premium, and even negative issuance premium, which
is rare in the new issuance of Chinese real estate
developers. In addition, Yuzhou Group achieved an
oversubscription in excess of 9 times when it first issued
green U.S. dollar notes in 2020, which shows that
investors have a high degree of recognition for Yuzhou
Group’s overall performance, including the operating
conditions, financial conditions and green development.



Meanwhile, the Group continually received positive feedback from
the capital market. During the period, many major investment
banks and brokers released their reports with “buy” or “overweight”
rating to us, in which they remained bullish on the future
development of Yuzhou Group. In February 2020, Yuzhou Group
was included as a constituent stock of Hang Seng China High
Dividend Yield Index, accounting for the highest proportion among
real estate enterprises. In May 2020, Yuzhou Group was included in
Hang Seng Large-Mid Cap Value 50 Index and Hang Seng Large-
Mid Cap Value Tilt Index, further underlining the high recognition of
Yuzhou Group from the capital market.

In terms of ESG development, since the first independent release
of annual ESG report in 2016, Yuzhou Group has proactively
benchmarked the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s disclosure
requirements for sustainable development, ensuring that the
industry’s higher standards are adopted to guide and spur the
deepening development of the Group on the basis of disclosure
compliance. In 2018, the board of directors of Yuzhou Group
formally established an independent sustainable development team
to plan and implement sustainable development strategies on a
full-time basis, which is the pioneer in the real estate industry. In
the second half of 2020, Yuzhou Group even set up a sustainable
development committee at the Board level to implement
sustainable development at the institutional level. At the same time,
Yuzhou Group has also successively published internal sustainable
development governance information and policies on its official
website, becoming the first company in the industry to disclose
relevant internal policies to the public.

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ETERE (|

In January 2020, after the outbreak of the epidemic,
Mr. Lam Lung On, the chairman of the board of
directors of Yuzhou Group, immediately announced the
establishment of a Combat Epidemic Special Fund of
RMB15 million, and donated the first RMB5 million to
the Red Cross Society of China Hubei Branch on behalf
of Yuzhou Group. Yuzhou also relied on its own resource
advantages to purchase scarce medical protection
materials from overseas. All of Yuzhou’s property officers
situated in more than 30 cities across the nation gave
up their vacations and stuck to their jobs, supporting
epidemic protection and control in the front lines,
and guarding the health of the property owners with
responsibility. In addition to doing its best to prevent
and control the epidemic, Yuzhou Commercial also
took practical actions to subsidize merchants, support
for welfare, and work together to meet challenges by
halving the holiday rents of merchants such as shopping
malls and community commercial centers.

In view of Yuzhou Group’s long-term practice and
achievements in ESG development, MSCI (Morgan
Stanley Capital International) rated Yuzhou Group’s ESG
Rating as “BBB” ranking first among the domestic real
estate enterprises.

Despite that the real estate is a traditional industry,
Yuzhou is committed to becoming a centennial
enterprise. Instead of blindly pursuing the maximum
commercial interests, we keep in mind with reverence
for products, customers, cycles as well as society,
balancing strategic choice and development rhyme,
provide more vital and warmer services, and behave
with kindness, sureness as well as enterprising spirit.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

FERE (|)

At present, the “internal and external dual circulation” strategy
contributes to the stable development of greater significance for the
real estate industry, but at the same time, the nation also keeps the
principle of regulation to control leverage and stabilize housing price
for a long time. The all-round supervision on financing of real estate
enterprises forces real estate companies to support themselves
with capital turnover and follow the path of stable development
and winning with quality. Yuzhou has always adhered to steady
operation, and has become our competitive advantage nowadays.
Going forward, we will consider the “at hand, be committed” to
enhancing our own abilities and improving comprehensive strength,
and strive to cement the foundation as a time-honored enterprise
amidst stiff rivalry.

Lam Lung On, J.r
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 30, 2021
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB VMR DM

MARKET AND BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2020, the overall sales volume and turnover of China’s real
estate market were affected by the COVID-19 epidemic, and
the trading of real estate even came to a sudden halt at the
beginning of the year. With the active deployment of the state
and governments at all levels, the efforts of the people all over
the country to actively fight against the epidemic have laid a solid
foundation for the orderly resumption of work and production since
the second quarter. The market has gradually recovered and the
demand suppressed by the epidemic has also steadily revived. At
the same time, in active response to the unified deployment of the
state, local governments have implemented city-specific policies
and introduced preferential policies such as talent settlement policy,
which has further boosted the recovery of market sentiment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

In 2020, the outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic has had a
significant impact on China’s economic development. In the face
of the epidemic, on the one hand, the state has made nationwide
efforts to assist disaster-stricken areas and rescue people
suffering from epidemic, which kept the large-scale outbreak of
the epidemic under control. At the same time, the joint prevention
and control mechanism against the epidemic were established
and implemented, which effectively supported the recovery of the
domestic market; on the other hand, in the face of downward
economic pressure, the Central People’s Government of the
People’s Republic of China (the “Central Government”) has
emphasized that the fiscal policy should be more proactive and
the prudent monetary policy should be more flexible and moderate
so as to ensure ample liquidity. In terms of the real estate market
in 2020, the Central Government continued to adhere to the
policy keynote of “houses are for living instead of speculation”
and repeatedly stressed that real estate shall not be used as a
short-term stimulus to the economy, and that land prices, housing
prices and expectations should be kept stable to ensure the steady
and healthy development of the real estate market. The Central
Government attaches great importance to real estate financial risks,
adheres to the principle that “houses are for living”, maintains the
continuity, consistency and stability of real estate financial policies,
and strengthens the long-term management system of real estate
finance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE SRR D (8)

With the “one city, one policy” regulation becoming the new normal
of the real estate market, the differentiation of cities in different
tiers has intensified. In 2020, city-specific policies from local
governments showed a trend of loosening first and then tightening
due to market conditions. Affected by the epidemic in the first half
of the year, local governments flexibly controlled and introduced
supportive policies from both ends of supply and demand to
promote the steady recovery of the industry. In the second half
of the year, several local governments upgraded their property
market regulation to ensure the overall stability of the market, and
the overall tone of city-specific policies was moderate throughout
the year. In terms of cities of different tiers, tier-1 and tier-2 cities
showed strong resilience under the epidemic. After the resumption
of work and production, the market recovered rapidly, especially
in tier-1 and tier-2 cities in the Yangtze River Delta Region and the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (the “Greater
Bay Area”). Most of these cities achieved positive growth in terms
of sales volume throughout the year; in tier-3 and tier-4 cities, by
contrast, sales volume has declined, both volume and price have
dropped, and the cooling of the real estate market becomes more
obvious with significant pressure of de-inventory. In terms of land
market, in order to alleviate the negative impact of the epidemic
on the economic development in 2020, most cities have increased
the supply of high-quality land in the second quarter, and the
land market has recovered as a result. However, with the “Three
Red Lines” policy’s precise regulation on the financing side in
the second half of the year, the popularity of the land market has
declined, showing a low operating status in the fourth quarter. The
overall land market transactions of the whole year increased slightly
compared with that of 2019, and the average land price recorded a
new high under the influence of increased supply in popular cities.

Amidst the slowing growth of the industry, the rising price of the
land bidding and auction in the public market, the further refining
and tightening of domestic and foreign financing, and the guidance
of the “Three Red Lines” policy on financing and liabilities of real
estate enterprises, a new round of restructuring of the real estate
market will be accelerated, and higher requirements are imposed
for real estate enterprises to strengthen their internal control and
operation. Large-scale real estate enterprises paid more attention
to refined operation, risk management and improvement of product
quality while expanding their scale, achieving qualitative and
quantitative development by continuously meeting more and more
customers’ needs for improved quality.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

OVERALL PERFORMANCE

During the year, the revenue of the Group amounted to
RMB10,411.60 million. The profit for the year was RMB228.23
million. The total equity increased by 19.41% to RMB34,302.93
million. The Board of Directors proposed the final dividend of
HK21.5 cents per share for the year ended December 31, 2020.

SALE OF PROPERTIES

During the year, the Group’s revenue from property sales was
RMB9,738.62 million, accounting for 93.54% of the total revenue
of the Group. The Group delivered a total GFA of approximately
831,564 sg.m.. The average selling price of the properties delivered
and recognized as property sales in 2020 was RMB11,711 per
sg.m..

The Group’s recognized revenue from property sales derived from
a number of regions across the country, including the Yangtze River
Delta Region, West Strait Economic Zone, Central China Region
and the Greater Bay Area, which contributed 66.64%, 19.39%,
13.54% and 0.43% of the recognized revenue, respectively.
Among them, the Yangtze River Delta Region still played a major
part on the overall recognized revenue contribution. As the further
implementation of the strategy of “Locality Development” in the
future, the Group believes that cities contributing revenue stream
will be more diversified, which will bring more recognized revenue
from property sales to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE SRR D (8)

The recognized sales and GFA sold of each region in 2020 are set

out in the following table:

TNRET I 20204F By HE R IH

TRENEAE

Average
Selling Price
Amount Saleable GFA (after tax)
A E W
Name of regions B &8 &8 EEmE HEFHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(AR®TT) (EFXK) (ARE/EHXK)
West Strait Economic Zone BALEE 1,888,063 131,550 14,352
Yangtze River Delta Region R=ZAEHE 6,489,375 601,872 10,782
Central China Region EREE 1,318,715 92,968 14,185
Greater Bay Area KEE 42,468 5,174 8,208
Total sales recognized at a point RN ERINHEE
of time WBEt 9,738,621 831,564 11,711
Total sales recognized over time RN — R
$HE MBET -
Total sales of properties recognized B HER P HEEET 9,738,621

The recognized sales and GFA sold of each region in 2019 are set

out in the following table:

TREFIZEEN2019FMERHE SR REE

Average
Selling Price

Amount Saleable GFA (after tax)
AR EE N
Name of regions B EE ot} EEmE HETHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(AR®TFT) (FFK) (ARE/FFHXK)
West Strait Economic Zone HAKEE 5,912,822 516,972 11,437
Yangtze River Delta Region R=ZAEHE 14,671,431 1,025,304 14,309
Bohai Rim Region REBEE 1,494,903 217,216 6,882
Southwest Region AR EE 229,142 40,350 5,679
Greater Bay Area KEE 90,649 8,505 10,658
Total sales recognized at a point HRNERINEE
of time HEt 22,398,947 1,808,347 12,386
Total sales recognized over time RN —EREEA
SHE BET 71,226
Total sales of properties recognized B HER Y HE 45T 22,470,173
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

CONTRACTED SALES

As of December 31, 2020, the Group’s accumulated contracted
sales amounted to approximately RMB104,967.11 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 39.74%. The GFA of
contracted sales amounted to 6,264,616 sg.m. and the contracted
average selling price was approximately RMB16,756 per sg.m.,
increased by 10.90% year-on-year.

In 2020, despite the negative impacts that the COVID-19 epidemic
has brought to the real estate market in China, and temporary
suspension of real estate sales during the first quarter, resumption
of work and production in China since the second quarter has
laid a solid foundation for the recovery of real estate sales, and
demands for house purchase suppressed by the epidemic have
been released gradually as a result of rapid control of the epidemic
nationwide and the implementation of the joint prevention and
control mechanism. Throughout the year, thanks to the positive
response and rapid decision-making of Yuzhou Group for the
unexpected events and adjustment of certain saleable resources
at the beginning of the year, we seized the trend of the market
recovery in tier-1 and tier-2 core cities, so as to embrace a brighter
future, and finally achieved the contracted sales target of RMB100
billion. Benefited from economic development, population inflow, as
well as better infrastructure and medical resources in the Yangtze
River Delta Region, the region kept the strongest recovery trend
after the resumption of work and production, and remained a main
force of contracted sales of Yuzhou with the total contracted sales
of RMB64,641.47 million, accounting for 61.58% of the Group’s
total contracted sales. Amongst, Suzhou, Hefei, Nanjing, Shanghai,
Hangzhou, Ningbo and Wuxi were major contributors to the
contracted sales in the Yangtze River Delta Region. During the year,
numerous of new projects were launched one after another, most of
which were sold out upon initial launch. Both the visit rate and the
subscription rate recorded excellent performance, demonstrating
that the Group’s strategy of deep cultivation in key cities in the
Yangtze River Delta Region is extremely forward-looking.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE SRR D (8)

The year 2020 marked the 4th year of the Group’s entry into
Suzhou market. In view of the fact that the Suzhou Branch stood
out in 2019 and achieved a sales performance of more than
RMB10 billion in a single year, the Group has become one of the
most eye-catching stars of real estate enterprises in the Suzhou
market, and Suzhou Branch also meets the requirements of
the Group for the establishment of a regional company. At the
beginning of the year, the Group established a regional company
in Jiangsu with Suzhou as the core in order to better manage the
work in the region. Under the continuous drive of outstanding
projects, the Group continued to develop benchmark projects
with regional influence in the Suzhou market during the year, such
as Yuzhou Oak Manor, Yuzhou Genius Leading, Yuzhou Immortal
Seasons, etc.. Amongst, as a benchmark product that lays out
the high-end market in Suzhou and integrates ancient ideas into
design, Yuzhou Genius Leading awarded the “The Best Pre-sale
Property of the Year in the 15th Kinpan Award in South Jiangsu”,
“Top 5 of China’s Real Estate Landscape in 2020”, “Meishang
Award — Architectural Design Award” and “London Design Awards
2020 Nomination Award” upon its initial launch. Yuzhou’s high-end
design products are fully demonstrated through Yuzhou Genius
Leading. As the Yuzhou brand continues to attract attention in
the Jiangsu market, in the future, Yuzhou is expected to further
consolidate its existing advantages in the market, strengthen the
depth and breadth of development, and realize a scale effect driven
by the product and enhanced brand power promoted by scale
advantages.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Group has been developing its presence in Hefei for fourteen
years, and expects to make a great breakthrough after 14 years’
hard work. As one of the first national real estate enterprises to tap
into the Hefei market, Yuzhou has always adhered to the philosophy
of “Building Cities with Heart, Building Homes with Love” and
continues to develop Hefei market to attract local customers
with outstanding products and services. During the year, Yuzhou
achieved great milestone through in-depth development. Yuzhou's
total amounts of contracted sales and GFA have been ranked first
in the Hefei market for twelve consecutive months since January
2020, becoming a well-deserved “industry leader” in the Hefei
market. A new batch of projects such as Yuzhou Orchid Garden,
Yuzhou Times Life Hight, Yuzhou The Splendid Era, Yuzhou Town
of Sky and Yuzhou Oriental Mansion, have become celebrity
products in the Hefei market with excellent product design,
interactive community experience, and creative children’s theme
park — Little Yu (/N& 5 ) Theme Park. Amongst, Yuzhou Town
of Sky, as Yuzhou’s first industrial-city cooperation project, was
launched initially in the middle of the year and was sold out within
one day. The subsequent additional launches were also continuing
in popularity and were sold out again. Yuzhou Town of Sky also
successfully awarded the “The Best Pre-sale Property in the Kinpan
Award in Anhui and Jiangxi Province”, and the industrial-city
cooperative development model has achieved great success.
During the year, Hefei Branch continued to make contributions with
its contracted sales exceeding RMB10 billion, becoming another
branch with contracted sales achieving over RMB10 billion within a
single-year in Yuzhou Group after the Suzhou Branch.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE SRR D (8)

In addition, other popular cities in the Yangtze River Delta Region
such as Shanghai, Nanjing, Hangzhou and Yangzhou have
also continued to make new achievements through continuous
additional launches. Relying on years of deep cultivation in local
markets, each of Shanghai and Nanjing is expected to become the
next single city branch with a sales volume of over RMB10 billion in
the future. During the year, popular cities such as Wuxi, Changzhou
and Ningbo, which the Group has just entered, made a contribution
to contracted sales for the first time, further strengthening the
strategic layout of the Group in key tier-2 cities in the Yangtze River
Delta Region. In the future, the Group will continue to take root
in the cities and embrace the markets in the Yangtze River Delta
Region, and be committed to continuously creating comfortable
urban living spaces for customers with highly competitive services.

As West Strait Economic Zone being the cradle of the Group'’s
business, the Group continuously consolidated the foundation
for its business development in this region, which contributed
RMB19,671.33 million to the Group’s contracted sales during the
year, accounting for 18.74% of the total contracted sales.

The contracted sales of the Bohai Rim Region amounted to
RMB11,753.86 million, accounting for 11.20% of the total
contracted sales. After several years of market research and layout,
the Group has entered the markets in key tier-1 and tier-2 cities
of the Bohai Rim Region such as Beijing, Tianjin, Shijiazhuang,
Tangshan, Qingdao and Shenyang. Among them, the performance
of many projects in Qingdao is outstanding and they have become
famous projects with local influence on social media. By virtue
of wonderful design, Yuzhou Langham Mansion won several
international awards including “Gold Award of Architecture of A’
Design Award of ltaly”, “ICONIC AWARDS 2020 of Germany: Iconic
Innovative Architectural Design Award”, “Outstanding Property
Award London”, quickly showing Yuzhou's design capability
to the Bohai Rim Region. In the future, the Group will continue
to further develop and fully capture the market opportunities in
the advantageous cities it has entered in the region, to optimize
multiple business lines such as customer research, investment,
marketing and property management, so as to make steady
progress and create further achievements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Group has maintained a positive growth trend since its entry
into Central China Region. Although Wuhan, as a leading city in
Central China Region, was greatly affected by COVID-19 epidemic
in 2020, with the continuous support from the Central Government
and society, Wuhan’s economy is recovering rapidly. During the
year, the overall contracted sales of the Group from Central China
Region amounted to RMB3,529.56 million, accounting for 3.36%
of the total contracted sales of the Group.

In addition, the Greater Bay Area is becoming another dynamic
economic area for the Group’s major layout in the future.
During the year, as a relatively new layout area, the Greater
Bay Area contributed RMB2,848.10 million to the contracted
sales, accounting for approximately 2.71% of the Group’s total
contracted sales. In June 2020, the Group officially launched
the dual headquarters strategy of Shanghai-Shenzhen. As a
leading city in the Greater Bay Area and the city with the fastest
economic development in China, Shenzhen is bound to make
new contributions during the development process of the Group
in the future. Currently, the Group has entered into cities such
as Shenzhen, Foshan, Zhongshan, Zhuhai, Huizhou and Hong
Kong in the Greater Bay Area. With the constant acceleration
and deepening of the integration progress of Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macau, more opportunities for bidding and auction, merger
and acquisition and urban construction are emerging successively,
which provides a steady stream of resources for the Group’s
further development after achieving its goal of “A Journey to 100
Billion”.

During the year, the Southwest Region also contributed a total
of RMB2,522.80 million of the contracted sales, accounting for
approximately 2.40% of the Group’s total contracted sales. With
the acquisition of a number of high-quality land parcels in the
Southwest Region and the establishment of the regional company
during the year, the Group is going to focus on the layout of the
leading cities such as Chengdu and Chongaing with strong regional
radiation, it is believed that the proportion of contribution of this
region will increase year by year in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE SRR D (8)

The contracted sales and GFA sold of each project in 2020 are set N 51| & ETE B R2020F A X EE S NI :
out in the following table:

Total Amount GFA of Average

of Contracted Contracted Contracted

Sales Sales Selling Price

Region HE BAENHESE BRHEEE BRHEYE
(RMB’000) (sq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)

(AR®ETT) (ERK) (ARB/FHX)

West Strait Economic Zone BEKER 19,671,334 1,370,923 14,349
Yangtze River Delta Region Rk=ARE 64,641,469 3,486,611 18,540
Central China Region Ry 3,529,555 306,027 11,533
Greater Bay Area NE[R 2,848,095 219,355 12,984
Southwest Region sl 8 2,522,796 221,638 11,382
Bohai Rim Region IR [ 15 11,753,857 660,062 17,807
Total et 104,967,106 6,264,616 16,756

The contracted sales and GFA sold of each project in 2019 are set ~ FN&R#H HI|&ZEHE B R2019FMNA X HES B MNEE:
out in the following table:

Total Amount GFA of Average

of Contracted Contracted Contracted

Sales Sales Selling Price

Region HE BENHESE BRHEEE EHRHEYE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB/sqg.m.)

(AR®TT) (FRK) (ARE/FHXK)

West Strait Economic Zone P = 10,233,634 703,233 14,552
Yangtze River Delta Region R=ARE 48,772,698 2,894,542 16,850
Central China Region R i 7,068,724 627,059 11,273
Greater Bay Area N = 1,743,422 130,384 13,371
Southwest Region GiilEa)=8e 1,084,166 113,324 9,567
Bohai Rim Region IR R 15 6,212,537 502,666 12,359
Total st 75,115,181 4,971,208 15,110
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

The Group’s property investment segment with a variety of
commercial offerings covers shopping center, shopping streets
and office buildings, to shape two product lines as the “Yu Yue”
brand for shopping centers and “Yuzhou Plaza” brand for office
building. The Yuzhou property investment projects, whose business
is mainly operated in economically developed areas such as the
West Strait Economic Zone and the Greater Bay Area, currently
cover areas of Shenzhen, Shanghai, Hangzhou, Xiamen, Suzhou,
Nanjing, Hefei, Wuhan and Quanzhou. There were 28 projects
under operation and 11 projects in preparation period, 39 projects
in total with a commercial area of over 1.52 milion sgq.m., where
shopping mall, office building and community business accounted
for 61.3%, 23.0% and 15.7% respectively. Operational projects
covered over 1,000 cooperative brands and approximately 1,600
strategic alliance brands. It is worth mentioning that the Group has
implemented a comprehensive digital upgrade of the enterprise
resource planning systems (ERP systems) in commercial properties
under management, which has significantly improved the efficiency
of management communication and coordination, and made a
qualitative leap in operation capacity.

Over the years, Yuzhou Commercial Company has focused on
core tier-1 and tier-2 core cities and has been actively exploring
ways to make a breakthrough, refining each project and improving
customers’ experience with innovations in business type, model,
design and capital. In the future, Yuzhou Commercial Company will
be committed to promoting the development of market research
and positioning, tenant sourcing and pre-opening services and
other diverse value-added services for strengthening brand value
and customer satisfaction and driving the rapid growth of the
business line.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

During the year, the scale of property management business
of the Group continued to expand. As of December 31, 2020,
the total GFA of the managed projects of the Group was more
than 17.5 million sg.m. and the total contracted area was more
than 26 million sg.m.. In particular, the proportion of GFA under
management from third parties was more than 15%. The managed
projects (in terms of GFA) accounted for more than 50% in the
Yangtze River Delta Region, and more than 30% in the West Strait

Economic Zone.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE SRR D (8)

Yuzhou Group has provided property management service since
1997. Over the past two decades, starting from Xiamen, Yuzhou
Property Management has been expanding its professional services
to new fields, forming a diversified project portfolio with various
kinds of property. Currently, Yuzhou Property Management mainly
focuses on the West Strait Economic Zone and the Yangtze River
Delta Region, and establishes the solid market position in four key
areas including the Bohai Rim Region, the Central China Region,
the Southwest Region and the Greater Bay Area and mainly
provides residential management services for middle and high-end
communities, villas, bungalows and apartments. With the constant
growth of land reserve and diverse project portfolios of the Group,
the property management segment will rely on the Group’s leading
market position in China and its long-term strategic partnership
with the Group to continually realizing the strong endogenous
advantage of project resources, and focusing on the development
of diversified value-added services, to further improve profitability.

Leveraging on its own strong executive ability, Yuzhou Property
Management made a major breakthrough on external expansion in
2020. During the year, it obtained the contracted GFA of more than
3 million sg.m. through parallel external expansion mode combining
the award of the tender for the project developed by the third-party
property developer with mergers and acquisitions. In the future,
Yuzhou Property Management will positively improve its external
expansion ability, by virtue of the good reputation of the Group, and
will expand the property management services into the properties
developed by the third-party developers and reasonably allocate
the cash flow in hand for mergers and acquisitions to achieve
sustainable growth of project portfolios.

Yuzhou Property Management has won the honor of “China
Top 100 Property Service Providers” for many years, served as
a council member of China Property Management Institute and
joined in “the Les clefs d’Or”. It was also accredited as “Blue-chip
Property Company”. During the year, it was listed in the list of
“China Top 100 Property Service Providers in 2020” selected by
China Index Academy, and continued to rank 36th.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

HOTEL OPERATION

The Group currently operates Xiamen Yuzhou Camelon Hotel
Apartment and Xiamen Yuzhou Wyndham Grand Plaza Royale
Hotel, among which, the revenue of Xiamen Yuzhou Wyndham
Grand Plaza Royale Hotel was presented in joint ventures. The
Group positively puts 4 projects into construction such as Xiamen
Yuzhou Camelon Hot Spring Hotel (Tong’an), Hui’an Camelon
Business Hotel, and Wuhan Taizi Lake Hotel and Shanghai
Fengxian Jinhui Hotel. In 2020, Xiamen Yuzhou Camelon Hotel
Apartment was fully upgraded to meet the reception needs of
different customers, such as conferences and banquets, so as to
improve the residential experience of customers. During the year,
the total revenue of the Group’s hotel operation was approximately
RMB13.98 million.

QUALITY & SAFETY AND PRODUCT LINES AND
DESIGN

With regards to operations, the Group is committed to using
international standards for product development, improving
product design and project operation efficiency through the
grand operation system. Green building is also an important part
of the Group’s sustainable development strategy. In 2018, the
Group has set up a sustainability taskforce, whose mission is to
actively minimise the impact on the environment, and strive to
create ecological communities with harmony between human and
nature in respect of design, development, construction and use
of the project, as well as different stages of the later maintenance
of the property. In November 2020, the Group upgraded its
governance structure and established a sustainability committee,
SO as to raise the sustainable development to the level of strategic
decision-making. As of the end of the year, the Group’s 135
projects with approximately 18 million sg.m. in total had met the
green building standard, and properties with more than 5 million
sg.m. in total were certified with two stars or above at the domestic
or international level. Shenzhen Yuzhou Plaza, Shanghai Yuzhou
Plaza and Xiamen Yuzhou Plaza were awarded the “US LEED CS
Certification”, and the project at No.48 Caine Road, Central, Hong
Kong was awarded the highest platinum level of BEAM Plus. In
addition, MSCI (Morgan Stanley Capital International) released the
ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance) rating report, and the
Group was rated as BBB again, ranking first among all domestic
real estate enterprises.
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BEE SRR D (8)

Meanwhile, the Group is committed to enhancing the “Brand
Perception” of each project. In the design process of its projects,
the Group adheres to the principal of being people-oriented and
further researches and judges the design concept of modern
human living, so as to satisfy the needs of its owners in all aspects.
The Group also committed to creating the ideal home-living
concept, demonstrating the brand concept of “Building Cities with
Heart, Building Homes with Love”. During the year, multiple project
designs of the Group won many world-renowned industry awards,
including the International Property Awards, the REARD Global
Design Award, the Kinpan Awards and Idea-King Awards, with the
design capability being well recognized.

LAND RESERVES

Adhering to its strategic deployment of leading with locality
development and following the principle of “In-depth Cultivation”,
the Group extensively develops the six metropolitan areas in the
Yangtze River Delta Region, West Strait Economic Zone, Bohai Rim
Region, Greater Bay Area, Central China Region and Southwest
Region through the bidding and auction, merger and acquisition,
urban redevelopment, land acquisition by application list system
and project cooperation, so as to ensure stable and sustainable
development after achieving its goal of “A Journey to 100 Billion”.

As of December 31, 2020, the Group had land reserves amounting
to approximately 23.10 million sg.m. of aggregate salable GFA, with
177 projects located in 38 cities in the six metropolitan areas. The
average land cost was approximately RMB6,876 per sg.m.. The
Group believes that its land reserves currently held and managed
are sufficient for its development over the next three to four years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BERE SRR DI (#)

Saleable GFA of Land Reserves (sq.m.) THEER TR EEERE (FHK)
(As at December 31, 2020) (R2020F12831H )
Number of

projects Area As of Total

Region it E EHEHE WEEEE B4 EE 51
(sa.m.)
(FFK)

West Strait Economic Zone BAKER
Xiamen = 27 1,170,873 51%
Fuzhou = 8 379,241 1.6%
Quanzhou RN 3 1,005,744 4.4%
Longyan BEa 1 21,013 0.1%
Zhangzhou N 4 1,002,087 4.3%
Sub-total NEE 43 3,578,958 15.5%
Yangtze River Delta Region R=AEH
Shanghai ladis! 15 985,757 4.3%
Nanijing R 15 1,064,559 4.6%
Hangzhou N 3 612,570 2.7%
Shaoxing Fapeee 1 127,952 0.6%
Ningbo =R 2 109,298 0.5%
Suzhou RN 15 1,296,466 5.6%
Changzhou B 1 133,573 0.6%
Wuxi =55 3 539,754 2.3%
Bozhou = I 1 32,583 0.1%
Hefei A 19 2,665,553 11.5%
Bengbu IR 1 511,875 2.2%
Jinhua B 2 49,986 0.2%
Yangzhou M 4 743,314 3.2%
Zhoushan 1 1 163,091 0.7%
Xuzhou I 1 203,588 0.9%
Sub-total NEF 84 9,239,919 40.0%

Annual Report 2020 IR 53



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EREZHRRIN @)
Number of
projects Area As of Total
Region HE HEHE BEEME P& e 51
(sg.m.)
(F77K)

Bohai Rim Region REEESE
Beijing b= 2 117,434 0.5%
Tianjin K2 10 1,363,159 5.9%
Qingdao 55 4 365,904 1.6%
Shijiazhuang ARHE 1 41,572 0.2%
Tangshan &L 3 962,610 4.2%
Shenyang &5 2 1,978,609 8.5%
Sub-total NEF 22 4,829,288 20.9%
Central China Region ZEPESE
Wuhan iz 4 969,048 4.2%
Xinxiang G 1 258,370 1.1%
Kaifeng E) 1 222,844 1.0%
Zhengzhou EB N 2 237,475 1.0%
Sub-total 2% 8 1,687,737 7.3%
Greater Bay Area KERE
Hong Kong B 1 2,214 0.0%
Shenzhen el 1 51,281 0.2%
Huizhou EY) 2 433,916 1.9%
Foshan B 1L 5 538,639 2.3%
Zhongshan AL 1 271,502 1.2%
Sub-total et 10 1,297,552 5.6%
Southwest Region AEESE
Chongaing EE 4 804,696 3.5%
Chengdu P &P 3 765,727 3.3%
Sub-total NEE 7 1,570,423 6.8%
Total &% 174 22,203,877 96.1%
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BERE SRR DI (#)

Number of
projects Area As of Total
Region HE EHEEE HWEEEE Fir 4l tE 41
(sa.m.)
(F7K)
Urban Redevelopment I B
Greater Bay Area K&
Shenzhen zll 1 119,234 0.5%
Zhuhai b2 9! 1 627,022 2.7%
Huizhou =M 1 150,308 0.7%
Total &% 3 896,564 3.9%
Grand total e 177 23,100,441 100.0%

During the year, in view of the land auction market, the Group,
after thorough research and analysis, obtained 18 high-quality
land parcels at attractive prices in Shanghai, Chengdu, Wuhan,
Chongaing, Hefei, Suzhou, Wuxi, Yangzhou, Ningbo and other
cities through bidding and auction, merger and acquisition with
a total GFA of approximately 2,847,431 sgq.m.. The average land
cost was RMB11,852 per sq.m.. All the above new projects were
located in tier-1 and tier-2 cities.

At the same time, Yuzhou Group has always been paying close
attention to urban construction and economic development of
the Greater Bay Area, deeply understanding the local policies,
industries and urban planning of the Greater Bay Area, and actively
following up the urban redevelopment projects, so as to explore a
new way for diversified land reserves of the Group. During the year,
the Group has acquired three high-quality urban redevelopment
projects in the core cities of the Greater Bay Area, i.e. Shenzhen,
Zhuhai and Huizhou, with a total GFA of about 896,564 sg.m..
In the future, the Group will continue to vigorously promote the
implementation of urban redevelopment projects, and continuously
transform them into high-quality saleable resources, which will
become an important way for the Group to acquire land resources
in the Greater Bay Area.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE SRR D (8)

Particulars of these 21 parcels of land as at December 31, 2020

are set out in the following table:

TREFZ21IE MR 2020512 A31 H 15 ¢

Total Land
Costs
Attributable
Number of Expected to the
Projects Total GFA  As of Total Company  As of Total
SoHE Bt AR
Region HE HEMEH BEER Fratfl  (RAEHE) it LBl
(sa.m.) (RMB'000)
(FF%) (AREF7)
Bidding & Auction/Merger & Acquisition B /UGt
Yangtze River Delta Region REARY
Shanghai s 1 59,120 1.6% 976,920 3.3%
Hefei &I 2 264,181 7.1% 1,686,371 5.3%
Suzhou EM 3 406,032 10.8% 2,584,406 8.6%
Wuxi £ 2 302,154 8.1% 4,035,515 13.4%
Changzhou N 1 183,573 3.6% 837,900 2.8%
Ningbo BK 1 72,870 1.9% 1,003,420 3.3%
Yangzhou BN 1 300,466 8.0% 807,481 2.7%
Shaoxing FEE 1 127,952 3.4% 2,628,800 8.8%
Sub-total Nt 14 1,666,348 44.5% 14,460,813 48.2%
Southwest Region BREESE
Chengdu & 2 734,904 19.6% 3,404,780 11.3%
Chongaing ES 1 226,994 6.1% 1,460,000 4.9%
Sub-total Nt 3 961,898 25.7% 4,864,780 16.2%
Central China Region EHEH
Wuhan R 1 219,185 5.9% 2,850,000 9.5%
Sub-total Nt 1 219,185 5.9% 2,850,000 9.5%
Total a5t 18 2,847,431 76.1% 22,175,593 73.9%
Urban Redevelopment W B
Greater Bay Area AEE
Shenzhen 3l 1 119,234 3.2% 807,930 2.7%
Zhuhai e 1 627,022 16.7% 6,688,569 22.3%
Huizhou =M 1 150,308 4.0% 322,420 1.1%
Total &t 3 896,564 23.9% 7,818,919 26.1%
Grand total At 21 3,743,995 100.0% 29,994,512 100.0%
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE

The revenue of the Group was mainly derived from four business
categories, including property sales revenue, rental income from
investment properties, property management fee income and
hotel operation income. In 2020, the total revenue of the Group
was RMB10,411.60 million. The decrease in revenue was mainly
attributable to delay in the development progress of certain property
projects in Shanghai and the delivery of properties in Wuhan
and Tangshan as affected by the COVID-19 outbreak, leading to
deferred recognition of revenue. Specifically, property sales revenue
was approximately RMB9,738.62 million, accounting for 93.54%
of the total revenue; rental income from investment properties
was approximately RMB261.41 million, decreased by 14.33%
year-on-year; property management fee income was approximately
RMB397.59 million, decreased by 11.19% year-on-year; and hotel
operation income was approximately RMB13.98 million.

COST OF SALES

The cost of sales mainly encompassed land cost which including
the release of fair value adjustment, construction cost and
capitalized interest of the Group. In 2020, the cost of sales of the
Group was approximately RMB9,931.69 million, decreased by
42.09% from approximately RMB17,149.00 million in 2019. The
decrease in the cost of sales was mainly due to the lesser GFA of
properties delivered by the Group during the year.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The gross profit of the Group was approximately RMB479.91
million in 2020. The gross profit margin was 4.61%. The
fluctuations of gross profit margin for the year were mainly affected
by (i) the thin gross profit margin due to local price limit policies of
certain property projects, namely Yuzhou Moon Lake Mansion in
Hefei, Yuzhou Honor Hill in Suzhou, Yuzhou Champion Mansion in
Bozhou and Yuzhou Noble Mansion in Shanghai; and (i) release
of fair value adjustments in an aggregate amount of RMB738.80
million on properties, located mainly in Suzhou, Yangzhou and
Hefei, delivered during the year. Having excluded the above non-
cash adjustments, the gross profit margin was 18.19%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE SRR D (8)

FAIR VALUE GAIN ON INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

In 2020, the Group recorded a fair value gain on investment
properties of approximately RMB387.26 million (2019: RMB600.55
million), representing a decrease of approximately 35.52% as
compared to that of the last year.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Other income and gains decreased by approximately 67.00%
year-on-year from approximately RMB2,167.69 million in 2019
to approximately RMB715.24 million in 2020, mainly due to the
additional gains on disposal and deemed disposal of certain
subsidiaries upon loss of control recorded in 2019, however there
was no such gain in 2020.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group decreased by
35.11% year-on-year from approximately RMB659.59 million in
2019 to approximately RMB428.04 million in 2020, accounting for
0.41% (2019: 0.88%) of total contracted sales, which was mainly
attributable to the fact that the Group began to establish a self-
developed dual-mode sales team comprising distribution agents
and self-developed sellers since last year, which contributed to the
reduction of sales costs.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses of the Group decreased by 26.31%
year-on-year from approximately RMB1,090.65 million in 2019
to approximately RMB803.74 million in 2020, which was mainly
due to the stable implementation of the strategy that the Group
established its presence in six regions and dual headquarters, and
related administrative expenses have been better controlled than in
the past. In 2020, the proportion of administrative expenses to total
contracted sales was 0.77% (2019: 1.45%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses decreased by 0.36% year-on-year from
approximately RMB310.74 million in 2019 to approximately
RMB309.62 million in 2020, which was mainly due to fair value loss
on derivative financial instruments of approximately RMB159.51
million and an impairment on goodwill decreased by 69.59%
year-on-year from approximately RMB189.29 million in 2019 to
approximately RMB57.56 million in 2020.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs of the Group decreased by 31.56% year-on-year
from approximately RMB181.60 million in 2019 to approximately
RMB124.28 million in 2020, which was mainly due to the increase
in the portion of interest capitalized during the year.

SHARE OF RESULTS OF JOINT VENTURES

The Group’s share of profit and loss of joint ventures amounted
to profits of RMB206.89 million in 2020, and the loss in 2019 was
RMB63.49 million. The total revenue of joint ventures amounted
to RMB6,300.15 million in 2020, the Group’s attributable share of
revenue of joint ventures amounted to RMB2,202.76 million. The
gross profit margin of joint ventures was 21.87%. The total contract
liabilities of joint ventures amounted to RMB37,667.98 million at the
end of 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE SRR D (8)

SHARE OF RESULTS OF ASSOCIATES

The Group’s share of profit and loss of associates amounted to
profits of RMB23.37 million in 2020, compared with RMB229.37
million in 2019. The total revenue of associates amounted to
RMB4,526.84 million in 2020, the Group’s attributable share
of revenue of associates amounted to RMB1,392.63 million in
2020. The gross profit margin of associates was 5.83%. The total
contract liabilities of associates amounted to RMB11,932.33 million
at the end of 2020.

INCOME TAX

The Group recorded tax credit of RMB81.23 million in 2020.
Income tax expense of the Group in 2019 was approximately
RMB2,637.71 million. The decrease in income tax expense
and record of tax credit were mainly due to the overprovision of
corporate income tax in prior years.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The profit for the year was RMB228.23 million, representing a
decrease of 94.25% compared with that of last year due to the
aforementioned factors.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the profit attributable to
non-controlling interests decreased by 69.19% year-on-year from
approximately RMB361.02 million to approximately RMB111.24
million, which was mainly due to the decrease in revenue and net
profit from non-wholly-owned projects.

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

For the year ended December 31, 2020, basic earnings per share
was RMBO0.09 cents.

60 BEWEMBERAMRAT  Yuzhou Group Holdings Company Limited

BISHEQITXE
2020%F + AR BRI A A RN BN A AR 2,337

JT 0 20199F & F| A£21E2,9378 JT 0 2020%F © Bt & A A
B AU A B AR #45(82,6848 7T - A B TR 2 DA
B9 I R BT MG B 1 BB AE B A R #613189,2638 7T « B &
N A E R K 55.83% o Bt 2 A RS H) A F 72020
FRIZE ARB119(83,2338 T °

FrEHR
REER2020F 85 M H 2 AR S,1238 T o
2019F AEBAMEMREB AL ARB6(E3,771E T FT
SHREBATEEMIEHEEETEARNBEFELE
FriSti iR A TR -

FENHE

FEEFEAARE2E2,8238 7T ' IR F T [£94.25% °
FTERRUFRMEEZEME

iR IS R E

HE2020F12A31H IEF[E  JEE R = B FE |
4N R HE3(56,1028 TR F i 169.19% = 4 A R #51
Bi11248 L - T BRI EHEBE WA RFET

f o

BERERER
HE2020F12A31H IEFE EREARBF AARE
0.09% °



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

CASH POSITION

As at December 31, 2020, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash and non-pledged time deposits
with original maturity of over three months of approximately
RMB34,468.82 million, decreased by 2.94% from RMB35,511.27
million as at December 31, 2019.

BORROWINGS

The Group adopts prudent financial policy for proactively
conducting debt management and optimizing debt structure to
ensure balance in financial risks and cut-down of finance costs.
During the year, the Group has successfully issued multiple offshore
US$ senior notes with coupon rate mainly ranging from 7.375% to
7.85% for a maturity mainly of five to six years. Meanwhile, a five-
year corporate bond in an aggregate amount of RMB3.0 billion was
successfully issued by the Group in domestic with a coupon rate of
6.5% in July and September 2020, respectively, which represents
the recognition of a good credit record, prudent and self-disciplined
financial performance of the Company by domestic institutional
investors.

As at December 31, 2020, the Group had total bank and
other borrowings, corporate bonds and senior notes balance
of RMB63,899.71 million, of which certain loans were secured
by certain investment properties, properties held for sale and
properties under development of the Group, representing an
increase of 14.79% as compared to the last year. The interest
rate of average borrowing cost was 7.19% per annum, decreased
by 0.03 percentage point from 7.22% in the period ended
June 30, 2020. The debt due within one year was RMB18,883.75
million, accounting for 29.55% of total debt, and the cash
short-term debt ratio (total of cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash and non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of over
three months divided by debt due within one year) was 1.83.

BERE SRR DI (#)

REBEE MBEREFER

REik

MR2020F12A31H AEBEMRE B EEYW X
MR HIZR & M WA EARR B il = 8 A 2 &K F B 1E 4
B AR ¥344186,8828 7T ' 82019F 12 A31A A A

e —

R#355(81,1278 0 T [£2.94% °

=p/A

AEBHAZTENMBECK BREBHETEKERE -
BILEBERE  HORNTFETERR MEEE SR -
FR EEEENZARNBITELELER EB
FENFT7.375%E7.85% 2 IR EEN TR AF
HIZ NFEH - R R2020F7A ROAEBERERN Y
BRI TRBEBAAREIBITHNAFHRRRES
EMEA K B6.5% 83 TIHAIMERIREEH QA
RIFEAREE BEHBEMBRRARA -

M2020F12A31H  AEBMRIT R EMER A F
BEHEURBEREHRTES LA ARKGE38IESITIET
(ERETEFUAREEETIREME - BIEHERS
RMERTEMEFEER) REAF LA1479% o F
BEERAAFNET 19% 8202096 A30H K7.22%
TPREO.03FEE N B FH—FANEHER B ARE188
88,3758 7L  (h 1B & L1 529.55% IR EL (3]
eRBEEEY XRHBERVBARBAE=MEA
IR TR 2 BFIBR A —FREIEIET) £1.83

fio

[=]

Annual Report 2020 FH 61



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE SRR D (8)

Details of new indebtedness: HEBS:
Public/ Principal Coupon

Issuer Type Private Amount  Maturity Rate  Credit Rating

BTA L] AE/RE FESE IHER ZERNE FEIR

Yuzhou Group Holdings Company Offshore senior notes Public US$645 milion  Six years 7.375% B1/BB-/BB
Limited

BNEBZERERAT BIMBERE N 645fEXT 6F

Yuzhou Group Holdings Company Offshore senior notes Public US$400 milion  Five years 7.7% B1/BB-
Limited

BNEBZERERAT FIMER R N MEET  5F

Yuzhou Group Holdings Company Offshore senior notes Public US$300 milion  Six years 7.85% B1/BB-
Limited

BNEBEZERERAT BIMBERE NE SEET 6%

Xiamen Yuzhou Grand Future Real Onshore corporate bond  Private RMB1,500 million  Five years 6.5% N/A
Estate Development Company
Limited

Ef&NERMEREERAR BANEME i AR5 5% NEH

Xiamen Yuzhou Grand Future Real Onshore corporate bond  Private RMB1,500 million  Five years 6.5% N/A
Estate Development Company
Limited

ERSNEEREREEBR AR BANEIE N AREI5ET 5% NEH
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

NET GEARING RATIO

As of December 31, 2020, the Group’s net gearing ratio (calculated
as the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, corporate
bonds and senior notes less cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash and non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of over
three months and then divided by total equity) was 85.80%.

As at December 31, 2020, the Group provided guarantees to
banks amounting to RMB16,429.49 million (December 31, 2019:
RMB16,967.36 million) in respect of mortgage facilities granted
to certain purchasers of the Group’s properties. The amounts
of guarantee to banks and other lenders by the Group in terms
of facilities awarded to joint ventures and associates were
RMB6,637.56 million (December 31, 2019: RMB10,020.30 million)
and RMB1,040.33 million (December 31, 2019: RMB2,398.29
million), respectively.

CURRENCY RISK

As of December 31, 2020, the Group had total borrowings,
corporate bonds and senior notes of approximately RMB63,899.71
million, approximately 39.13% was denominated in RMB and
60.87% was denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States
dollars.

The proportions of bank and other borrowings, corporate bonds,
senior notes and cash balance of the Group in terms of the
currencies are as follows:
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Bank and other
borrowings,
corporate bonds, and

senior notes balance Cash balance*

RITRHAMER
AFESH-
BREBELH BEde

(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AR®FIT) (AR®ETIT)
HK$ S 1,265,420 525,193
RMB AR 25,002,481 28,619,636
Uss$ ETT 37,631,807 5,323,897
Others Hith - 90
Total &5 63,899,708 34,468,816

*

Including restricted cash and non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of over three months
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BEE SRR D (8)

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SYSTEM

The Group actively pushed forward and improved the IT level of the
Group, built a management + IT management and control system,
improved the independent planning and design capability of IT,
and adhered to the use of technology to empower enterprises so
as to comprehensively raise the operating efficiency and quality.
During the year, the Group focused on building information-based
projects in three areas, namely, “decision-making with evidence,
business empowerment and technology innovation”. In terms
of decision-making with evidence, the Group planned to build
an operation decision-making platform and oriented to business
objectives to support the dynamic monitoring and analysis of
all-cycle data from pre-investment to post-investment so as
to ensure the achievement of operating income objectives. In
terms of business empowerment, the core business process of
the real estate industry was managed through the system, and
saleable resources management, marketing 4212, marketing fee
control, financial intelligent POS (Point of Sale) collection, online
performance evaluation of bidding and procurement, online system
collaboration for cost, customer service platform, online house
inspection and other projects were built. In addition, the Group
relied on information-based means to continuously optimize
the process of the rights and responsibilities to ensure efficient
operation. In terms of scientific and technological innovation, the
Group has gradually explored frontier scientific and technological
application to focus on the customer system of “house purchasers,
resident households and commercial tenants”, establish a variety
of customer operation service platform and business applet
to improve service quality and efficiency, enhance customer
satisfaction, explore the digital operation system of major members
and build core competitiveness.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

HUMAN RESOURCES

With the achievement of the Group’s contracted sales target
of RMB100 billion, the nationwide footprint and the in-depth
cultivation of regions, the Group further consolidated the “2 + 3”
management and control system and carried out unified planning
for organizational development based on regional and urban
development characteristics. It defined the planning path and
the specific conditions of fission (upgrading/downgrading) of
organizations. During the year, the Group settled in Shenzhen
headquarter, launched Shanghai-Shenzhen dual headquarters
strategy, further strengthened the all-round talent recruitment and
training plan, and improved the full coverage of outstanding talents.
At the same time, the Group further streamlined the respective
positioning of the Group, regions, cities and projects, clarified the
three major positioning of the Group as the cloud platform, regions
and cities as the middle office and projects as the front office,
and empowered downward based on their respective roles and
positioning, further moving down in terms of the organizational
structure, configuration standards and decision-making authority,
so as to greatly improve the management efficiency through
scientific authorization.

During the year, the Group officially launched the employee Share
Award Scheme — “Yuzhou Share Award Scheme”, which will
allocate no more than 10% of the issued share capital for employee
incentive. The employees who participate in the Share Award
Scheme mainly cover middle-to-high level personnel, outstanding
employees and key business members of the Company. It is also
the most extensive and most motivating Share Award Scheme
since the listing of the Group. It will benefit the establishment and
improvement of the development sharing mechanism between
employees and shareholders, further improving and enhancing
the level of corporate governance, strengthening the cohesion
of employees and the competitiveness of the Company, fully
stimulating the enthusiasm and creativity of employees, and
promoting the long-term, sustainable and healthy development of
the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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The Group has always attached great importance to staff care and
growth. In 2020, the Group streamlined the existing activities of
staff care and growth systematically and formulated “the employee
care programs”, covering employees at all levels of the Group,
such as the induction training, excellent staff seminars, Yuzhou
Fluorescent night running sprint for 40 days, “Learn with a constant
perseverance and application” training sessions, celebration
and social events, which promotes the rapid integration of new
staff, enhances the loyalty of the old staff, effectively spreads
the corporate culture of the Company. Since the outbreak of
COVID-19, the Group paid immediate attention to the physical and
mental health of employees, organized employees returned to work
in accordance with the relevant government requirements, collected
information of newly returned employees, purchased epidemic
prevention materials, measured the temperature of employees
and disinfected public areas every day, issued guidelines on
epidemic prevention in time, and held a series of lectures on
mental health for employees. A variety of initiatives reflect the
Group’s in-depth implementation of the values of “responsibility,
accountability, achievement and sharing”, and further promote the
Group’s continuously rapid development so as to mark another
achievement in 2021.

As at December 31, 2020, the Group had 7,537 staff in total (2019:
7,572).

PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of the final dividend of
HK21.5 cents per share for the year ended December 31, 2020
to eligible shareholders (the “Eligible Shareholders”) whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company (the “Register
of Members”) on June 21, 2021 (the “Record Date”), subject to the
approval of shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (“AGM”) which will be held on May 28, 2021.

The proposed final dividend will be payable wholly in form of new
fully paid shares of the Company (the “Scrip Shares”) in lieu of cash
(the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Scrip Dividend Scheme is subject to The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited granting the listing of and permission to deal in
the Scrip Shares to be issued pursuant thereto.

A circular giving full details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme together
with the relevant form of election will be sent to the Eligible
Shareholders on or around June 29, 2021. It is expected that the
Final Dividend warrants or share certificates for the Scrip Shares
will be despatched to the Eligible Shareholders on or around
July 28, 2021.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be
held on May 28, 2021 and the notice of AGM will be published
and despatched to the shareholders in due course. In order
to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM,
the Register of Members will be closed from May 25, 2021 to
May 28, 2021, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. All transfer documents of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
May 24, 2021.

The proposed final dividend will be paid on or about July 28, 2021.
For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend,
the Register of Members will be closed from June 17, 2021 to
June 21, 2021, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement to
the proposed final dividend, all transfer documents of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
June 16, 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE SRR D (8)

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

On August 5, 2020, the Company announced that a tender offer
was being made (the “2021 Notes Tender Offer”) to purchase for
cash outstanding 6.375% senior notes due 2021 in the aggregate
principal amount of US$375,000,000 (the “2021 Notes”) prior to
maturity. The 2021 Notes Tender Offer expired at 4:00 p.m. London
Time, on August 12, 2020. The Company had accepted for
purchase all the 2021 Notes in an aggregate principal amount of
US$54,853,000 validly tendered at or prior to the aforementioned
expiration deadline. The 2021 Notes Tender Offer was completed
on August 14, 2020. The Company had completed the repurchase
of an aggregate principal amount of US$54,853,000 of the 2021
Notes, representing 14.63% of the outstanding principal amount
of US$375,000,000 prior to the 2021 Notes Tender Offer. The
repurchased 2021 Notes had been cancelled. After cancellation of
the repurchased 2021 Notes, the aggregate outstanding principal
amount of the 2021 Notes is US$320,147,000. For details of the
repurchase, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated August 5, 2020, August 13, 2020, August 14, 2020
respectively.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities during the year.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SHARE DEALINGS

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct on Directors’
Securities Transactions (the “Securities Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standards set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listing Issuers contained
in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the requirements
set out in the Securities Code throughout the year ended
December 31, 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board and the management of the Group are committed
to the maintenance of good corporate governance practices
and procedures. The corporate governance principles of the
Group emphasize a quality Board, sound internal controls, and
transparency and accountability to all shareholders.

During the year, the Group adopted, applied and complied with
the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
except for the following deviation:

Code provision A2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Lam Lung On has been assuming
the roles of both the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
2012. Although these two roles

are performed by the same individual, certain responsibilities are

of the Group since January 1,

shared with Executive Directors to balance power and authority.
In addition, all major decisions are made in consultation with
members of the Board as well as senior management. The Board
has three Independent Non-executive Directors who offer different
independent perspectives. Therefore, the Board is of the view that
there are adequate balances of power and safeguards in place.
The Board will review and monitor the situation on a regular basis
and ensure that the present structure will not impair the balance of
power in the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Board announced that on January 22, 2020, the Company
had granted share options under its share option scheme adopted
on May 24, 2010 to certain directors of the Company and certain
employees of the Group which entitled the grantees to subscribe
for an aggregate of 64,208,000 new shares of HK$0.10 each in
the share capital of the Company at the exercise price per share of
HK$4.274.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE SRR D (8)

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES AND PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2021, there are still many uncertain and
unsteady factors under politics, economy, diplomacy and
COVID-19 in the international environment. While the domestic
economy recovers steadily after resuming work and production,
uneven and insufficient development of economic structure still
needs to be focused on, and the dynamic balance between
epidemic prevention and economic development will become
a material issue in the coming period. In terms of the macro
economy, it is expected that the Central Government will continue
to implement various measures for completing and improving
domestic circulation, stimulating the domestic potential demand;
meanwhile, the Central Government will actively support the
development of the real economy, reduces the actual finance costs
from society and continues to enforce prudent monetary policy
focusing on keeping balance among stable growth, structural
adjustments, risk prevention and inflation control. As for the real
estate market, it is expected that the related policies will remain
stable, the long-term management mechanism of real estate
finance will continue to be accelerated to establish, and the
supervision of real estate finance will continue to be strengthened
as well as avoiding excessive financialization so as to defuse
systemic financial risks. In terms of policies, with the publication of
“Proposals of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of
China on Formulating the Fourteenth Five-Year Plan for National
Economic and Social Development and the Long-term Goals for
2035 (KPP AREARGIERRSEMGTEHRE T HER
FHREMN-_ZT=-RAFES=BEZNEZ) ), which proposed the
philosophy “Following the principal of houses are for living instead
of speculation. Encourage both housing purchase and renting,
city-specific policies and advance steady and healthy development
of the real estate market”, its basic stance is consistent in
regulatory of real estate market in the past few years. Thus it can
be seen that in the next few years, the overall real estate market
regulatory policies in PRC will keep on being consistent and
stable under “houses are for living instead of speculation”, further
implement the policy of “city-specific policies” and strengthen
the principal responsibility of urban governments. Under the
policies of “stabilizing land price, housing price and expectation”
regulatory policies, whereas restrictions on purchases, loans and
sales may all be implemented as the long term property control
tools. In respect of the land market, it is expected to maintain
stable at a low level since the end of 2020. Certain cities may
begin to loosen their phased control according to the “city-specific
policies” policy. However, it is a general tendency that the overall
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

land market is relatively tight. Especially under the premise that
the financial regulatory environment on real estate is expected to
be tight for a long time, enterprises will be more cautious in the
land acquisition in 2021 and the popular lands with high-quality
will continue to be warm-welcome in the competitive market. Real
estate enterprises with long-term steady cash flow, diversified and
smooth financing channels and qualified indicators will rationally
in a better opportunity to replenish their land reserves. Meanwhile,
rigid demand and upgrade requirements in the housing market
in the core cities of hot areas remain very stable, which make the
national real estate enterprises with wider business layout in these
areas enjoying more advantages and space of adjustments.

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 at the beginning of 2020, the CPC
Central Committee and governments at all levels attached great
importance and adopted a comprehensive emergency response
plan to control COVID-19. People all over the country united as one
and worked closely together to prevent the spread of the epidemic.
The Group also actively responded to the call and immediately
set up the “Combat Epidemic Special Fund” (J1ZEEIBE S ) of
RMB15 million and supported local epidemic prevention in various
ways. Although China’s real estate market is still under pressure
caused by COVID-19 in 2020, China’s epidemic prevention and
control, as well as research & development of vaccines are in the
optimal state during this century of great changes in the world, and
China’s economic recovery and market development are bound
to become the main driving force to lead the world economic
recovery. The management remains confident about China’s
economic growth and the health, steady and orderly development
of the real estate industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE SRR D (8)

Since its establishment in 1994, based on its prudent development
philosophy, Yuzhou Group carries out its business in line with the
development trend of the real estate market in China, facilitates
the steady and healthy development of the market and contributes
to the urbanization development of multiple regions. As for its
development strategy, the Group will continue to adopt the
“Leading with Locality Development” strategy and expand its
presence in six major metropolitan areas as well as tier-1 and
tier-2 cities. The Group also actively responded to the Outline of
the Yangtze River Delta Regional Integrated Development Plan ( &
AR —EEREREMME) and Outline of the Greater Bay
Area Development Plan (288 KX Z[E#ZRREME) and made
contribution to the new national urbanization. The Group will further
improve its product strength and development quality and promote
the deepening of the industry for steady development after the
contracted sales target of RMB100 billion.

In respect of investment and land acquisition, Yuzhou Group will
continue to pursue prudent development, to control costs, and to
maintain its strategy that comprises merger and acquisition, public
bidding and auctions, land acquisition by industry cooperation,
project cooperative development etc.. The Group will continue
to chase the high-quality land parcels with relatively low costs to
lay a solid foundation for Yuzhou's steady development after the
contracted sales target of RMB100 billion.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

In respect of financing and capital market, Yuzhou Group will
identify more diversified and stable financing channels. It will
maintain good relationships with international and domestic capital
market participants and keep sensitive to the capital market so as
to seize the best opportunities. In 2020, based on the long-term
and active debt management in the past, Yuzhou followed up
with international leading trend of green environmental protection.
During the year, Yuzhou issued Green US$ Bond for the first time
in the history, which not only reduced the financing costs, but had
also been oversubscribed by nearly 10 times globally. It also further
optimized its debt structure and extended the debt duration, which
was widely recognized by the capital market. In the future, Yuzhou
will further develop domestic financing channels and synergize
construction loans, equity financing, corporate bonds, US$ bonds,
syndicated loans and green bonds on the basis of ensuring stable
operations. Meanwhile, Yuzhou will continue to closely monitor
market liquidity and explore new financing opportunities in line with
the changes in the market and policies. Yuzhou Group, on the one
hand, will have adequate financial resources to support its rapid
growth, on the other hand, will further reduce its finance cost and
improve the risk resistance capacity.

By refining its standards and combining effective management
system, Yuzhou Group has always committed to ensuring the
successful launch of its projects to improve efficiency of the
development. In recent years, Yuzhou has vigorously committed to
adopting a business model that favors sustainable development,
integrating advanced and sustainable technologies such as
green technology and green assembly into the full life cycle of the
product, meeting the needs of market consumption upgrading
and building a community that integrates human beings and
nature in a harmonious way. In order to continuously improve
the competitiveness and brand influences of its residential
projects, in terms of product innovation, Yuzhou will continue
to develop and promote its three product lines in 2021, namely
Royale, Langham and Honor. Besides, Yuzhou will optimize the
standard configuration and classification in product research and
development system, and conduct in-depth research of the five
professional standardization manuals of architecture, landscape,
refined decoration, electromechanical product and structure,
to ensure the effective support of the closed loop and rapid
implementation of development. Meanwhile, Yuzhou actively
cooperates with professional scientific research institutions to
facilitate the development of green buildings and ecological
communities, and promote the application of green environmental
protection technologies such as BIM technology, fabricated
buildings, sponge cities, and air quality monitoring in accordance
with local conditions, promoting Yuzhou’s projects to a higher level.
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BEE SRR D (8)

As for its reserve of talents, in the face of higher-level development
in the future, the corresponding talent supporting facilities are also
required to be upgraded after successfully achieving the contracted
sales target of RMB100 billion. Looking forward, the Group, on
the one hand, will further upgrade its talent strategy, strategically
introduce talents in the industry, and continuously train endogenous
talents to ensure that the right people are selected, used, and
retained, as well as platforms and opportunities would be provided
for outstanding talents who realize their own value in Yuzhou. On
the other hand, the Group will proactively create spiritual resources
for corporate development, enhance the abilities of management
personnel and launch specific training programs to enhance the
cohesion of the Group through integrating family-state ideal,
incorruptible atmosphere with corporate culture. In addition, the
Group will further optimize its organizational structure. According
to its strategic development plan, the Group will further adjust its
management positioning and duties between the headquarters,
regional companies and its subsidiaries in various cities and
establish a resources integration mechanism to provide support for
its rapid business expansion in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group will strictly adhere to
its philosophy of “Maintaining Steady Operation and Creating Value”
in developing comfortable housing for customers in a sincere and
devoted manner. While creating projects with high standards, the
Group will also fulfill its social responsibilities as a corporate citizen
by participating in educational, environmental protection and public
welfare projects as well as other charitable activities. As a result,
Yuzhou has been recognized by MSCI at the BBB rating, which
demonstrates its significant contributions in social responsibility.

In the future, Yuzhou will, as always, adhere to the spirit of “Building
Cities with Heart, Building Homes with Love”, firmly follow its
goal of “Developing Products, Optimizing Services and Improving
Operations”, and pay much attention to the products and services
by retaining talents, enhancing financing and refining management
to maintain high-quality growth. Based on the belief of “Provide
Highly Competitive Products and Sincere Services”, firmly follow
the principle of “Combatant Spirit, Aggressive Innovation, Prompt
Action, Family-state Ideal, Incorruptible Atmosphere”, and
actively seize market opportunities to ensure healthy and strong
development of the Company. Staying true to the founding mission
and moving forward with honor, the Group will continue to create
value for shareholders, customers, employees and the whole
society, and continue to make steady progress towards creating
another new record.
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XIAMEN E P9

1 Yuzhou Overseas City
B o EEB R

2 Yuzhou Shuilian Manor
Ml o AKEILFE

3 Yuzhou Hai Tian Plaza
FM e BRES

4 Yuzhou Harbour City
=M o SEIE I

5 Yuzhou New City
NI

6 Yuzhou Garden
SMNEE

7 Yuzhou Galaxy Garden
Bl e 2MER

8 Yuzhou New Manor
BN A

9 Yuzhou World Trade Center
BN e EE

10  Yuzhou Golden Seacoast
Bl e EB/EEF

11 Yuzhou University City
EM o REIH

12 Yuzhou Castle above City
=M o 3k £

13 Yuzhou Sunshine City
&M o B5 R TEH

14 Yuzhou Golf
=) RPN

15 Yuzhou Shoreline
Bl e BB

16 Yuzhou Cloud Top
International
BN o ETEEIMR

17 Yuzhou Plaza
&MNES

18  Yuzhou Central Coast
BN o HERE

19  Yuzhou Lucca Town
BN o EF/NE

20  Yuzhou Haicang Vanke City
BN o HRERI

21 Yuzhou Riverside City Town
BN o SR IZ i 3k



22

23

24

25

26

27

Yuzhou Wyndham Grand
Plaza Royale Hotel

Bl e AEBZEEREXEE
Yuzhou Chunjiang Central
BN o F TP

Yuzhou Jingyue City
BRI o IREA A

Yuzhou East Coast Langham
BN o« REFME

Xiamen Yuzhou Xiang’an
Project

EFEMN e ARIER
Xiamen Yuzhou Tong’an
Project

EFIEM e B%IEHE

FUZHOU &M

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

Yuzhou Gushan No. One
FoMl o B —5%
Yuzhou Cambridge Town
FoMl o BIFEEZE
Yuzhou Oriental Venice
Bl e R A ELEHT
Yuzhou Radiance Central
Mansion

EMNeEBE

Yuzhou Joy Center
oM o BB AL
Yuzhou Langham Bay

Yuzhou Resplendent
Wonderland
BN e BEEET L)
Yuzhou CeONE
BN e EHE

QUANZHOU R |

36

37

38

Yuzhou City Plaza

Bl e W ES

Yuzhou Honor Mansion
Bl e ZEM

Yuzhou Honor Promenade

Bl e ZEBAE

Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

ZHANGZHOU & )i

39

40

41

Yuzhou Coastal Mansion
BN« EERE

Yuzhou Yongjiang Mansion
BN o LT

Yuzhou Castle above City

B o 35 L3

Zhangzhou Yuzhou Zhangpu

Project
EMBM e FHIER

LONGYAN &S

43

Yuzhou Castle above City
B o 3 L3

SHANGHAI ti&

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

Yuzhou Jingiao International
BN o SIBEIR

Yuzhou Plaza

BMNES

Yuzhou Commercial Plaza
BN e BEES

Yuzhou City Plaza
BN o BT ES

Yuzhou Bustling Center

B e EHE

Yuzhou Beautiful Garden Life
Bl THE

Yuzhou Noble Mansion
BMl e BB

Yuzhou Dongtan Grace
Mansion

Bl o BERE

Yuzhou Country

BN

Yuzhou Jinmao Residence
BN e &R

Yuzhou Luxury Mansion
BN o ZEIRAT

Yuzhou Modern Mansion
Bl e Bl E S

Yuzhou Glorious Mansion
B e RIFBEN

EERTHBEHNE @

57  Shanghai Yuzhou Jinshan
Project
EigEMe 21ILIER

58  Shanghai Yuzhou Fengxian
Project
LEBEMNeEEEA

HEFEI &AL

59  Yuzhou Skyline
Tl e Ri%

60  Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire
=M o I5HER

61  Yuzhou Town
=00 b

62  Yuzhou Royal Seal
BN e RE

63  Yuzhou Central Town
oM o FR S

64  Yuzhou Sky Aqua Mall
EoM e KoM

65  Yuzhou Central Plaza
Bl o HRES

66  Yuzhou Langxi Community
Bl e BBELEE

67  Yuzhou Jade Green Bay
=M o BEIRE

68  Yuzhou Galaxy Park
&M o $R50 Park

69  Yuzhou Moon Lake Mansion
BMl o KA

70  Yuzhou Academical Spring
BN o BirER

71 Yuzhou Honor Mansion
BN o EERAT

72 Yuzhou Orchid Garden
=N KR

73 Yuzhou Times Life Hight
BN e B EZE

74 Yuzhou The Splendid Era
BN REEE

75  Yuzhou Town of Sky
BN o MB R

76  Yuzhou Oriental Mansion
BMe ZBRE

77  Hefei Yuzhou Xinzhan05

Project
SIEEM o #u5051H B
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

ERRTHBEHRE @

BENGBU Fig8

78

Yuzhou Prince Lakeshire

BN o BE FHIER

BOZHOU =)

79

Yuzhou Champion Mansion

BN« BFHMTA

NANJING R

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

Yuzhou The Jiqging

BN FTEE

Yuzhou Moon Riverside
BN e BLAE L

Yuzhou Lakeside
BN o B E

Yuzhou Redsun The Times
BN o BARZ B R ENR
Yuzhou Redsun The Spring
Bl o ARG BE L F B
Yuzhou King’s Garden
TN e EMEHE

Yuzhou Hechang Golden East
EMeMESHRA
Yuzhou Honor Galaxy
Bl ZEES

Yuzhou Jinling Langham
Bl e SFEEE

Yuzhou Cofco Metropolitan 09
Bl o g E =09
Yuzhou Ping Lake Mansion
Bl o TR

Yuzhou Ease Mansion
BN e EEBRER

Yuzhou C&D Center Manor
Tl e B LR

Yuzhou Upper East Side
Garden

Bl e ERBRIT

Yuzhou Mountain Fairyland

BN o #H LR R

SUZHOU &k I

95

96

Yuzhou Honor Hill
Bl e EE L
Yuzhou Honor Promenade

BN e mERE

97  Yuzhou Honor Galaxy
Bl ZEES

98  Yuzhou Zhaoshang The
Absolute
Bl e BERETLEER

99  Yuzhou Royale Aqua Mansion
Bl e FERT

100 Yuzhou Blue Seasons
BNl o FHEEMMZE

101 Yuzhou Metropolitan Lights
Sl e HE 2K

102 Yuzhou Royal Mansion
BN o BN F

103 Yuzhou Rocker Park
BNl BRAE

104  Yuzhou Oak Manor
BN o NS

105 Yuzhou Genius Leading
Bl e LB

106 Suzhou Yuzhou Baimajian60
Project
&IMNBEMN » B FE601E B

107 Yuzhou Immortal Seasons
Bl e ERME

108 Suzhou Yuzhou Wuzhong
Project
BINEMe RPIERE

109 Suzhou Yuzhou Taicang

Project
EMBEINe KEIEAE

WUXI # 5

110 Yuzhou Park Land
BMe ATNE

111 Yuzhou Trees Villa
B« RAZHE

112  Yuzhou Master Mansion

BN o R

CHANGZHOU &M
113 Yuzhou Chenyue Monde

BN e =B
YANGZHOU 29

114  Yuzhou Honor Promenade
BNl e ZERE

78 EMWEEEBRAMAT  Yuzhou Group Holdings Company Limited

115 Yuzhou Presedential Palace
Sl e EIE T

116 Yuzhou Kingdom Mansion
BN e ST ILER

117 Yuzhou The Grand Canal
BN e AT

XUZHOU #RIN

118 Yuzhou Lakeside Langham
BN o BIHRAE

HANGZHOU #i /W

119 Yuzhou Polaris Mansion
BN e BEIR AT

120 Yuzhou Lakeside Langham
Tl e SHEAEE

121 Yuzhou Wanglin Mansion
oMl o EMAT

JINHUA £

122  Yuzhou Future Everbright
BN e MR E
123 Yuzhou Mansion

RIMAF

SHAOXING #3
124  Yuzhou Yinyue Mansion

BN o ENHLAT

NINGBO £ &

125 Yuzhou Luna Sea Mansion
BN e EEBARF

126 Yuzhou Jade Mansion
=M e BATAMT

ZHOUSHAN 3L
127 Yuzhou Majestic Mansion

BN e &R

BEIJING It R

128 Yuzhou Langham Bay
B e BIER

129 Beijing Yuzhou Beishi Project
tm&EMe L EIER



TIANJIN X2

130

131

132

133

134

135

136

137

138

139

Yuzhou Royal Lakeshire
BN o 15 AR

Yuzhou Palace Mansion
FM e B

Yuzhou Joy Mansion
=M o BiAT

Yuzhou Lianfa Red Shire
oM o B EEATED

Yuzhou Blissed Mansion
Bl e EXTE

Yuzhou Poetic Dwelling
BN e HIE

Canal New Town
ey

Tianjin Yuzhou 07 Project
KiZHM 0718 B

Tianjin Yuzhou 08 Project
KEZH M <0818 B
Yuzhou Riverside Mansion
TN e MZFET

TANGSHAN E

140

141

142

Yuzhou Fengnan New Town
BN o EREIFT

Yuzhou Phoenix Mansion
Bl o BUE T

Yuzhou Phoenix City

=N e BEE

QINGDAO &8

143

144

145

146

Yuzhou Art Wonderland
BN e £HthTILER
Yuzhou Langham Mansion
FMl o BAFE AT

Yuzhou Langham Bay

B o IR

Yuzhou Beyond the Sea
Bl e RELES

SHIJIAZHUANG B R iF

147

Yuzhou Honor Hill
B o BB

Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

SHENYANG EB

148 Shenyang Yuzhou Sujiatun
Project
EIEEMN e BRRTEIHE
149 Yuzhou Plaza
BMES

WUHAN K ZE

150 Yuzhou Langham City Land
Bl e BAETE

151  Wuhan Yuzhou Jingkai Project
EUERIMN « KFAEE

152  Yuzhou Lingjiao River No. One
B o 2 A3 — 5%

153 Yuzhou Silo City
BN o BB

ZHENGZHOU E )i

154  Yuzhou Honor Promenade
Bl e ZEEE

155  Yuzhou West City Garden
BN o LS

KAIFENG FR %Y
156 Yuzhou Honor Mansion

B o BERH

XINXIANG ¥7 %8

157 Yuzhou Honor Century
BMleZEBLAT

HONG KONG &7E

158 Yuzhou Upper Central
Bl e BEIHE

SHENZHEN Z&JI|

159 Yuzhou Plaza
BMES

160 Shenzhen Urban

Redevelopment Project
FIYNE T EHTIEE

ZHUHAI %8

161 Zhuhai Urban Redevelopment
Project
B BRI R

EERTHBEHNE @

HUIZHOU /i

162

163

164

Yuzhou Wujing The Scenery
BN e ALK KE
Yuzhou Langjoy Garden
Sl o A TEE

Huizhou Urban
Redevelopment Project

EME T EHIRE

FOSHAN #8LL

165

166

167

168

169

Yuzhou Langham Bay

B e BIER

Yuzhou Langorchid

BN o BA

Yuzhou Langshine Mansion
Ml « BAREZE

Yuzhou Sunrises

BN e BB

Yuzhou Coastal Garden

BN e HBRE

ZHONGSHAN (1]

170

Yuzhou Lang Garden

Bl e BIRTEER

CHONGQING EE

171

172

173

174

Yuzhou Redsun Joy Mansion
RN o SARZ BT B AT

Yuzhou Luxury Mansion
BN o R AT

Yuzhou Langham Mansion
BN o BAEHESE

Yuzhou The Explorer

Bl e BEX

CHENGDU 5% &R

175

176

177

Yuzhou Splendid Mansion
Sl e LA EE

Yuzhou Honor Country
Bl e FE LA

Yuzhou Peaceful Country

B e 2 LA
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

ERRTHBEHRE @

YUZHOU RESIDENTIAL PROJECTS HIGHLIGHTS
BMEETEE B

1. Suzhou Yuzhou Genius Leading

80 FmMAEE B BARA

FRINEE N o LWERE

PROJECT DESCRIPTION & B f£7

Site Area + 1 75
76,552 sq.m. 5%

Total Saleable GFA #27A] & j2 28 [H 15
99,518 sq.m. £75%

Unit Type P :
126-310 sq.m. £5%

Architectural forms Z25&FZ 28
Stacked villas, bungalows

BE ¥
Geographical Environment/Location Advantages: HWEBRE,BAIES:
The project is located at the intersection of Longchi Road and Huashan T8 B i 72 &k M 11 & 37 [ B8t B B2 | 1) B <2
Road in Suzhou Hi-Tech District, which is only one hill away from @ hBESHEEN B ©E &

major commercial complexes such as Longfor, Green Ridge, Golden
Eagle and Matro in Hi-Tech District as well as Shishan Commercial
and Financial Center, where there are numerous headquarters of major
banks. The project is located at the exit of Heshan tunnel, which is
currently open to traffic, and it only takes 10 minutes to reach Shishan
Central Business District (“CBD”). The project is adjacent to the southern
Tianping Mountain Baimajian, a 4A tourist scenic spot, with a superior
natural environment. It is 6 kilometers away from the Hi-Tech District
government and 8 kilometers away from the municipal government. The
project is easily accessed by the whole city of Suzhou along the Taihu
Avenue-Central district.

Project Highlights

The project focuses on low-density ecological settlements with a plot
ratio as low as 1.01, creating benchmark upgrading products. The
design of the house layout satisfies living comfort to the greatest extent.
The house has a large day-lighting surface and a high window-wall
ratio to ensure an excellent day-lighting view. Residents may open the
window to enjoy the beautiful scenery of mountains and rivers. The
project is scarce with excellent product capacity.

Honor Received HERIR:

e | ondon Design Awards 2020 — Nomination Award, Aesthetics Vogue
Award — Ultimate Architectural Design Award, Kinpan Award — Best
Pre-sale Property Award, Top 5 of Landscape Construction Capacity
of China’s Real Estate Companies

% Yuzhou Group Holdings Company Limited

%ﬁﬁé@ﬁ%ﬁéﬁf%&%ﬁﬁiﬁébuﬁﬂx
BRLEESRPOE—ILZR A
BRI ER DR BATRRES@EE 10
DEREMLPREGE B AR
B S RARIRE SR B2aARRRE
- 5 B S TR BUF6 .~ B o BB BT BRAT8

A AAARIE — PR AEZEEN 2 -

ICISEY N
HEXTEZEERETE AEERE
101 TEREREEMR - PERFTHEX
BEREEEEFEN HEBATCEA
aEmEmLL  REBENRABERBR
HERILKES ELWMERERTI®R -

* 202018 BARET K EEIR & 88 - XM SR
BEARTESE oREREEEER
B PhEESSEHEE HTop 5




Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

EERTHBEHNE @

2. Shanghai Yuzhou Glorious Mansion

LigsE

o RIZEKIR

PROJECT DESCRIPTION & B f£7

Site Area + i 75
29,912 sq.m. 5%

Total Saleable GFA #2A] & j2 2L [H 15
65,807 sq.m. £5%

Unit Type P :
75-92 sq.m. 5%

Architectural forms ZEEEHAE :
High-rise residential building, bungalows

SEEE *&E

Geographical Environment/Location Advantages

The project is located at Jinhui Town of Fengxian District, being adjacent
to the downtown, and enjoying the triple urban development benefits
of the new areas in the Free Trade Zone, Beauty Valley and Fengxian
Binjiang. It has superior transportation conditions, with a one vertical
and five horizontal three-dimensional traffic network connecting to the
whole city, being close to Shanghai’s first Bus Rapid Transit (“BRT”),
connecting with Metro Line 8, directly accessing to Qiantan and
People’s Square. The project is surrounded by numerous schools and
abundant medical facilities. A number of large commercial complexes
cater to residents’ everyday needs. Residents can enjoy the prosperous
and glamorous life brought by the development of the city.

Project Highlights

The facade of the project adopts a modern architectural style. The whole
appearance of the building highlights the dignified and magnificent style
through traditional symmetry and three-section proportion. The top of
the building was improved in accordance with the modern and elegant
style of Yu Garden and City God’s Temple. The decorative elements in
the middle part of the building were interpreted in modern ways to form
standardized metal decorative elements. These factors have added
flexibility to the building’s overall style while keeping solemn.

Honor Received HEREIR:

e 2020 Brand Value Property, 2020 Quality Property, 2020 China Quality
Property - Shanghai, 2020 Model Property

BRE BUBR:
1@@1\1%%%@@&%%@?@%?
BEMR TEEXA FBATL =—SHm
BEAF — M AEIER %i B

BRI B E R AR R BRI
HENM ARBES LESFERN B

RERELE %fl?&*”?ﬁ%ﬁ?é%@ﬁﬁ
ARfE EBEEXHMBERTRNEE
?ij i/—é °

BHES:

B MEETERANERAELERE
@S BB EG A AT E = BRI L]
o SR SR SN RO T2 R I BRI HE AR, o IR 2R
) TE # 45K B8 T [ A 95k B2 o ) 3 A L T L AR
ETTHR BEPROKMHBARER
FERER WREELSBENBIT R
BREERRNORABERBRTERATER-

* 2020 € MIEBEER 20205 & mE
B 20200 EHR B R EEE - £F-
20204 E BB &
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

ERRTHBEHRE @

YUZHOU RESIDENTIAL PROJECTS HIGHLIGHTS
BMEETEE &

3. Zhongshan Yuzhou Lang Garden

PSS « BBRTEE
PROJECT DESCRIPTION I8 R 71
Site Area b 7& :

90,501 sq.m. 75

Total Saleable GFA #27] & E M A
271,502 sq.m. 5%

Unit Type FAU:
89-127 sq.m. £5%

Architectural forms S AE
Bungalows

*E

Geographical Environment/Location Advantages

The project is located at the intersection of Huizhan East Road and
Gangyi Road in Zhongshan Torch Development Zone, and is about 6
kilometers away from the Shenzhen-Zhongshan Bridge. It is located
in the center of Torch Development Zone, which ranks first in terms
of Gross Domestic Product (“‘GDP”) in Zhongshan and is a high-tech
industry gathering place. It is adjacent to the International Convention
and Exhibition Center covering an area of 210,000 square meters in
the west, and residents can enjoy the 240-acre Deneng Lake Park in
the south and the prosperous business circle of Sun City in the east. It
is surrounded by several provincial first-class schools covering all age
groups, and guarded by an adjacent Class AAA hospital.

Project Highlights

The project is a milestone of living benchmark built with great efforts.
The team has spared no cost to build a garden with “layers of forests
and six realms of time”, with 24-hour butler service of the property
management team as the supporting service. The owners can enjoy the
superior quality of life services. It is a core quality project in the central
area of the city.

82 BEMEEERARAT  Yuzhou Group Holdings Company Limited

HEBRE BB :

HEBEMRF I AERE RS R RSN ER
RIER  BEEEARPBBLONE KR AJER
BEPOME RPUTEANEERLES —
BEFRESM BB BE2E T 5K
M EFR & R T 0 - Fi8 A IRE240M K0 15 525
NE RELEAGHEEDE - ZME R
BRRE 2RBREE  —FRBRPOTE-

ISP X
HEHRENITENABEREERE Z(F
BB AZEN (BRI NE]
o EREYMEEEBEF24/EERBORS
XTEERRAETERGME  EWAREZ
DamERE-



Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

EERTHBEHNE @

4. Chengdu Yuzhou Peaceful Country

RERBIM « 2T

PROJECT DESCRIPTION & B f&i /1

Site Area 13 I 15 :
16,174 sqm. £5%

Total Saleable GFA 42 0] &2 L MR
32,348 sq.m. £5%

Unit Type FAU:
155-199 sq.m. £5%

Architectural forms Z25EFZAE :
High-rise residential building
BEEE

Geographical Environment/Location Advantages

The project is located at the intersection of Chenglong Avenue and
Jingyi Road in Jinjiang District, Chengdu, with convenient transportation.
It includes a “four horizontal and two vertical” three-dimensional
transportation network, which provides convenient access to the
entire city. While enjoying the four major quality supporting facilities
(transportation, commerce, education and health care), it is also one
street away from Jinjiang Greenway, the world’s largest ecological belt.

Project Highlights

The project takes the style of Wei and Jin Dynasties as the core and
Chengdu elements as the vein, and integrates a great view of Chengdu’s
mountains and rivers into one garden, creating the only “Aesthetic
Living Garden of Wei and Jin Celebrities” in Chengdu. The whole garden
presents a landscape pattern of “Three Gardens, Seven Realms and
Eighteen scenes”. The architectural design extracts the concept of
“courtyards” from the traditional Chinese architectural space language,
and the overall C-shaped semi-enclosed layout creates a courtyard-
style landscape space. Every building faces the atrium, maximizing the
utilization of east-west landscape view.

Honor Received HRERIR:

e 2020 High Quality Model Residential Project, 2020 Popular Property,
2020 Influential Property, 2020 Model Residential Property

HIBRE BB

T8 B AL RKER T 87T (R A RE A 8 B AR IR BE X
PE BT AR E PR TR AL S8 B
B EEEBERNEZTXOABERESR
RERE (3B X HE BER) H2XR
BRRIRM ARSI TAE — 2R -

BER/®:
HENLRERE RAZ KT R AR
AR LA KB HE — [ - 4T 2R AR — [ 3%
BRMXBLEEAMN EMERER=F
TtETNARINEBERF - BERFETERE
MEEERES PHERT [Ek] R &8
BECFHFEAMB 2&EH —EFEAN
SBER - EROBPPHEPTE AN
RATRARRERLR-

2020 mE AEHEIHE - 2020F E A
RER - 2020F E 2 NHIEH  2020F
EAEHREER
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

ERRTHBEHRE @

YUZHOU RESIDENTIAL PROJECTS HIGHLIGHTS
BIMEEHE BE

5. Chonggqing Yuzhou The Explorer
EEFRM » FBR
PROJECT DESCRIPTION & B f&i /1

Site Area 3 I 15 :
151,329 sq.m. £33

Total Saleable GFA #27] & E M A
226,994 sq.m. 5%

Unit Type FAU:
76-129 sq.m. 5%

Architectural forms ZZ25EZAE :
Stacked villas, bungalows

BE 5

Geographical Environment/Location Advantages WERE BUBS:

The project is located in the core area of the Western Science City of BEHMREEAIRSHZ L E HBERS
Chongging, which is directly governed by the Hi-Tech District and is ¥R EEEE BN EEAEEEBEILE -
the backbone of the westward development of Chongaing. The project HERSABHEZEALHELHE HE -
gathers high-quality education from Daxuecheng, commercial and EEZRARE BREFHE B 2B Bt
medical facilities, as well as other mature facilities within 5 kilometers, S #8%6 -

and is also adjacent to planned educational land and park land.

Project Highlights RER:

The project includes rare low-density villas in the area, occupying the [EBIZATAIZEMNEFERIER GFE2
core of Science City and University City, and is committed to building a i M AEH I B RITER £ FL 2
more ecological, safer and more intelligent livable place. BEENERE M-

84 BWEBMEBAMRAT  Yuzhou Group Holdings Company Limited
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6. Hangzhou Yuzhou Wanglin Mansion

MBI o 2T

PROJECT DESCRIPTION & B f&i /1

Site Area 13 I 15 :
75,068 sq.m. £5%

Total Saleable GFA 42 0] &2 L MR
187,670 sq.m. 5%

Unit Type FAU:
95-180 sq.m. £5%

Architectural forms ZEZEF5E :
High-rise residential building, bungalows

BEEE *¥5E

Geographical Environment/Location Advantages

The project is located in Xiangfu Town, Gongshu District, Hangzhou,
with complete commercial, medical and educational facilities, including
Wanda Plaza, Xinglan Primary School and Integrative Medicine Hospital.
The project is 0.5 kilometer away from the International Convention and
Exhibition Center Station of Metro Line 10, and provides easy access
to downtown in 30 minutes through the Liushi viaduct and Shangtang
viaduct, via convenient transportation.

Project Highlights

The design of the project is simple, elegant and full of modern senses. It
puts forward the characteristic installation of art shows and cloud walk.
Through the form of grids, both interior and exterior form the fusion
of virtual and reality, so as to reveal the interior. The whole project has
both the values of modern visual beauty and artisan craftsmanship,
reflecting the past and future of Wulin, as well as showing the innovative
imagination, and redefining the city in a fashion-conscious context.

Honor Received RERIR:

e 2020 Most Popular Property, 2020 High Quality Upgrading Property,
Hangzhou Real Estate Golden Fox Award — the Most Valuable
Collection Property, 2020 Model Residential Property

MEBREBAEZR:

T8 B AL AN T B BT [ R AR R RS
¥ BE YELREE2 AEEEERS:
ERNE RABLEEBRS  ANENEA
BRIt REALE 2 - 75 B PR i105%
BREBEREPOMOSAE AIBBEASE.
EESFE0NEREET RO RBERE-

BER®:

HERTEEEARERNR +0EBRRRK &
HTEMBEAREREFNEERE B
BRMOTER - AINEKEERE KA
ShE-THEBRBABRAREXBMEME
ETEMNEEEE R HEMABEER
KR ARBEFNEGR T BEHERE
WMIETHN—RBEE -

° 20205 fE ARIEE - 2020F ERZE W
B AN E S M 2 S B E S
B 2020F E AR LSRR
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

FBRIMERERS &)
Average Land
Project Site Area Location Cost per GFA  Address
EH THER B THEEMBE it
(sq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(FFK) (/F5K)
Completed Projects £ 5 T8 H
Yuzhou Overseas City 27,703 Xiamen 830  North of the Junction of Hexiang West Road and Hubin West
Sl o BB R EFM Road, Siming District
BB R R 7 K B 7R R A2 X P b fAl
Yuzhou Shuilian Manor 12,909 Xiamen 910  West of Jinshang Road North
B e KEILHE &= B ERAE R
Yuzhou Hai Tian Plaza 6,316 Xiamen 396  Xiagang Yongfugong, Siming District
Bl o BRES &P BHREBKES
Yuzhou Harbour City 20,089 Xiamen 761 Hubin North Road, Siming District
BN o B E I =T BHRREILE
Yuzhou New City 25,610 Xiamen 647  Haotou, Dongdu, Huli District
SIME &P B R ERHE
Yuzhou Garden 27,345 Xiamen 586  Jinshang Road, Huli District
SIMIEE EF9 R RS W
Yuzhou Galaxy Garden 26,367 Xiamen 1,718  Fanghu, Huli District
Sl e 2IMIEE & 5 22 [ A
Yuzhou New Manor 45,619 Xiamen 493 No.414-417, Nanshan Road, Huli District
B EFS AR ILFR414-4175%
Yuzhou World Trade Center 19,454 Xiamen 845  No.75, Xiahe Road
Sl o & ER 755
Yuzhou Golden Seacoast 70,793 Xiamen 1,590  West of Xinggang Road, Haicang District
Bl e ZERERF & 78R L B A
Yuzhou University City 90,750 Xiamen 932  Tongji Road, Xike Town, Tong'an District
EVIEWN- 2] & [l %2 (& 75 14] A [F] 6% 5%
Yuzhou Castle above City 52,715 Xiamen 1,267  Fanghu, Huli District
BN o 3 EH & YR i
Yuzhou Sunshine City 22,868 Xiamen 1,301 North of Wulv Road, West of Tongsheng Road,
Sl o B HAEW EFM Tong'an Industrial Zone
R TEEFRRFBREICE - F&EEA
Yuzhou Golf 55,986 Xiamen 1,165  Maging Road, Haicang District
EVIRNST P EF9 BREFER
Yuzhou Shoreline 107,622 Xiamen 3,560  Area of 05-11, East of Xinggang Road and North of Jiaosong
SBilll e ) EF Road, Haicang District
BREs-11R R BEUBRIAR - AEHKNIL
Yuzhou Cloud Top International 15,652 Xiamen 3,174 South of Liangian West Road, West of Yunding Central Road,
BN o ZTAFER EF Siming District
BHREEnAEEAA STEREEMN
Yuzhou Plaza 3,333 Xiamen 2,417 North of Minggong Building, Hubin South Road,
BMNES EM Siming District

BRENEEELEAEILA

86 BHWAEMBEBRAMAT  Yuzhou Group Holdings Company Limited



Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

EHERITMEERE &)
Total Sold Saleable GFA Total Unsold Saleable GFA
REEEREEE BAEER
Sold and
Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Total Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for Investment Land Interestin Attributable
Total GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale Only Only Reserve the Project GFA
2 2 AF ES
HEEEE HACEEHR CREEE AREERE AREERE HEHE BERE tHFE Eidhk BEER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) % (sq.m.)
(FHEK)  (FFXK)  (FAEXK)  (FHK) (FAK)  (FFXK)  (FEHK)  (FHK) %  (EFHXK)
236,745 235,644 235,644 - 1,101 - 1,101 1,101 100% 1,101
27,325 27,325 27,325 - - - - - 100% -
64,575 63,359 63,359 - 1,216 355 861 1,216 100% 1,216
186,013 186,013 186,013 - - - - - 100% -
90,770 87,144 87,144 - 3,626 262 3,364 3,626 100% 3,626
92,119 90,042 89,753 289 2,077 385 1,692 2,366 100% 2,366
91,689 91,463 91,463 - 226 226 - 226 100% 226
118,652 118,590 118,590 - 62 62 - 62 100% 62
182,640 133,049 131,874 1,175 49,591 491 49,100 50,766 100% 50,766
226,679 195,029 189,152 5,877 31,650 - 31,650 37,527 100% 37,527
467,112 459,833 444,821 15,012 7,279 183 7,096 22,291 100% 22,291
232,200 229,442 168,788 60,654 2,758 - 2,758 63,412 100% 63,412
72,257 72,216 59,559 12,657 41 4 - 12,698 100% 12,698
114,574 112,902 90,515 22,387 1,672 1,672 - 24,059 100% 24,059
421,321 404,218 334,873 69,345 17,103 2,703 14,400 86,448 100% 86,448
71,214 52,708 48,482 4,226 18,506 - 18,506 22,732 100% 22,732
57,861 - - - 57,861 - 57,861 57,861 100% 57,861
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

FHERITMEREEE @
Average Land
Project Site Area Location Cost per GFA  Address
EH T EE B THEEMBE it
(sq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(FFK) (/5 K)
Yuzhou Central Coast 123,240 Xiamen 2,225  Area of 11-10, East of Xingbin Road and North of Xingdong
B o AER EF Road, Jimei District
EEB1-10FBRBBRRMA AREM
Yuzhou Lucca Town 54,323 Xiamen 12,059  Southeast of the junction of Xiyan Road and Honggian Central
Bl e EFRE EF Road, Xiang'an District
AREAEER AR P BRI X AREHA
Haicang Vanke City 189,752 Xiamen 2,652  Northwest of the Intersection with Wengjiao Road and
SN o A BRI EF Xinyang Bridge, Haicang District
BRERS AKERGABIX O A
Yuzhou Riverside City Town 284,414 Xiamen 1,566 Area of 12-07, North of Movie & TV City, South Wuxian Area,
BN o EIR H I &= Tong'an District
R%@12-07 L A B &R il
Yuzhou Wyndham Grand Plaza 60,018 Xiamen 1,175  South of Huandao East Road, East of Huli Avenue,
Royale Hotel EFT Huli District
BN REBZEREREE MEBRERBAR BERBUER
Yuzhou Honor Promenade 17,473 Quanzhou 3,071  East of Nan’an District, Xiamei Town * Nan’an
Bl e ZERE FM MAREXRE ELEmEAR
Yuzhou Coastal Mansion 37,774 Zhangzhou 10,801  East of 99 Wanhe Road, North of Xinpudong Road,
Bl e EERE EN 99 Wan Area of Longwen District
EXEATAERE W ETERA FEREA
Yuzhou Yongjiang Mansion 38,808  Zhangzhou 10,797  South of Ruijing Road, North of Jiangbin Road,
Bl e LT EM Xiabei Area of the West of Laocheng District,
ZWARTRE IR AR DEKEIL
Yuzhou Castle above City 100,878 Longyan 1,858  East of Lianzhuang Road, Xinluo District
S o 5 3 BEE 7 AT B R A
Yuzhou Gushan No. One 234,160 Fuzhou 1,762  Niushan Village, Yangli, Gushan Town, Jin’an District
M o B0 —5% &M Bl EF 24U
Yuzhou Cambridge Town 54,507 Fuzhou 4,256 North of Wenbi East Road, West of Qiming Middle School,
Bl o RIBESE = Lianjiang County
BB XERBEIM BAT27EA
Yuzhou Radiance Central 45,128 Fuzhou 12,590  South of Minjiang Avenue and North of South Nan’erhuan
Mansion &N Road, Yantai Area, Cangshan District
Bile2ER ALEERLAE BIXBEE BRI
Yuzhou Joy Center 11,645 Fuzhou 11,5637 South of Aofeng Road, Straits Financial Business Region,
Sl o Tt &M Tajjiang District
BIREERER FREHEHE
Yuzhou Langham Bay 26,557 Fuzhou 9,558  East of Mindu Xingjinwan, Jianping Village, Shangjie Town
B o BRI & =0 FHERTAN  HEERERM
Yuzhou Jingiao International 49,738 Shanghai 1,242 No.333 Jingang Road, Pudong New District
Bl e RIEER g RS £ 8 1K3335%
Yuzhou Plaza 6,818 Shanghai 2,620 299 Jingang Road, Pudong New District
B ES g THRAE © B 2995
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

EHERITMEERE &)
Total Sold Saleable GFA Total Unsold Saleable GFA
REEEREERE BAEER
Sold and
Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Total Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for Investment Land Interestin Attributable
Total GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale Only Only Reserve the Project GFA
2 2 AF ES
HELEE ACEERE CREEE AXEEE #AXEEE HBEHE BHERE 1#HFEE #zbh BEEEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) % (sq.m.)
(FHEK)  (FEFXK)  (FAEXK)  (FHK)  (FEAHK)  (FFXK)  (FHK)  (FHXK) %  (EFXK)
615,331 590,178 558,844 31,334 25,153 153 25,000 56,487 100% 56,487
136,000 133,698 117,486 16,212 2,302 2,302 - 18,514 100% 18,514
570,229 570,020 570,020 - 209 209 - 209 20% 42
559,276 478,776 445,584 33,192 80,500 - 80,500 113,692 100% 113,692
102,142 - - - 102,142 - 102,142 102,142 80% 81,714
52,419 52,419 20,866 31,553 - - - 31,553 100% 31,553
94,434 83,604 27,653 55,951 10,830 10,830 - 66,781 51% 33,724
116,425 109,790 - 109,790 6,635 6,635 - 116,425 51% 59,377
322,930 308,330 301,917 6,413 14,600 - 14,600 21,013 100% 21,013
83,075 82,751 80,191 2,560 324 324 - 2,884 100% 2,884
136,268 134,981 133,457 1,624 1,287 1,287 - 2,811 100% 2,811
137,409 137,409 92,284 45,125 - - - 45,125 66% 29,783
37,270 37,270 26,104 11,166 - - - 11,166 20% 2,233
58,491 58,491 32,093 26,398 - - - 26,398 100% 26,398
230,955 197,105 173,406 23,699 33,850 1,135 32,715 57,549 100% 57,549
28,624 - - - 28,624 - 28,624 28,624 100% 28,624

Annual Report 2020 4E-# 89



Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

FBRIMERERS &)
Average Land
Project Site Area Location Cost per GFA  Address
EH T EE B THEEMBE it
(sq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(FFK) (/5 K)
Yuzhou Commercial Plaza 40,911 Shanghai 2,119 No 9868 Hunan Road, Nanhui Industrial Park,
EVIRESES- uis) Pudong New District
HIRHTR I ME T X R IE A #E98685%
Yuzhou City Plaza 50,628 Shanghai 1,445  Site A0403, College Community, Lin’gang New Town
B e W T ES g FR B 5T B B/ NE A04031 3
Yuzhou Bustling Center 55,017 Shanghai 10,405  East of Liuhu Road, North of Huancheng Road,
Bl e EHE st Jvyuan New District, Jiading District
5% 0F 5 5 B B 1 WA B DA SR - BRI BK DA b
Yuzhou Beautiful Garden Life 31,139 Shanghai 9,099  East of Chengliu Road, West of Chuangxi Road,
Bie THE £E Xuhang Town, Juyuan New District, Jiading District
REHENERITERARERA  AIEKER
Yuzhou Noble Mansion 109,266 Shanghai 13,242  East of Daye Road, South of Puxing Road,
Bl e EBT s East of Xianpu Road, Jinhui Town, Fengxian District
ZECEARERRRAEE RBEA - BHKRE
Yuzhou Dongtan Grace Mansion 54,052 Shanghai 19,233  Beichen Road, Chenijia Town, Chongming District
Bl e k%R s SHRERFER R
Yuzhou Country 41,262 Shanghai 28,972  South of Yinchun Road and West of Fuguo Road,
ST b= Magjiao Town, Minhang District
BIfTE BB HIB AR AR  ZSEEUAA
Yuzhou Skyline 446,757 Hefei 388  Northeast of Jihua Road, West of Songlin Road,
2N e K1E =y Ranfang Vilage, Taohua Town, Feixi County
FEFE SR Bk TE R I At BIRE SR B ARMBR AT
Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire 95,978 Hefei 1,755  East of Ziyun Road, South of Feicui Road, Taohua Town,
BN o F52RBED A Feixi County
PEFE S IE R ERRIAR - BRI
Yuzhou Town 36,387 Hefei 3,900  North of Yangtze River West Road, West of Fanwa Road,
i &I Shushan District
IR RITERE AL B IAT
Yuzhou Royal Seal 156,667 Hefei 2,825  South of Fanhua Avenue, West of Taishan Road,
2N e KE =y Taohua Town, Feixi County
PEFE Sk FE SR S 2 KB VAR - SR I BE AT
Yuzhou Central Town 97,467 Hefei 4,255 Intersection of New Bengbu Road and Wuliu Avenue,
Bl o AR &P Xinzhan District
S 04 2 B 9 4 R R R R A X
Yuzhou Sky Aqua Mall 49,126 Hefei 4,379  Southeast of the Junction of Wuliu Road and New Bengbu
Sl e KWK &I Road, Xinzhan District
MR NEENERERINAREA
Yuzhou Jade Green Bay 23,705 Hefei 12,121 South of Xin'anjiang Road and West of Yueliangwan Park,
=il o B E & Longgang Plate, Yaohai District
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

EHERITMEERE &)
Total Sold Saleable GFA Total Unsold Saleable GFA
REEEREERE BAEER
Sold and
Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Total Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for Investment Land Interestin Attributable
Total GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale Only Only Reserve the Project GFA
2 2 AF ES
HELEE ACEERE CREEE AXEEE #AXEEE HBEHE BHERE 1#HFEE #zbh BEEEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) % (sq.m.)
(FHEK)  (FEFXK)  (FAEXK)  (FHK)  (FEAHK)  (FFXK)  (FHK)  (FHXK) %  (EFXK)
123,413 93,897 80,666 13,231 29,516 3,665 25,851 42,747 100% 42,747
98,494 53,844 18,930 34,914 44,650 9,373 35,277 79,564 100% 79,564
126,540 124,700 112,147 12,553 1,840 1,840 - 14,393 100% 14,393
56,051 56,051 51,535 4,516 - - - 4,516 100% 4,516
174,826 172,961 155,902 17,059 1,865 1,865 - 18,924 100% 18,924
54,593 47,273 26,786 20,487 7,320 7,320 - 27,807 80% 22,246
90,776 89,558 64,473 25,085 1,218 1,218 - 26,303 40% 10,521
1,187,376 1,090,076 1,074,073 16,003 97,300 - 97,300 113,303 100% 113,303
287,934 287,934 265,322 22,612 - - - 22,612 100% 22,612
109,160 103,071 91,829 11,242 6,089 4,305 1,784 17,331 51% 8,842
470,000 469,670 461,255 8,415 330 330 - 8,745 100% 8,745
343,608 343,608 295,297 48,311 - - - 48,311 75% 36,214
159,852 151,597 95,829 55,768 8,255 8,255 - 64,023 100% 64,023
59,263 59,263 - 59,263 - - - 59,263 20% 11,853
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

FBRIMERERS &)
Average Land
Project Site Area Location Cost per GFA  Address
EH T EE B THEEMBE it
(sq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(FFK) (/5 K)
Yuzhou Moon Lake Mansion 56,114 Hefei 11,086  North of Tianshi Road and West of Kaifu Road,
=l o EHA & Shushan Economic Development District
BB ERRMEAL  FARE AR
Yuzhou Champion Mansion 63,011 Bozhou 2,506  South of Longshan Road, East of Tianjinggong Road,
BN e BHMITIT =20 North of Jinxiu Avenue, Guoyang County
RISGRILEAA RE=HREQ - BELE]L
Yuzhou The Jiging 41,494 Nanjing 16,657  West of Fengtai South Road, North of Xinglong Street,
Bl HEE i Yuhuatai District
Mt RE AN EE AL A
Yuzhou Moon Riverside 17,199 Nanjing 13,567  Shangiao Street, North of Qinhuai New River, Yuhuatai District
Sl o B AR 1L BR MitaBEREE FEMTILH
Yuzhou Lakeside 52,763 Nanjing 3,473  East of Jingsan Road, South of Weiliu Road, Binjiang
Bl e BHE E Development Zone, Jiangning District
TEBETIRBEEL=RIAR BB ARDR
Yuzhou Redsun The Times 61,145 Nanjing 3,665  West of Jingsan Road, South of Weiliu Road,
Bl o SLF5 R ENR AR Binjiang Development Zone, Jiangning District
TEETHEEE=IEAT - B KA
Yuzhou Redsun The Spring 32,246 Nanjing 13,645  Chunhua Street, High-Tech zone, Northwest of Jiangning
Bl o sLF5E A AR District
TEEFEIASHIEZ L EE
Yuzhou King’s Garden 28,257 Nanjing 12,684  North of Shengtai Road, East of Shengtai 14 Road,
Bl e SEHE En Binjiang Development Zone, Jiangning District
TEBTRMEERB AR AL BA T AR
Yuzhou Hechang Golden East 66,267 Nanjing 11,242 Chunhua Street, High-Tech zone, Northwest of Jiangning
Sl e ME&HER I District
TERPILEISEZCEE
Yuzhou Honor Hill 100,839 Suzhou 8,866 Intersection of Zhenshan Road and Zhenbei Road,
Bl e &L RN Tong'an Town, Hi-Tech District
EHERTERIIREEILERR
Yuzhou Honor Promenade 32,339 Suzhou 9,393  South of Taiyang Road, West of Yaoche River, Wangting Town
Bl e ZERE EM E=HEAGRE EEAR
Yuzhou Honor Galaxy 29,141 Suzhou 7,706 South of Wangting Commercial Plaza, East of Yuting Fazhi
BMeZERES RN Wenhua Park, Xiangcheng District
B REFEHERESNE B 58 L RAENUR
Yuzhou Royale Aqua Mansion 63,504 Suzhou 12,942 North of Huxi Second Road, East of Tiangiandang Green
Bl e FEET ERN Area, West City of Shengze Town, Wujiang District
RIIRBZEFABIMN  PEZBEUAIL - HATER(E AR
Yuzhou Royal Mansion 42,481 Suzhou 13,500  Xushuguan Old Town, Hi-Tech District
BN o BT B A AR EREE
Yuzhou Future Everbright 61,030 Jinhua 7,555  South of Yuequan Road, East of Zhongshan Road
B e FWEE S FILBELAZR - AR B AR
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

EHERITMEERE &)
Total Sold Saleable GFA Total Unsold Saleable GFA
REEEREERE BAEER
Sold and
Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Total Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for Investment Land Interestin Attributable
Total GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale Only Only Reserve the Project GFA
2 2 AF ES
HELEE ACEERE CREEE AXEEE #AXEEE HBEHE BHERE 1#HFEE #zbh BEEEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) % (sq.m.)
(FHEK)  (FEFXK)  (FAEXK)  (FHK)  (FEAHK)  (FFXK)  (FHK)  (FHXK) %  (EFXK)
100,981 100,981 88,380 12,601 - - - 12,601 100% 12,601
113,400 112,264 80,817 31,447 1,136 1,136 - 32,583 50% 16,292
112,865 109,471 106,776 2,695 3,394 3,394 - 6,089 100% 6,089
30,957 30,957 30,772 185 - - - 185 100% 185
122,376 121,435 115,564 5,871 941 941 - 6,812 51% 3,474
136,434 136,434 136,315 119 - - - 119 51% 61
64,492 64,492 62,345 2,147 - - - 2,147 51% 1,084
79,626 79,626 59,645 19,981 - - - 19,981 40% 7,992
132,534 130,883 - 130,883 1,651 1,651 - 132,634 9% 11,265
221,847 221,847 212,813 9,034 - - - 9,034 100% 9,034
51,742 51,742 19,474 32,268 - - - 32,268 66% 21,203
63,328 60,675 38,264 22,411 2,653 2,653 - 25,064 51% 12,783
66,679 66,679 16,451 50,228 - - - 50,228 51% 25,616
76,466 76,466 52,816 23,650 - - - 23,650 20% 4,730
122,060 120,867 72,943 47,924 1,193 1,193 - 49,117 34% 16,700
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

FHERITHEERE )
Average Land
Project Site Area Location Cost per GFA  Address
HE THEE vE FIHEEME it
(sq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(FFK) (t/FFHK)
Yuzhou Royal Lakeshire 109,090 Tianjin 1,035  East of Tuanbo Avenue, South of Duliujian River South Road,
=M o AR RE West part of Tuanbo New Town, Jinghai District
58 @ BT P R R K AR BRI
Yuzhou Palace Mansion 135,173 Tianjin 1,060  South of Beihua Road, East of Guihua Chunxi Avenue,
Bl e BfF RiE Jinghai New Town
FEMILERREA REFRERA
Yuzhou Joy Mansion 42,387 Tianjin 4,427  Tanggu New City, Binhai New District
Sl o 1T KA VB TS B FT
Yuzhou Lianfa Red Shire 90,756 Tianjin 7,047 South of Binhai Park, Zhangjiawo Town, Xiging District
M o B BHAT AR RiE AERRREHEFLEEA
Yuzhou Art Wonderland 36,386 Qingdao 6,892  East of Jiangshan South Road, North of Guihua Road,
@M e 2T ILES 55 Huangdao District
R TILEERR REBKIL
Yuzhou Plaza - Shenyang 1,600  Hunnan District
SIMNE% et EE R
Yuzhou Lingjiao River No. One - Wuhan 1,600  Jianghan District
Sl e Z AR5 Rz TER
Yuzhou Silo City - Wuhan 1,600  Dongxihu District
BN o FRI £ REHNE
Yuzhou Coastal Garden - Foshan 1,600  Chancheng District
Sl e B ERE i BHR
Yuzhou Plaza - Shenzhen 19,500  Keyuan North Road, Nanshan District
BIMES 3l AR R B
Yuzhou Upper Central 278 Hong Kong 135,140 48 Caine Road, Central, Hong Kong Island
il o E23EIE A BB BB B iB485%
Yuzhou Redsun Joy Mansion 14,785  Chongaing 1,347  University Area of Shapingba District, Bishan District
S o ARG BT AT 5B BINE - REDITEHER KRB
Sub-total 4,431,411 4,095
Nt
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

EHERITMEERE &)
Total Sold Saleable GFA Total Unsold Saleable GFA
REEEREERE BAEER
Sold and
Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Total Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for Investment Land Interestin Attributable
Total GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale Only Only Reserve the Project GFA
2 2 AF ES
HELEE ACEERE CREEE AXEEE #AXEEE HBEHE BHERE 1#HFEE #zbh BEEEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) % (sq.m.)
(FHEK)  (FEFXK)  (FAEXK)  (FHK)  (FEAHK)  (FFXK)  (FHK)  (FHXK) %  (EFXK)
134,424 134,424 133,475 949 - - - 949 100% 949
319,836 309,827 265,591 44,236 10,009 10,009 - 54,245 100% 54,245
76,805 75,750 72,556 3,194 1,055 1,055 - 4,249 49% 2,082
99,332 97,817 97,616 201 1,515 1,515 - 1,716 40% 686
102,899 102,899 62,543 40,356 - - - 40,356 50% 20,178
177,609 175,406 79,000 96,406 2,203 2,203 - 98,609 100% 98,609
72,119 69,822 8,390 61,432 2,297 2,297 - 63,729 100% 63,729
195,067 188,171 50,175 137,996 6,896 6,896 - 144,892 100% 144,892
23,849 22,852 7,259 15,593 997 997 - 16,590 100% 16,590
51,281 - - - 51,281 - 51,281 51,281 90% 46,153
2,214 - - - 2,214 - 2,214 2,214 100% 2,214
53,816 50,202 40,350 9,852 3,614 3,614 - 13,466 51% 6,868
12,181,948 11,389,291 9,651,634 1,737,657 792,657 106,980 685,677 2,530,314 2,017,596
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

FBRIMERERS &)
Average Land
Project Site Area Location Cost per GFA  Address
EH T EE B THEEMBE it
(sq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(FFK) (/5 K)
Projects Under Development £ E B
Yuzhou Chunjiang Central 70,109 Xiamen 8,979  South of the Junction of Xinglin North Road and Xingjin Road,
Bl e BLEMW =P Jimei District
SEEEAMIBRABERZ X AR
Yuzhou Jingyue City 42,656 Xiamen 32,825  East of Anren Avenue, West of Xuefu Road, North of Guankou
=il o BB EF Middle School, West area of Guankou East, Jimei District
EZREORBER ROABUE SHHUE
 LETRT
Yuzhou East Coast Langham 54,164 Xiamen 14,208  West of Binhai Lvyou Road, East of Binhai West Avenue,
Bl o RERAE =P Core Region of Tong’an New Town
RZHzL R BERERIARE BBAREBUR
Xiamen Yuzhou Xiang'an Project 8,264 Xiamen 3,013 Intersection of Xiang’an Avenue and Xiang'an West Road,
EPIBil e BIZIEE B Southern part of Xiang'an New Town
ALEHAHIEAL BRI LAEBER XA
Yuzhou City Plaza 428,188 Quanzhou 301 South New Zone of Hui'an County
B e WmES FM BERBWANE
Yuzhou Honor Mansion 56,146 Quanzhou 1,603  Guangiaozhen, Anxi County, Nanxin District
Bl e B FM BMRLTERERIE
Yuzhou Castle above City 100,057  Zhangzhou 4,275  South of Zhanghua Central Road, West of Lianke harbour,
SRl o 45 L3 BN Xiangcheng District
R R EE B P B AR - EREE T
Yuzhou Oriental Venice 706,397 Fuzhou 2,840  Longjiang Village, Chengmen Town, Cangshan District
BN e RABEM =0 A& P E T
Yuzhou Resplendent Wonderland 30,423 Fuzhou 7,608  Xinzhou Village of Shangjie Town
B o BEZITIL &M EEEMA
Yuzhou CeONE 38,232 Fuzhou 14,497  Adjacent to the Nan’erhuan Road, Jiangbin Avenue,
Bl e EE &N Jiangnan Road in Jiangnan CBD, Cangshan District
AR TFECBDM R ST IR ARG  EIEE
Yuzhou Jinmao Residence 80,620 Shanghai 21,093  Huaxin Town, Qingpu District
Sl e AN g BHEENA
Yuzhou Luxury Mansion 56,048 Shanghai 15,003  Jinhui Town, Fengxian District
B o TR AT i ZEERESR
Yuzhou Modern Mansion 50,350 Shanghai 16,758  Nangiao Town, Fengxian District
Bl e B e g Z B[R EpHA
Yuzhou Glorious Mansion 29,912 Shanghai 15,000  Jinhui Town, Fengxian District
B o RIFEM i ZEERESR
Yuzhou Central Plaza 279,535 Hefei 1,421 South of Changjiang East Road, East of Liaoyuan Road,
Bl e HRES Al East Urban District
REWERITIRER BERER
Yuzhou Langxi Community 93,956 Hefei 10,170  East of Langxi Road and North of Minghuang Road,
BN ELE e Longgang Plate, Yaohai District

EBRERRABDER AR HERIAL
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

EHERITMEERE &)
Total Sold Saleable GFA Total Unsold Saleable GFA
REEEREERE BAEER
Sold and
Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Total Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for Investment Land Interestin Attributable
Total GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale Only Only Reserve the Project GFA
2 2 AF ES
HELEE ACEERE CREEE AXEEE #AXEEE HBEHE BHERE 1#HFEE #zbh BEEEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) % (sq.m.)
(FHEK)  (FEFXK)  (FAEXK)  (FHK)  (FEAHK)  (FFXK)  (FHK)  (FHXK) %  (EFXK)
305,160 219,440 197,476 21,964 85,720 720 85,000 107,684 51% 54,919
85,300 72,824 - 72,824 12,476 12,476 - 85,300 51% 43,503
168,354 114,477 - 114,477 53,877 53,877 - 168,354 33% 55,557
89,300 - - - 89,300 - 89,300 89,300 100% 89,300
1,775,866 1,593,290 916,794 676,496 182,576 23,856 158,720 859,072 100% 859,072
140,365 138,342 25,246 113,096 2,023 2,023 - 115,119 100% 115,119
255,000 188,294 - 188,294 66,706 66,706 - 255,000 100% 255,000
550,462 526,434 451,342 75,092 24,028 8,295 15,733 99,120 100% 99,120
106,480 88,132 - 88,132 18,348 18,348 - 106,480 35% 37,268
85,257 71,099 - 71,099 14,158 14,158 - 85,257 61% 52,007
145,119 100,290 - 100,290 44,829 24,149 20,680 145,119 50% 72,737
123,306 71,180 - 71,180 52,126 33,630 18,496 123,306 100% 123,306
80,560 51,425 - 51,425 29,135 17,051 12,084 80,560 50% 40,280
65,807 34,347 - 34,347 31,460 21,589 9,871 65,807 51% 33,562
918,698 714,907 549,010 165,897 203,791 103,791 100,000 369,688 65% 240,297
234,889 217,116 - 217,116 17,773 17,773 - 234,889 20% 46,978
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

FBRIMERERS &)
Average Land
Project Site Area Location Cost per GFA  Address
EH THEE B THEEMBE it
(sq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(FFK) (/5 K)
Yuzhou Galaxy Park 119,023 Hefei 3,353  Southeast of the Junction of Xiaocheng Road and Wuliu
@M o $A Park & Avenue, Xinzhan District
FURFEREENRAEIXORE L
Yuzhou Academical Spring 86,012 Hefei 5,416 North of Xuelin Road, East of Zhangheng Road,
Bl e ENERE &P High-Tech Zone
bR B AL REEIAR
Yuzhou Honor Mansion 117,428 Hefei 12,177 North of Shexian Road, West of Beijing Road, Baohe District
B o FERT & B 5 SR SR B& DAL - b R B AT
Yuzhou Orchid Garden 102,047 Hefei 15,691  Central axis of Shengfu Area of Binhu New District
Bl e HE & BT E B TR %
Yuzhou Times Life Hight 122,634 Hefei 11,739  East of Likou Road, South of Longchuan Road, Baohe District
Sl e KHEZ & Bn [ EE )| BE AR - JE O R A BR
Yuzhou The Splendid Era 49,268 Hefei 12,915  North of Nanjing Road, East of Huashan Road,
Bl e BAEE e Binhu New District
BWATRERE AL EILEUE
Yuzhou Town of Sky 107,147 Hefei 1,719  Guanting Town, Feixi County
B o MR & ERGE =H
Yuzhou Oriental Mansion 73,848 Hefei 4,950  West of Qiaotouji Road, South of Heping Road,
BN ZERA & Cuozhen Town, Feidong County
PE SR SR IR S SRR SR SR BR DA - M P BE AR
Yuzhou Prince Lakeshire 199,067 Bengbu 631  Intersection of Longhu West Road and Gongyuan South
BN o BETIHED 315} Road, Economic Development District
KEREEEIRRANEFERRER
Yuzhou Honor Galaxy 14,221 Nanjing 11,610  South of Jiangquan Road and West of Xichun Road,
EMeZEES AR Tiexin Qiao Road, Southwest of Yuhuatai Scenic Area
MEEARSEAEDEOBEHEIRENE AEKAA
Yuzhou Jinling Langham 94,667 Nanjing 3,873  Southwest of Jurong City
Bl e &I AR CESEEL
Yuzhou Cofco Metropolitan 09 37,798 Nanjing 7,035  South of Airport Road, East of Zhongling North Road,
Bl e hiEHE09 i Lishui District
BRKERGRAA BEILEUR
Yuzhou Ping Lake Mansion 102,787 Nanjing 4,010  Interchange of Hubin Avenue and Lizhi Road, Chunxi Street,
M e LRI AR Gaochun District
mERFRATENE NS B
Yuzhou Ease Mansion 188,420 Nanjing 3,641  Interchange of Beiling Road and Shuiyangjiang Road,
Bl e &IXRE AR Chunxi Street, Gaochun District
mZ R RATEIL AR KBIE
Yuzhou C&D Center Manor 73,277 Nanjing 7,847  Chengnan Area, Lishui District
Bl e BB RE AR BKRAERE REGFRE BERTAE:
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

EHERITMEERE &)
Total Sold Saleable GFA Total Unsold Saleable GFA
REEEREERE BAEER
Sold and
Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Total Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for Investment Land Interestin Attributable
Total GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale Only Only Reserve the Project GFA
2 2 AF ES
HELEE ACEERE CREEE AXEEE #AXEEE HBEHE BHERE 1#HFEE #zbh BEEEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) % (sq.m.)
(FHEK)  (FEFXK)  (FAEXK)  (FHK)  (FEAHK)  (FFXK)  (FHK)  (FHXK) %  (EFXK)
543,075 484,492 186,006 298,486 58,583 58,583 - 357,069 100% 357,069
154,822 145,382 - 145,382 9,440 9,440 - 154,822 33% 51,091
224,188 153,123 - 153,123 71,065 71,065 - 224,188 34% 76,224
222,463 162,486 - 162,486 59,977 59,977 - 222,463 50% 111,232
244,445 142,948 - 142,948 101,497 101,497 - 244,445 40% 97,778
103,370 98,688 - 98,688 4,682 4,682 - 103,370 40% 41,348
144,249 57,620 - 57,620 86,629 86,629 - 144,249 51% 73,567
147,696 21,287 - 21,287 126,409 126,409 - 147,696 100% 147,696
994,227 926,819 482,352 444 467 67,408 67,408 - 511,875 100% 511,875
61,152 55,485 33,655 21,830 5,667 5,667 - 27,497 100% 27,497
182,307 158,010 - 158,010 24,297 24,297 - 182,307 100% 182,307
83,157 80,966 29,510 51,456 2,191 2,191 - 53,647 20% 10,729
143,901 111,662 - 111,662 32,239 32,239 - 143,901 35% 50,365
266,923 190,554 - 190,554 76,369 76,369 - 266,923 51% 136,131
146,554 134,261 65,891 68,370 12,293 12,293 - 80,663 20% 16,133
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

FBRIMERERS &)
Average Land
Project Site Area Location Cost per GFA  Address
EH THEE B THEEMBE it
(sg.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
(FFK) (t/FFHK)
Yuzhou Upper East Side Garden 24,200 Nanjing 12,066  Qinglongshan International Ecological New Town,
Bl e ERRIE AR Jiangning District
L[R5 RE I B A AT R IR
Yuzhou Mountain Fairyland 62,503 Nanjing 16,615  West of Dinglin Road, South of Yinhu Road, Located in the
Bl o LR I North of Fangshan Scenic Area, East of Jiangning District
TEREME R FILRRIEE
SEPREE AT - ELBE UARE
Yuzhou Lakeside Langham 127,243 Xuzhou 937  Planned Land Plot of of Hot Spring Town, Pan’an Lake District
Bl o« BB RN BT MR ERR/NERE R
Yuzhou Zhaoshang The Absolute 128,313 Suzhou 6,585  Beigiao Street, West of Louyan Road, South of Zhongjing
Sl e BB EEE # M Road, Xiangcheng District
MR I AT E - B A PSR E A
Yuzhou Blue Seasons 173,253 Suzhou 9,405  North of Kuaixiang Avenue, East of Northern Xiangshan Road,
Bl e FEME N Wuzhong District
R E R RE R B ILEERA
Yuzhou Metropolitan Lights 52,932 Suzhou 9,170  East of Loujiang North road, North of Luoyang East Road,
SNl e He 2K o Taicang
REMETIRR RSEREIL
Yuzhou Rocker Park 100,887 Suzhou 13,649  Xushuguan Old Town, Hi-Tech District
il o LA # BRENEREH
Yuzhou Oak Manor 100,384 Suzhou 11,633  South of Dongnan Avenue, East of Changkun Road,
B o BB E ER N Southern of Changshu
BAMEDIRREAKIAR  REKENE
Yuzhou Genius Leading 76,552 Suzhou 13,867  South of Lianhuafeng Road, East of Hejiuling Road,
Bl o ILERE ERN Fenggiao Street, National Hi-Tech District
SN EAGEEENERR  EREKER
Suzhou Yuzhou Baimajian60 64,416 Suzhou 14,763  South of Lianhuafeng Road, East of Hejiuling Road,
Project ER N Fengajiao Street, National Hi-Tech District
&N =i o B 5601 B S EEGEENERR  BREERE
Yuzhou Immortal Seasons 40,173 Suzhou 14,186  North of Litanghe Road, West of Chengyun Road,
S e ERME E N Xiangcheng District
PRI [ 2 8RB DAL - B R R AT
Yuzhou Park Land 108,075 Wuxi 11,676  Taihu Avenue, Xinwu District
BMe ATLNE i3 HMRERHAE
Yuzhou Trees Villa 76,017 Wuxi 18,000  Southeast of the junction of Zhenze Road and Xincheng
Bl e REEE 37 Road, Binhu District
BREEEREERERXXARER
Yuzhou Master Mansion 83,400 Wuxi 17,305  Southwest of the junction of Qingyan Road and Wenjiao
BN o HRAT =5 Road, Economic development zone

BRBRE2REXHIEI X AREE A
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

EHERITMEERE &)
Total Sold Saleable GFA Total Unsold Saleable GFA
REEEREERE BAEER
Sold and
Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Total Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for Investment Land Interestin Attributable
Total GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale Only Only Reserve the Project GFA
2 2 AF ES
HELEE ACEERE CREEE AXEEE #AXEEE HBEHE BHERE 1#HFEE #zbh BEEEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) % (sq.m.)
(FHEK)  (FEFXK)  (FAEXK)  (FHK)  (FEAHK)  (FFXK)  (FHK)  (FHXK) %  (EFXK)
60,500 35,926 - 35,926 24,574 24,574 - 60,500 40% 24,200
81,254 37,185 - 37,185 44,069 34,069 10,000 81,254 20% 16,251
203,588 103,424 - 193,424 10,164 10,164 - 203,588 70% 142,512
230,963 223,386 102,386 121,000 7,577 7,577 - 128,577 20% 25,715
346,506 328,514 222,775 105,739 17,992 17,992 - 123,731 33% 40,831
111,158 88,444 35,895 52,549 22,714 22,714 - 75,263 23% 17,536
201,774 151,486 - 151,486 50,288 50,288 - 201,774 19% 38,337
220,845 115,256 - 115,256 105,589 105,589 - 220,845 50% 110,423
99,518 41,439 - 41,439 58,079 58,079 - 99,518 49% 48,764
65,060 - - - 65,060 65,060 - 65,060 49% 31,879
80,346 29,230 - 29,230 51,116 51,116 - 80,346 30% 24,104
237,600 191,931 - 191,931 45,669 42,069 3,600 237,600 50% 118,800
152,034 68,504 - 68,504 83,530 73,880 9,650 152,034 40% 60,814
150,120 60,754 - 60,754 89,366 89,366 - 150,120 50% 75,060
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

FBRIMERERS &)
Average Land
Project Site Area Location Cost per GFA  Address
EH T EE B THEEMBE it
(sq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(FFK) (/5 K)
Yuzhou Chenyue Monde 74,207  Changzhou 12,802  North of Qinglong West Road, West of Hengtanghe Road,
=il e 1% M Tianning District
RERERABEAL  BREAIEAA
Yuzhou Honor Promenade 80,100 Yangzhou 1,838  South of Jiulonghu Road, North of Longfeng Road,
Bl e ZERE B Hanjiang District
RO N B A RE AR - BEBLBE BAL
Yuzhou Presedential Palace 57,735 Yangzhou 8,064  East of Hanjiang Road, North of Kaifa Road, Economic
Sl e BIE T M Development Zone
BOER R TR LA - R AL
Yuzhou Kingdom Mansion 150,266 Yangzhou 3,333  West of Longchuan South Road, South of 328 National Road,
S o T 1L B Jiangdu District
TR ER328B15E LA R » #8) 1| A BE LA TG
Yuzhou The Grand Canal 179,920 Yangzhou 8,958  East of Guanchao Road, South of Zhuxi Road, Hanjiang
Bl e KT B District
TIEE AR TEEE
Yuzhou Polaris Mansion 98,261 Hangzhou 13,473  Northeast of the Junction of Tonghui Road and Nansan Road,
B e BRIT HN Xiaoshan District
FILERBERER =B X AR
Yuzhou Lakeside Langham 53,489  Hangzhou 20,060  South of Tonghui South Road, Wocheng Area of the South
B o SHBARE AL Xiaoshan District
BRI A AP RSN B - BB R B AR
Yuzhou Wanglin Mansion 75,068  Hangzhou 24,815  Adjacent to the border of Yuhang District on the north,
Bl o BT N Yunhe New City on the east, Xiangfu Town, Gongshu District
HEBEFRIEERTNERR  REETHM
Yuzhou Luna Sea Mansion 16,558 Ningbo 11,000  Jishigang Town, Haishu District
Sl o B 7R AT B BERELER
Yuzhou Majestic Mansion 109,563  Zhoushan 6,745  South of Dacheng Middle School, West of Qiandao Road
Bl e 2R AL AEHEFA FEKRER
Yuzhou Mansion 31,033 Jinhua 15,350  Huhaitang Sector, Wucheng District
SN o ZH R HEERR
Yuzhou Langham Bay 51,249 Beijing 23,332 Yongshun Town, Tongzhou District
Sl o PR & Bl N & Ak R
Yuzhou Blissed Mansion 62,024 Tianjin 13,083  West of Beizhakou Middle School, Beizhakou Town, Jinnan
Bl e EETE RE District
EERItFEOELEORERE
Yuzhou Poetic Dwelling 45,791 Tianjin 21,996  South of Wushui Avenue, East of Yishan Road, Hexi District
BMeIIA RE AT ILBE AR - B/KB AT
Canal New Town 739,251 Tianjin 1,600  Beichen District
X RE TRE
Yuzhou Fengnan New Town 213,610 Tangshan 1,234 Western Area, Fengnan District
B o BRI I LHEHE
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

EHERITMEERE &)
Total Sold Saleable GFA Total Unsold Saleable GFA
REEEREERE BAEER
Sold and
Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Total Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for Investment Land Interestin Attributable
Total GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale Only Only Reserve the Project GFA
2 2 AF ES
HELEE ACEERE CREEE AXEEE #AXEEE HBEHE BHERE 1#HFEE #zbh BEEEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) % (sq.m.)
(FHEK)  (FEFXK)  (FAEXK)  (FHK)  (FEAHK)  (FFXK)  (FHK)  (FHXK) %  (EFXK)
133,573 60,181 - 60,181 73,392 73,392 - 133,573 49% 65,451
174,100 145,448 105,654 39,794 28,652 28,652 - 68,446 40% 27,378
103,923 84,490 - 84,490 19,433 19,433 - 103,923 40% 41,569
270,479 96,153 - 96,153 174,326 174,326 - 270,479 40% 108,192
300,466 94,890 - 94,890 205,576 185,576 20,000 300,466 30% 90,140
275,131 210,765 - 210,765 64,366 64,366 - 275,131 23% 64,106
149,769 - - - 149,769 149,769 - 149,769 71% 106,336
187,670 93,709 - 93,709 93,961 93,961 - 187,670 50% 93,835
36,428 28,855 - 28,855 7,573 7,573 - 36,428 100% 36,428
307,519 259,184 144,428 114,756 48,335 48,335 - 163,091 50% 81,546
55,860 55,860 54,991 869 - - - 869 51% 443
78,434 33,596 - 33,596 44,838 44,838 - 78,434 100% 78,434
74,429 40,414 - 40,414 34,015 34,015 - 74,429 40% 29,772
81,832 75,590 - 75,590 6,242 1,922 4,320 81,832 33% 27,005
703,997 120,476 - 120,476 583,521 583,521 - 703,997 30% 211,199
1,063,132 1,042,146 273,520 768,626 10,986 10,986 - 779,612 100% 779,612
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

FBRIMERERS &)
Average Land
Project Site Area Location Cost per GFA  Address
EH T EE B THEEMBE it
(sq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(FFK) (/5 K)
Yuzhou Phoenix Mansion 65,088 Tangshan 6,670  South of Yuhua Road, West of Youyi Road,
=il o BET B Fenghuang New City, Lubei District
R B R EEm A REKE A
Yuzhou Phoenix City 10,139 Tangshan 5,080 Adjacent to Qinglong Lake, South of Longhua West Avenue,
2N e BEE =i East of Youyi North Road in Lubei District
BIESFEARES EEABUR KEILBUR
Yuzhou Langham Mansion 97,953 Qingdao 4,662  Jimo Business and Trade Center, West of Jimo District
Bl o BT 55 MEERAEREEERA R
Yuzhou Langham Bay 21,044 Qingdao 10,265  East of Shaoshan Road, South of Jialingjiang Road,
Bl e AR E 55 Huangdao District
BEEERETIRIAR  BILEUAE
Yuzhou Beyond the Sea 14,077 Qingdao 6,654  Binhai Avenue, Huangdao District
Bl e RHE B 55 BEERBEANE
Yuzhou Honor Hill 18,075 Shijiazhuang 7,168  North of Xiangyi Road, East of Shangshuiyuan, Xinhua District
Bl e TEIL AR FEREAREACA - mKIERE
Yuzhou Langham City Land 168,617 Wuhan 5,771  Economic and Technological Develpoment Zone
Bl e PETE HE BB Bl 2 &
Yuzhou Honor Promenade 48,412 Zhengzhou 2,669  Northwest of the Junction of Jiankang Road and
Bl e ZERE I Shangyin West Road, Xingyang
RETREAERERAERIXEILA
Yuzhou West City Garden 46,691  Zhengzhou 2,539  South of Jiankang North No.1 Road,
B o BT E AN East of Shangyin West Road, Xingyang
SR m i BRI — B AR B R A B AR
Yuzhou Honor Century 51,674 Xinxiang 1,262 North of Pingyuan Road, South of Wei River
SiMe ZELTT 48 TR AL - BT LATE
Yuzhou Honor Mansion 89,138 Kaifeng 3,000  The Third Street, Bianxi New District
Bl e BB k3] SRERRTER = A4
Yuzhou Wujing The Scenery 62,173 Huizhou 3,769  Zhongkai Area, Huicheng District
Sl e ALK KER =M BREFERE
Yuzhou Langjoy Garden 70,583 Huizhou 1,765  Intersection of Longhu Avenue and Huize Avenue,
2N o A TEE =M Dongjiang High-Tech Industrial Park
RIRTERELERERARNETZRNERIXA
Yuzhou Langham Bay 110,378 Foshan 4,470  Leliu Town, Shunde District
Bl o A& B I & i 4R
Yuzhou Langorchid 34,559 Foshan 4,823  No.15 of C District of New City District, Leping Town,
=il o BALE B Sanshui District
ZKEETEMAECER155
Yuzhou Langshine Mansion 26,578 Foshan 2,190  South of Gaoming Avenue, East of Gaoming River,
SN o BARS 36 i Mingcheng Town, Gaoming District

SRERAMESHRNEAR  RRTUR
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

EHERITMEERE &)
Total Sold Saleable GFA Total Unsold Saleable GFA
REEEREERE BAEER
Sold and
Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Total Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for Investment Land Interestin Attributable
Total GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale Only Only Reserve the Project GFA
2 2 AF ES
HELEE ACEERE CREEE AXEEE #AXEEE HBEHE BHERE 1#HFEE #zbh BEEEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) % (sq.m.)
(FHEK)  (FEFXK)  (FAEXK)  (FHK)  (FEAHK)  (FFXK)  (FHK)  (FHXK) %  (EFXK)
162,720 139,102 - 139,102 23,618 23,618 - 162,720 51% 82,987
20,278 8,257 - 8,257 12,021 12,021 - 20,278 51% 10,342
156,724 134,079 - 134,079 22,645 22,645 - 156,724 40% 62,690
73,654 53,633 - 53,633 20,021 20,021 - 73,654 81% 59,660
95,170 48,793 - 48,793 46,377 46,377 - 95,170 10% 9,517
41,572 16,888 - 16,888 24,684 21,066 3,618 41,572 80% 33,258
621,887 351,304 80,645 270,659 270,583 270,583 - 541,242 98% 528,388
121,029 12,439 - 12,439 108,590 108,590 - 121,029 100% 121,029
116,446 - - - 116,446 111,147 5,299 116,446 34% 39,592
258,370 190,252 - 190,252 68,118 68,118 - 258,370 51% 131,769
222,844 177,495 - 177,495 45,349 45,349 - 222,844 90% 200,560
243,107 156,257 32,939 123,318 86,850 86,850 - 210,168 51% 107,186
223,748 - - - 223,748 223,748 - 223,748 95% 212,561
306,217 99,417 - 99,417 206,800 201,800 5,000 306,217 100% 306,217
93,308 8,281 - 8,281 85,027 79,027 6,000 93,308 100% 93,308
66,444 6,396 - 6,396 60,048 60,048 - 66,444 49% 32,558
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

FHERITMEREEE @
Average Land
Project Site Area Location Cost per GFA  Address
EH T EE B THEEMBE it
(sq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(FAK) (/5 K)
Yuzhou Sunrises 22,432 Foshan 7,061  East of the Fokai Expressway, North of Xingji Road,
M o B B Nanzhuang Town, Chancheng District
BRREHEGRSRAR SFEAL
Yuzhou Lang Garden 90,501  Zhongshan 5,610  Deneng Lake Park, Torch Development Zone
Bl e ARIER F il AERBEREEHRRS
Yuzhou Luxury Mansion 194,489  Chongqing 5,140  Adjacent to Longhu Ziyuntai, Beibei District
B o FERIT T tRRENEREAE
Yuzhou Langham Mansion 200,568  Chongaing 4,100  North of Konggang Avenue, Liangjiang New District
B o BALESE - RILET & 228 Kl
Yuzhou Splendid Mansion 170,971 Chengdu 11,724 Section 4 of Nansanhuan Road, Hi-Tech District
Sl e LTEE B &b SR = RER
Yuzhou Honor Country 15,822 Chengdu 3,640  West Street, central urban area of Qionglai
B o B B &b TR A O R F
Yuzhou Peaceful Country 16,174 Chengdu 18,394  West of Chenglong Avenue, North of Nansanhuan,
Bl o 2117 PR Jinjiang District
SRR =R AR REE A
Sub-total 8,515,310 6,282
e

106 BWAEEMBEBRARAT  Yozhou Group Holdings Company Limited



Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

EHERITMEERE &)
Total Sold Saleable GFA Total Unsold Saleable GFA
REEEREERE BAEER
Sold and

Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Total Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for Investment Land Interestin Attributable
Total GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale Only Only Reserve the Project GFA
2 2 AF ES
HELEE ACEERE CREEE AXEEE #AXEEE HBEHE BHERE 1#HFEE #zbh BEEEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) % (sq.m.)
(FHEK)  (FEFXK)  (FAEXK)  (FHK)  (FEAHK)  (FFXK)  (FHK)  (FHXK) %  (EFXK)
56,080 9,394 - 9,394 46,686 46,686 - 56,080 51% 28,601
271,502 46,580 - 46,580 224,922 224,922 - 271,502 28% 76,021
250,970 142,286 - 142,286 108,684 108,684 - 250,970 100% 250,970
387,677 130,385 74,411 55,974 257,292 257,292 - 313,266 49% 153,500
695,349 2,552 1,525 1,027 692,797 692,797 - 693,824 40% 277,530
39,555 6,225 - 6,225 33,330 33,330 - 39,555 100% 39,555
32,348 2,086 - 2,086 30,262 30,262 - 32,348 51% 16,497
19,677,459 12,874,717 4,066,451 8,808,266 6,702,742 6,125,371 577,371 15,511,008 9,600,035
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

FBRIMERERS &)
Average Land
Project Site Area Location Cost per GFA  Address
EH THEE B THEEMBE it
(sq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(FFK) (t/FFHK)
Projects Held for Future Development #5418 H
Xiamen Yuzhou Tong’an Project 18,830 Xiamen 31,519 West of Binhai Lvyou Road, East of Binhai West Road,
EF&Me AZEEB EF Tong'an City Core Area of Huandong Hai Region
RRGEFAZINZOE BB IREEARE:
BEAREAR
Zhangzhou Yuzhou Zhangpu 531,336  Zhangzhou 1,696  Dongnanhuadu, Zhangpu County
Project BN BTG REIE
EMEM ¢ EHIER
Shanghai Yuzhou Jinshan Project 174,814 Shanghai 1,324  Site 2988, North of Tingfeng Road, Zhujing Town,
Eagsile 2IUEE b Jinshan District
D10 RT A =18 2 B 16208857 3
Tianjin Yuzhou 07 Project 45,437 Tianjin 13,902  West of Xiying Road, North of Yuhui Road,
KEBN 07HHE RiE Beizhakou Town of Jinnan District
EEEICFOE BB HEENL
Tianjin Yuzhou 08 Project 79,346 Tianjin 13,916 West of Dongying Road, North of Yuhui Road,
KB 0878 E PN Beizhakou of Jinnan District
EERILFOE RERATE  HEFEL
Yuzhou Riverside Mansion 136,749 Tianjin 7,046  Beicang Demonstration town, Beichen District
Bl e MEET KA ItREILAREHE
Shenyang Yuzhou Sujiatun 1,250,000  Shenyang 1,600  Suijiatun District
Project B HRAE
BRI e BREIEE
Beijing Yuzhou Beishi Project 8,600 Beijing 1,600  Adjacent to The China World Trade Center, Chaoyang District
ItREMe L EIEE R AGE - BERLE
Yuzhou Jade Mansion 36,435 Ningbo 13,770 North of Mingzhou West Road, East of Fengyang No.1 Road,
B o BAFART BR Beilun District
dtmEHEIMNAR AL BB IR
Yuzhou Yinyue Mansion 61,767 Shaoxing 20,545  North of Olympic Sports Center of Asian Games, East of
Bl o ENRAAT e Sanjiang River, Next to Civil Center, Kegiao District
FBEREEGREROIA TONRMA BHATRA L
Wuhan Yuzhou Jingkai Project 87,668 Wuhan 13,003  Xinhuayuan Road, Wangjiawan Business Cluster,
REZEBMN e« EHIEE e Jingkai District
BEETFEMERE
Shanghai Yuzhou Fengxian 26,873 Shanghai 16,5624  East of Jinzha Road, South of Beihenghe, Jinhui Town,
Project s Fengxian District
EBEMe=BIBE ZEReEESFEAKIAR LB A
Yuzhou The Explorer 161,329  Chongaing 6,432  Daxuecheng Section, Hi-Tech District
Bl e BER T = K2R R
Hefei Yuzhou Xinzhan05 Project 58,243 Hefei 7,343 South of Huaihai Road, East of Xiangcheng Road,
AR o #740578 B & Xinzhan District

Huk RS B IAR - B AR
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

EHERITMEERE &)
Total Sold Saleable GFA Total Unsold Saleable GFA
REEEREERE BAEER
Sold and
Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Total Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for Investment Land Interestin Attributable
Total GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale Only Only Reserve the Project GFA
2 2 AF ES
HELEE ACEERE CREEE AXEEE #AXEEE HBEHE BHERE 1#HFEE #zbh BEEEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) % (sq.m.)
(FHEK)  (FEFXK)  (FAEXK)  (FHK)  (FEAHK)  (FFXK)  (FHK)  (FHXK) %  (EFXK)
42,800 - - - 42,800 42,800 - 42,800 51% 21,828
563,881 - - - 563,881 563,881 - 563,881 19% 106,433
211,418 - - - 211,418 211,418 - 211,418 100% 211,418
54,524 - - - 54,524 54,524 - 54,524 60% 32,714
95,215 - - - 95,215 95,215 - 95,215 20% 19,043
292,003 - - - 292,003 292,003 - 292,003 30% 87,601
1,880,000 - - - 1,880,000 949,932 930,068 1,880,000 51% 958,800
39,000 - - - 39,000 - 39,000 39,000 65% 25,350
72,870 - - - 72,870 69,370 3,500 72,870 100% 72,870
127,952 - - - 127,952 127,952 - 127,952 76% 97,244
219,185 - - - 219,185 219,185 - 219,185 100% 219,185
59,120 - - - 59,120 56,164 2,956 59,120 100% 59,120
226,994 - - - 226,994 224,294 2,700 226,994 100% 226,994
116,485 - - - 116,485 106,885 9,600 116,485 100% 116,485
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

FBRIMERERS &)
Average Land
Project Site Area Location Cost per GFA  Address
HE THEE vE THEEMBE it
(sq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(FFK) (/5 K)
Suzhou Yuzhou Wuzhong Project 48,311 Suzhou 9,393  East of Xiangshan Road, South of Sunwu Road, Taihu Resort,
MM e RAIEE ERN Wuzhong District
R ERRERREILEAR  REE AR
Suzhou Yuzhou Taicang Project 35,826 Suzhou 12,768  West of Wenyuan Road, South of Meicun Road, Hi-Tech
BINBMe KEEHE BN District, Taicang
KRBT 3 SOMBE DAE - 154 B AR
Sub-total 2,751,564 4,747
Nt
Total 15,698,285 5,363
At
Urban Redevelopment Projects 3 i & 778 B
Zhuhai Urban Redevelopment 333,882 Zhuhai 16,000  Xiangzhou District
Project g aFME
W mERIER
Shenzhen Urban Redevelopment 48,680  Shenzhen 19,360  Guangming District
Project A p 1
RN E ¥ IE B
Huizhou Urban Redevelopment 41,920 Huizhou 4,206 Zhongkai District
Project =M ik
BT ERIAR
Sub-total 424,482 14,470
NEE
Grand total 16,122,767 5,684
st
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Business and Landbank Summary (Continued)

EHERITMEERE &)
Total Sold Saleable GFA Total Unsold Saleable GFA
REEEREERE BAEER
Sold and
Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Total Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for Investment Land Interestin Attributable
Total GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale Only Only Reserve the Project GFA
2 2 AF ES
HELEE ACEERE CREEE AXEEE #AXEEE HBEHE BHERE 1#HFEE #zbh BEEEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) % (sq.m.)
(FHEK)  (FEFXK)  (FAEXK)  (FHK)  (FEAHK)  (FFXK)  (FHK)  (FHXK) %  (EFXK)
96,622 - - - 96,622 93,553 3,069 96,622 30% 28,987
64,486 - - - 64,486 64,486 - 64,486 100% 64,486
4,162,555 - - - 4162555 3,171,662 990,893 4,162,555 2,348,558
35,921,962 24,264,008 13,718,085 10,545,923 11,657,954 9,404,013 2,253,941 22,208,877 13,966,189
627,022 - - - 627,022 627,022 - 627,022 67% 418,036
119,234 - - - 119,234 107,846 11,388 119,234 35% 41,732
150,308 - - - 150,308 150,308 - 150,308 51% 76,657
896,564 - - - 896,564 885,176 11,388 896,564 536,425
36,818,526 24,264,008 13,718,085 10,545,923 12,554,518 10,289,189 2,265,329 23,100,441 14,502,614
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INVESTOR RELATIONS
KREZEIR

The Group has attached great importance to its efficient and regular
communication with shareholders and investors. Through years
of studies and practices, the Group has developed a scientific
and systematic management of investor relations and strived to
sustain transparent and excellent corporate governance. Through
an efficient and regular communication system, the Group is able
to promptly and accurately disclose information about the Group
to investors through various channels. In 2020, Yuzhou Group was
selected as one of the “Best Investor Relations-Investment Grade”,
“Best Use of Debt-Investment Grade”, “Best Investor Relations-
High Yield Grade” and “Best Use of Debt-High Yield Grade”, and
ranked among the top in the real estate and construction sector.
This is the second time that Yuzhou Group ranked No.1 in both
lists in 2019. The lists were under the second “Global Fixed-Income
Executive Team 2020” Selection which was held by an international
authoritative financial magazine named “Institutional Investor”. It
fully reflected the long-term efforts of Yuzhou investor relations
team in the capital market and investors relations, and also brought
precise strategic guidance, efficient operation management and
prudent risk control to the public. In addition, Yuzhou was awarded
“Best IR Hong Kong Listed Company” under the “New Fortune —
Best IR of Hong Kong Listed Company” Selection, standing out
from 460 candidates, showing again that the Group’s investor
relations efforts have been greatly recognized by the regulators,
investment banks and securities companies, analysts, financial
media and individual investors from domestic and international
markets. In addition, Yuzhou Group also won a number of awards
regarding to investor relations such as the 2020 “Best Capital
Market Communication Award” and “Best ESG Award” in the China
IR Excellence Awards, 2020 Golden Hong Kong Stocks “Best
Property Company” and the 2020 “Most Valuable Listed Company
Award” on ifeng.com.
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OPEN, FAIR, TRANSPARENT AND ACCURATE
INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Group promptly discloses its financial and operational updates
to the capital market through various channels in an open, fair
and transparent manner to allow investors, analysts, credit rating
institutions and media to have an in-depth understanding of its
philosophy, strategies and potential development of the Group. The
recognition of investors on the business and development of the
Group could facilitate the expansion of financing sources at a lower
cost for optimization of loan structure. The Group actively seeks
and sincerely listens to the opinions and advice from the capital
market regarding the operation and management of the Group for
improvement with a view of maximizing value of shareholders.

EFFECTIVE AND TIMELY COMMUNICATION
SYSTEM WITH MULTIPLE CHANNELS

In terms of capital market communication, the investor relations
team of the Group, as a bridge of communication with investors,
always seeks diversified communication channels and maintains
close contact with domestic and foreign analysts and investors.
The Group has always been at the forefront of the industry
in terms of investor relations. In 2020, despite the prolonged
travel inconvenience caused by the COVID-19 epidemic in
various regions, the Group’s investor relations team continued
to communicate with thousands of investors around the world
through hundreds of online roadshows, online strategy meetings
and telephone conferences. The Group actively and accurately
introduced the most updated results and development of the
Group in time. Through effective and targeted promotion of the
value of the Group as well as giving duly consideration to the
advice and suggestions from capital market, the investor base has
been consolidated and expanded, drawing more attention from the
capital market.

Investor Relations (Continued)

REEBR @

REQHR 2F ERHNERNER[KER
el
AEEEEAR AT ER ZREOEBRA @
AATEEBBBEAREOMBERELRR REE
E SN B EETRRBREEERATREEN
MEES EEBRBREREN NREEEELR
BRORBT LMANRAEEEORERE BE
RARA  BLEGER - RN SERHEE 08
RENEEREEATSUEEEEER LMERN
g THECASENEEERKT AHRER
RRER MR E A AL -

RERBEANZRECHEEET

EEAMGEBTH SEREEFRESRESER
BEBBNBR —ESKETHBRRE BIR
AHINDITER AR EE R ER BB —EURK &
KREEMETIE—BEEETTERT - 20205 BEH
BRIEEKSHERER LT AE KEREEBEE
BIOEHBEEESEERE BEEKe EFe
& HAENEIREMNBREEETERT ARNEYE
BORBEENEENSENREMERBRL £
TERLABHHENEREESTS  UMEHERE
AMEHMEREEZ RELBEAREEER FE15
BEAMGHEENEIE TE RS-
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Investor Relations (Continued)

REZRIR &

In 2020, Yuzhou was initiated coverage by CLSA, Huaxi Securities,
Guotai Junan International, Goldman Sachs Gao Hua and Industrial
Securities, and achieved “Buy” ratings from these investment
banks. Currently, 31 well-known domestic and overseas investment
banks and securities companies were optimistic about the business
performance and future development of the Group and granted
positive ratings, leading comparable peer companies in terms
of the number of institutions covered. In 2020, Morgan Stanley,
Citigroup, JP Morgan, BOC International, CMB International,
Haitong International, Essence International, Zhongtai International,
Huatai Securities, CIMB International repeatedly recommended
and raised target prices during the year, among which, DBS listed
Yuzhou into the “Top pick” of the industry. The investor relations
team of the Group maintained active communication with the
capital market and participated in the summits held by investment
banks, arranged reverse roadshows and organized site visits to
representative projects so as to enhance the understanding of the
capital market to the Group. Through continuous efforts, Yuzhou
won a number of internal ESG awards in 2020 and continued
to be rated as MSCI ESG “BBB”, ranking among the top in
the domestic real estate industry. The rating also reflected the
international renowned index rating institutions’ full recognition of
the Group’s previous development achievements, as well as the
continuous optimization and upgrading of environmental protection,
corporate social responsibility and internal corporate governance
etc., also highlighted the Group’s unique sustainable development
advantages and model role in the industry.
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The Group maintains regular and transparent communication with
investors by ways of releasing announcements, press releases,
monthly corporate newsletters and official WeChat account updates
to shareholders and stakeholders. Meanwhile, the Group updates
the Group’s website (http://iryuzhou-group.com) on a regular basis
so as to convey the Group’s dynamics in an active and timely
manner. In addition to conventional information disclosure channels,
the Group also interacts and communicates with investors through
a variety of new media and communication platforms, including
WeChat official account, Roadshow, Gelonghui etc.. Being the
first company in the industry to establish a WeChat platform for
investors, Yuzhou Group uses its WeChat official account as an
efficient channel to maintain investor relations, disclose information
and respond to investor inquiries. Information on strategies, new
products, investor relations, latest development of the Group,
industry information, and property market analysis can also be
conveyed to investors through the platform timely, which is highly
regarded by analysts, investors, media and peers. The Group has
been expanding the contents and scope of its investor relations
management due to improvement of corporate governance and
the need for market value management.

OTHER INFORMATION

Shareholder Service

Shareholders may notify the registrar in writing on matters relating
to your shareholding, such as share transfer, change of name or
address and loss of share certificate:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2862 8628

Facsimile: (852) 2529 6087

Shareholder Enquiries

Enquiry hotline during normal office hours:
Telephone: (852) 2508 1718

Investor Relations (Continued)

REEBR @

EERVETEPNKREEBFRERGE  THMA
RRERRPERFNHEZRLAS HEBR CXAES
HEBEAMEEN THENEBRAM =8 k&
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HMEFaE R EREBEHERAEEMERERE AR
MANFEREAREERARRNBERBER LEEE
B SN REERRREE ST 1TEEM
EMBERSEKHBERRES BITRZOMN
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HKEMRANTEEENTE REABRERT
TERI PR FNINE T ET b 3R R o

HtRRAINER

RERRF
RER BTAHEBRONEENRGBS EXETE
gitit  ERRES  RABEBINBORE

BEBEPRELSELBRAT
HBET 25 XER1835%
AFFRL7TEI7T1221716F
B :E ¢ (852) 2862 8628
B H : (852) 2529 6087

RREH
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Investor Relations (Continued)

REZRIR &

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries from investors and securities analysts, please contact:

Corporate Finance and Investor Relations Department
Yuzhou Group Holdings Company Limited

Units 5801-02, 58/F, The Center

99 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2508 1718

Facsimile: (852) 2510 0265

Email: ir@yuzhou-group.com
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Investor Relations (Continued)

REEBR @

Date Location Event
TR HE ith B EE
1 January 6, 2020 Hong Kong Huatai HK Stock Real Estate Industry &
202091 A6H &5 Property Management Corporate Day
ERBRFEHMEMEEELEHA
2 January 14, 2020 Hong Kong Barclays Asia Credit Outlook 2020
20201 A 148 BB EBRH2020FERERES
3 January 15, 2020 Shenzhen Guoyuan International Roadshow
202041 158 el B 7T B R B O
4 January 16, 2020 Shanghai UBS Investors Reverse Roadshow with Management
202091 A16H i UBSKREEE FERMAKERE REERE
5 January 22, 2020 Hong Kong Goldman Sachs Global Macro Conference — Asia Pacific 2020
20201 A22H 9 BRPIREEBKLERNE — — 2 A20208 %
6 March 31, 2020 Hong Kong, Yuzhou Properties 2019 Annual Results Announcement
202043 A31H Shanghai BN E20192 FEEHRME
B LE
7 April 1, 2020 Online Non Deal Roadshow
2020F4H1H L R PR
8 April 2, 2020 Online Non Deal Roadshow
20204 H2H L ER IR
9 April 3, 2020 Online Non Deal Roadshow
202094 A3H L ER FIRE
10 April 6, 2020 Online Non Deal Roadshow
2020F4 A6H i R PR
11 April 7, 2020 Online Non Deal Roadshow
20205F4 HA7H L ERXFE
12 April 21, 2020 Online Non Deal Roadshow
202054 H21H L R PR
13 April 23, 2020 Online TF Securities Roadshow
202094 A23H B REFE 7 &
14 April 28, 2020 Shenzhen Guojin Securities Roadshow
202044 A28H wI Bl &5 5K E
15 April 29, 2020 Shenzhen Haitong Securities Spring Strategic Conference
202044 A 29H wI BBREFEETRBE
16 May 12, 2020 Online APAC Financial and Real Estate Equity & Credit Virtual Conference
20205H12R mE EREMEHEREERKS
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Investor Relations (Continued)

REZRR @

Date Location Event

527 A # ih 2 EE

17 May 19, 2020 Online China Securities Roadshow
2020F5 7 19H - PERIREKE

18 May 21, 2020 Online Non Deal Roadshow
202058211 B ER FEKE

19 May 26, 2020 Online CLSA Online Site Visit with Yuzhou Hefei Branch
202095 H26H 7 PEES @MNEEARRLEERS

20 June 2, 2020 Online DBS Non Deal Roadshow
20206 A2H iR+ ERRITIERHEE

21 June 2, 2020 Hong Kong Annual General Meeting
202096 H2H Online REBEFRE

aBE
g

22 June 4, 2020 Online SWHY Securities Strategic Conference
202096 A4H i RERRRKE

23 June 5, 2020 Online HuaXi Securities Strategic Conference
20206 A5H i+ EREFELRIEE

24 June 11, 2020 Online UBS Virtual HK/China Property Conference 2020
2020668118 Z I iR A R AR &

25 June 12, 2020 Online CGS-CIMB 5th Annual HK/China Property &
20206 H12H R E Property Management Virtual Conference

UM ERNRERERMERYEEELHEA

26 June 12, 2020 Online Morgan Stanley Sixth Annual China Summit
2020568128 L BERTARENEREES

27 June 16, 2020 Online HSBC 4th Annual Asia Credit Conference
202065 16H gk ENEEEDMNEEFE

28 June 17, 2020 Online Haitong International Chinese Real Estate Developer Corporate Day
20206 A17H B 20208 M BEIPE R B E B R E R

29 June 22, 2020 Online Huatai 2020 HK Stock Real Estate Industry Corporate Day
20206 H22H & ER2020BREMEITERER

30 June 24, 2020 Online Citi's Asia Pacific Property Conference 2020
20206 524 H g E TETE 52 M B 3 8 52 BE & 2020

31 July 8, 2020 Online Deutsche Bank Credit Conference
202097 A8H 7 EEERITEREES

32 July 14, 2020 Online Guosen Securities Interim Conference
202097 A14H ik Bl{ER 5P RS
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Investor Relations (Continued)

REEBR @

Date Location Event
R A & ith B EE
33 July 23, 2020 Online Citi Non Deal Roadshow
202047 A23H & TEIEIER 5K E
34 July 23, 2020 Online DBS Non Deal Roadshow
202047 A23H & DBSIER 5 K&
35 July 31, 2020 Online Haitong Securities Interim Conference
202047 H31H e BRBFTHREE
36 August 7, 2020 Online Barclays ESG Fixed Income Virtual Corporate Day
20208 A7H m BrRKESGREE K=t R
37 August 25, 2020 Shenzhen, Yuzhou Group 2020 Interim Results Announcement
20208 A25H Hong Kong, BINEE2020F BB RMHE
Shanghai
Online
L NN
g
B
38 August 26, 2020 Online Non Deal Roadshow
202058 A26H e HERFE
39 August 27, 2020 Online Non Deal Roadshow
202048 H27H i FERHIEIR
40 August 28, 2020 Online Non Deal Roadshow
202048 A28H mE R PR
41 August 31, 2020 Online Non Deal Roadshow
202048 H31H mE ER G IKE
42 September 1, 2020 Beijing Huachuang Securities Autumn Conference
2020F9A1H tR HEAELFFTEREKE
43 September 2, 2020 Online Greater Bay Investor Conference
202059 H2H L RNEEREERIRE
44 September 3, 2020 Shanghai Haitong Securities Strategic Conference
202049 A3H +& BBESREE
45 September 7, 2020 Online Everbright Asset Manegement Roadshow
2020F9A7H 7 RREEKE
46 September 17, 2020 Shanghai Guosheng Securities Autumn Conference
20206F9A17H i BEESNERES
47 September 23, 2020 Shenzhen Guotai Junan Securities Strategic Conference
2020%F9 A 23H wA BREREWIRE RS
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Investor Relations (Continued)

REBEMR &)

Date Location Event

o ==t} ith 2 JEE

48 September 23, 2020 Online JP Morgan Emerging Markets Credit Conference
20204F9 H23H L ERANBEEES

49 September 24, 2020 Online GTJA International Credit Conference
2020F9 A 24H L BERALERETEES

50 October 9, 2020 Online Non Deal Roadshow
2020410 A9H i ERFE

51 October 9, 2020 Online Haitong International Chinese Real Estate Developer Corporate Day
2020F10A9H i BRBERREMERER

52 October 15, 2020 Online Zhongtai International Strategic Conference
2020%F10A15H mE P RERRES

53 October 15, 2020 Online BofA Non Deal Roadshow
2020F10A15H ® L EBRITIHERHIKE

54 October 20, 2020 Online Non Deal Roadshow
2020%10H20H R R PR

55 October 21, 2020 Online JPM Asia Credit Conference 2020
2020%F10A21H e JE AR A 38 a2 M {5 A F ©2020

56 October 29, 2020 Online Non Deal Roadshow
2020%F10A29H o FER F KA

57 October 30, 2020 Online Nomura Virtual Asian High Yield Corporate Day 2020
2020%F10A30H mE FFF2020F M m U b B

58 November 4, 2020 Online Citi China Investor Conference 2020
2020411 A4H wE 2020 F15EEEPREABREESH

59 November 5, 2020 Online 2020 BofA China Conference
2020911 A5A mE 2020 BIR1TH B IE &

60 November 13, 2020 Chengdu HuaXi Securities Strategic Conference
2020411 A13H B #B ERIFFVE RS

61 November 16, 2020 Chengdu Gelonghui Investment Forum 2020
2020911 A 168 B #B 1B E2020F 1R & 52 FF 5

62 November 18, 2020 Shenzhen Haitong Securities Strategic Conference
202011 A18H I BRBFREE

63 November 19, 2020 Shenzhen China Securities Strategic Conference
20209 11 A 19A prll PEELARKE

64 November 27, 2020 Shenzhen Guosen Securities Stragetic Conference
2020411 B27H el BEREAFRES

65 December 3, 2020 Online Barclay’s ESG EM Corporate Day
2020912 A3H S E R ESGI A
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors consists of eight Directors, of whom four are
executive Directors and one is non-executive Director and three are
independent non-executive Directors. The Directors are appointed
for a term not exceeding three years. The power and duties of
our Board of Directors include convening general meetings and
reporting the Board’s work at general meetings, implementing
resolutions passed at general meetings, determining our business
plans and investment plans, formulating our annual budget and
final accounts, formulating our proposals for profit distributions
and for the increase or reduction of registered capital as well as
exercising other powers, functions and duties as conferred by our
Memorandum and Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
EBEN

852

EFeh/\REFAR EPNE/ATESFT — %
RIFNTES —ERBUFNTES EFZEZE
MEMTEE=-F EFENEIEBRECRARK
RRGARBRAE LREEFEN T/ ATTHER
RELBBRER BEERMANEBERRES
g HIERMNFEERENRE  HERMANOFED
FoiRZE NI Nskm D i M B AR5 - A M AT (R AR 4
BRAMAMAANETOEMESD B RBE-
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Directors’ Biographies (Continued)

=GN |

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Lung On, aged 56, was appointed as the Chairman of
our Board of Directors and our executive Director on October 9,
2009, and he is also a member of the remuneration committee,
the nomination committee and the sustainability committee of
our Company. Since he founded our Group in December 1994,
Mr. Lam has held various positions including but not limited to
chairman, deputy chairman, director and general manager in most
of our subsidiaries and is primarily responsible for overseeing the
development planning and strategic layout of the Company as well
as the major decisions on the investment and human resources of
the Company. He has over 27 years of experience in residential,
commercial and hotel property development and investment. In
2006, Mr. Lam became an honorary citizen of Xiamen accredited
by the mayor of Xiamen. Besides, he was appointed as a Deputy
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”) of
the People’s Republic of China to the 13th National People’s
Congress (the “NPC”) and has served in various public service
positions, including a member of the HKSAR Election Committee,
Vice Chairman of the All-China General Chamber of Industry and
Commerce (member of the All-China Federation of Industry and
Commerce), a member of the Standing Committee of the All-
China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese, Director of the
External Liaison Committee of the Central Committee of the China
Democratic National Construction Association and a member of
the Tianjin Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. Mr. Lam also serves as the President of the Hong
Kong Chinese Importers’ & Exporters’ Association, the investment
consultant of Xiamen, the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong
Federation of Fujian Associations, the Executive Deputy Chairman
of the board of directors of the Hong Kong Volunteers Federation,
the Honorary President of the Hong Kong Federation of Overseas
Chinese Associations, the visiting professor of the University of
Science and Technology of China and the executive Director and
visiting professor of Jimei University. Mr. Lam graduated from the
University of Science and Technology of China with a master’s
degree in Engineering in November 1996. Mr. Lam is the spouse
of Ms. Kwok Ying Lan, our executive Director, the father of Ms.
Lam Yu Fong, our executive Director, and the brother-in-law of
Mr. Lin Conghui, our executive Director. Mr. Lam has not held any
directorship in any other public listed companies in the past three
years. Mr. Lam worked for Xiamen Land Development Company, a
state-owned enterprise, before he founded our Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Kwok Ying Lan, aged 50, was appointed as our executive Director
on October 9, 2009 and also the Vice Chairman of our Board of
Directors. Since joining our Company in April 1997, Ms. Kwok
has held various positions including but not limited to chairman,
director and general manager in most of our subsidiaries and is
primarily responsible for the financial, capital and auditing work
of the Company. Ms. Kwok has over 23 years of experience in
property development and financial management. Ms. Kwok was
an executive Director of the Xiamen Association of Enterprises
with Foreign Investment. Ms. Kwok also serves as a member
of the Standing Committee of the Xiamen Municipal Committee
of the Chinese People ‘s Political Consultative Conference, the
director of Fujian Overseas Women'’s Friendship Association, the
Deputy Chairman of the Hong-Kong Xiamen Friendship Union,
and Honorary Advisor of the Hong Kong Chinese Importers’ &
Exporters’ Association. She is the spouse of Mr. Lam Lung On, our
executive Director, the mother of Ms. Lam Yu Fong, our executive
Director, and the sister-in-law of Mr. Lin Conghui, our executive
Director. Ms. Kwok has not held any directorship in any other
public listed companies in the past three years. Ms. Kwok worked
for China Construction Bank Xiamen Branch, a state-owned bank,
before she joined our Company.

Lin Conghui, aged 50, was appointed as our executive Director
on October 9, 2009. Since joining our Company in July 1998, Mr.
Lin has held positions including but not limited to chairman and
director in most of our subsidiaries and is primarily responsible
for the daily operation management of purchasing management
centre and Zhuhai Branch. Mr. Lin has over 22 years of experience
in project management. He graduated from Tongji University with
a diploma in Architecture Engineering in January 2006. Mr. Lin is
the brother-in-law of Mr. Lam Lung On and Ms. Kwok Ying Lan,
our executive Directors and the uncle of Ms. Lam Yu Fong, our
executive Director. Mr. Lin has not held any directorship in any
other public listed companies in the past three years.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Lam Yu Fong, aged 26, was appointed as our executive Director
on October 25, 2018 and she is also the chairman of the
sustainability committee. Ms. Lam holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
in International Business from the University of San Francisco.
She worked as an analyst in BOCI Securities Limited from August
2017 to October 2018 and focused on the real estate industry.
Ms. Lam is the daughter of Mr. Lam Lung On and Ms. Kwok Ying
Lan (the executive Directors and the controlling shareholders of the
Company) and the niece of Mr. Lin Conghui, our executive Director.
Ms. Lam has not held any directorship in any other public listed
companies in the past three years.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Xie Mei, aged 53, was appointed as a non-executive Director on
September 24, 2018. She has extensive management experience.
Ms. Xie joined OCT (Asia) (Z&# (Z2M) )in 2004 and is
currently the executive Director and chief executive officer of OCT
(Asia). Ms. Xie is also the assistant to the president of Shenzhen
Overseas Chinese Town Company Limited (& 31l 2 5 3 A% (5
AR Aa]) (“OCT Ltd.”), the director and general manager of
Overseas Chinese Town (HK) Company Limited (& & # &
BFRAT]), deputy general manager of Shenzhen OCT Capital
Investment Management Co., Ltd. CRIIEBHRE AR EERS
FR7/2 7)) . She is also the Director of several subsidiaries of OCT
Ltd. such as OCT (Nanchang) Industrial Co., Ltd. (ZEBH (B S )
EHEERABMRAA), Chengdu Tianfu OCT Industry Development
Company Limited (X ERTEBREEZRER A F]), Hefei
OCT Industry Development Company Limited (& AEZE B & 5
ZEREAMRAE]) and a non-executive Director of E-House (China)
Enterprise Holdings Limited (a company listed on the main board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) (Stock Code: 02048.HK). Ms.
Xie joined OCT Group in 1994 and was the deputy director and
director of the strategic development department of OCT Group.
Ms. Xie graduated from the Faculty of Electrical Engineering of
Xi'an Jiaotong University and obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Engineering in 1989. She also obtained a master’s degree in
Economics from the Renmin University of China in 1999.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Kwong Siu, aged 86, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on October 9, 2009. He is also the
chairman of the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee, and a member of the audit committee of our Company.
Mr. Lam has more than 50 years of capital operating experience
and had held the following positions in the banking sector: the
deputy chairman of Bank of China International Holdings Limited
since 2001, a non-executive Director of Bank of China International
Limited since 2002, an independent non-executive Director of
Fujian Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00181.HK) since 2003,
an independent non-executive Director of Xinyi Glass Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 00868.HK) since 2004, an independent
non-executive Director of Far East Consortium International
Limited (Stock Code: 00035.HK) since 2011 and an independent
non-executive Director of Skymission Group Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 01429.HK) since 2019. Mr. Lam also holds many
social positions, once the delegate of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the PRC to the 10th National People’s
Congress, and currently serves as the honorary chairman of
the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations, life honorary
chairman of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce, adviser
of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association and the
honorary president of the Chinese Bankers Club of Hong Kong.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Wee Henny Soon Chiang (also known as Wee Toon Kian),
aged 74, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on October 9, 2009. He is also the chairman of the audit
committee, and a member of the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee of our Company. He has more than 30
years of experience in public accounting practice. Mr. Wee was an
independent non-executive Director of The Quaypoint Corporation
Limited (now known as China Uptown Group Company Limited),
a Cayman Islands incorporated company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (Stock code: 02330.HK), from September 2001
to November 2006. He is the founder of Henny Wee & Co., a firm
of Certified Public Accountants (Practising) registered at Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in February 1988.
Mr. Wee has been the partner of Henny Wee & Co. since 1988
and following a merger with another local firm of certified public
accountants on April 1, 2016, he has been the managing partner
of the merged SWC & Partners. He was also a partner of Glass
Radcliffe Chan & Wee as a partner. Mr. Wee obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Commerce from the University of Newcastle, New South
Wales, Australia, in March 1971. He became an Associate Member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants (Australia) in July 1975,
and a Certified Public Accountant (Practicing) of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants, now known as the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountant since 1988.

Dr. Zhai Pu, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on December 28, 2016. He is also a member
of the audit committee of our Company. Dr. Zhai obtained a
Ph.D from Cambridge University in the United Kingdom in 2000
and a bachelor’s degree in Material Science and Engineering
from Tsinghua University, China, in 1996. He has worked as the
president of Ascendent Capital Partners (Asia) Limited since
October 2018, which is a company focusing on private equity
investment in Chinese market and manages assets mainly from
global well-known institutional investors, including sovereign wealth
fund, endowment fund of universities, retirement fund, foundation
and so on. He has been the Chief Executive Officer of China Alpha
Fund Management (HK) Limited since July 2015. He worked
in the field of investment banking as Managing Director of J.P.
Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited from September 2009 to
March 2015, and as Managing Director of Macquarie (Hong Kong)
Limited from May 2007 to August 2009. He has over 21 years of
experience in corporate management and investment banking.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

EXECUTIVE PRESIDENT

Xiao Rui, aged 46, joined Yuzhou Group in 2020, is the Executive
President who assists the Chairman of the Board of Directors
in coordinating the work of the Group, in charge of the Group’s
investment management center, operation management center
and information management center, and the operation and
management of Beijing, Zhengzhou, Shenyang, Wuhan branches
and hotel companies. Mr. Xiao Rui holds a bachelor's degree in
Engineering from Harbin Institute of Technology. He has been
engaged in real estate development for more than 20 years and
has extensive experience in large-scale benchmark real estate
groups and first-line management. Mr. Xiao used to serve as an
assistant to general manager and general manager of the South
China Region in China Merchants Shekou Industrial Zone Holdings
Company Limited, a Shenzhen incorporated company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock code: 001979.S2). Mr. Xiao also
served as a senior vice president of the Group and chairman of the
South China Region in Jinke Property Group Company Limited, a
Chongging incorporated company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 000656979.52).

SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT, CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER AND COMPANY SECRETARY

Chiu Yu Kang, aged 43, is the senior vice president of the
Company, the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary.
Mr. Chiu holds a bachelor’s degree of Business Administration
in Accounting and Finance from the University of Hong Kong
and a Master of Economics from the University of Hong Kong.
From October 2008 to March 2015, Mr. Chiu served as the vice
president of the Company, the Chief Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary, who was responsible for project acquisitions,
strategic planning, corporate finance activities, investor relations
and oversight of financial reporting procedures, company secretary
matters, internal controls and compliance with the requirements
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Prior to re-joining the Company
in July 2019, Mr. Chiu served as the chief financial officer, and
company secretary of certain other companies listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Chiu has also worked in an
international firm of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chiu has
over 17 years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management. Mr. Chiu is a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEBHS

The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise property
development, property investment, the provision of management
services and hotel operation. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Year.

RESULTS

The Group’s profit for the year ended December 31, 2020 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 172 to 354.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Company during the Year and
discussion on the Company’s future business development are set
out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” sections of this annual report. Description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Company may be facing can be
found in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report. The financial risk management objectives and policies of
the Company are set out in note 49 to the consolidated financial
statements. Particulars of important events affecting the Company
that have occurred since the end of the financial year ended
December 31, 2020 are set out in note 50 to the consolidated
financial statements. The financial key performance indicators
are commonly used by the property development industry which
shows the profitability and liquidity performance of a company.
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PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK21.5
cents per share for the year ended December 31, 2020 (the “Final
Dividend”) to eligible shareholders (the “Eligible Shareholders”)
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
(the “Register of Members”) on June 21, 2021 (the “Record Date”).

The proposed Final Dividend will be payable in form of new fully
paid shares of the Company (the “Scrip Shares”) in lieu of cash (the
“Scrip Dividend Scheme”).

The Scrip Dividend Scheme is subject to The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited granting the listing of and permission to deal in
the Scrip Shares to be issued pursuant thereto.

A circular giving full details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme together
with the relevant form of election will be sent to the Eligible
Shareholders on or around June 29, 2021. It is expected that the
Final Dividend warrants or share certificates for the Scrip Shares
will be despatched to the Eligible Shareholders on or around July
28, 2021.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting (‘AGM”) of the Company
will be held on May 28, 2021 and and the notice of AGM will be
published and despatched to the shareholders in due course. In
order to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM,
the Register of Members will be closed from May 25, 2021 to May
28, 2021, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. All transfer documents of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
May 24, 2021.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (Continued)

The proposed Final Dividend will be paid on or about July 28,
2021. For determining the entitlement to the proposed Final
Dividend, the Register of Members will be closed from June 17,
2021 to June 21, 2021, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
entittement to the Final Dividend, all transfer documents of the
Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on June 16, 2021.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT

A summary of the Group’s results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out on
pages 355 to 356. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in
notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively. Further
details of the Group’s investment properties are set out on pages
357 to 358.
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SENIOR NOTES

The Company issued US$250 million senior notes with a maturity
of seven years bearing a coupon interest rate of 6% in October
2016 and US$350 million senior notes with a maturity of five
years bearing a coupon interest rate of 6% in January 2017. The
Company also issued US$375 million senior notes in February
2018 and US$625 million, in aggregate, senior notes in May and
July 2018 with a maturity of three years bearing a coupon interest
rate of 6.375% and 7.9%, respectively. The Company issued
US$500 million senior notes with a maturity of three years bearing
a coupon interest rate of 8.625% in January 2019, US$500 million
senior notes with a maturity of four years bearing a coupon interest
rate of 8.5% in January 2019, US$500 million senior notes with
a maturity of five years bearing a coupon interest rate of 8.5% in
February 2019, additional US$400 million senior notes bearing a
coupon interest rate of 6% in July 2019 (which were consolidated
and form a single series with the US$250 million senior notes with
a maturity of seven years bearing a coupon interest rate of 6.0%
issued by the Company in October 2016), US$500 million senior
notes with a maturity of five years bearing a coupon interest rate
of 8.375% in October 2019, US$500 million senior notes with
a maturity of five and half years bearing a coupon interest rate
of 8.3% in November 2019, US$645 milion senior notes with a
maturity of six years bearing a coupon interest rate of 7.375% in
January 2020, US$400 million senior notes with a maturity of five
years bearing a coupon interest rate of 7.7% in February 2020,
US$40 million senior notes with a maturity of one year bearing a
coupon interest rate of 7.5% in June 2020 and US$300 million
green senior notes with a maturity of six years bearing a coupon
interest rate of 7.85% in August 2020, respectively. For the details
of the senior notes of the Company, please refer to note 31 to the
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of Cayman lIslands,
the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

On August 5, 2020, the Company announced that a tender offer
was being made (the “2021 Notes Tender Offer”) to purchase for
cash outstanding 6.375% senior notes due 2021 in the aggregate
principal amount of US$375,000,000 (the “2021 Notes”) prior to
maturity. The 2021 Notes Tender Offer expired at 4:00 p.m. London
Time, on August 12, 2020. The Company had accepted for
purchase all the 2021 Notes in an aggregate principal amount of
US$54,853,000 validly tendered at or prior to the aforementioned
expiration deadline. The 2021 Notes Tender Offer was completed
on August 14, 2020. The Company had completed the repurchase
of an aggregate principal amount of US$54,853,000 of the 2021
Notes, representing 14.63% of the outstanding principal amount
of US$375,000,000 prior to the 2021 Notes Tender Offer. The
repurchased 2021 Notes had been cancelled. After cancellation of
the repurchased 2021 Notes, the aggregate outstanding principal
amount of the 2021 Notes is US$320,147,000. For details of the
repurchase, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated August 5, 2020, August 13, 2020 and August 14, 2020.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 36 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As of December 31, 2020, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to RMB1,079,244,000, of which RMB1,030,947,000 has
been proposed as final dividend for the Year. The amount of
RMB1,079,244,000 represents the Company’s share premium,
which may be distributable, provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, if any,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
RMB7,801,000 (2019: RMB34,864,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, no sales to the Group’s five largest customers
and purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for 30% or more of the total sales for the Year and of the total
purchases for the Year, respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Lung On (Chairman)

Ms. Kwok Ying Lan (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Lin Conghui

Ms. Lam Yu Fong

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Xie Mei

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang
Dr. Zhai Pu

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of Messrs. Lam Kwong Siu, Wee Henny Soon Chiang
and Dr. Zhai Pu, and as at the date of this report still considers
them to be independent.

DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior

management of the Group are set out on pages 121 to 127 of this
annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Lam Lung On, Ms. Kwok Ying Lan, and Mr. Lin
Conghui, being executive Directors, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from November 2, 2012, which has been renewed for another term
of three years commencing from November 2, 2015 and November
2, 2018 respectively, subject to termination by either party giving
not less than three months’ written notice and retirement and
re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu and Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang, being
independent non-executive Directors, for a term of three years
commencing from November 2, 2012. Upon expiry of the term, the
Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of Mr. Lam
Kwong Siu and Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang, to renew the term
for another three years commencing from November 2, 2015 and
November 2, 2018 respectively, which is subject to termination by
either party giving not less than one month’s written notice and
retirement and re-election at the annual general meetings of the
Company in accordance with the Articles of Association and the
Listing Rules.

Dr. Zhai Pu has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from December 28, 2016. The Company has
issued a letter of appointment to Dr. Zhai, for a term of three years
commencing from December 28, 2016, which has been renewed
for another term of three years commencing from December 28,
2019, subject to termination by either party giving not less than one
month’s written notice and retirement and re-election at the annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles
of Association and the Listing Rules.

Ms. Xie Mei has been appointed as a non-executive Director
with effect from September 24, 2018. The Company has entered
into a service contract with Ms. Xie Mei, for a term of three
years commencing from September 24, 2018, which is subject
to termination by either party giving not less than one month’s
written notice and retirement and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association and the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

Ms. Lam Yu Fong has been appointed as an executive Director
with effect from October 25, 2018. The Company has entered
into a service contract with Ms. Lam Yu Fong, for a term of three
years commencing from October 25, 2018, which is subject
to termination by either party giving not less than one month’s
written notice and retirement and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association and the Listing Rules.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not terminable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, none of Directors
are considered to have interests in a business which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group.

DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees and emoluments are subject to review by the
Remuneration Committee and approval by the Board which are
determined with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 46 to the financial statements, no
Director had an interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a
Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.
In addition, liability insurance for directors and senior management
of the Company is maintained by the Company with appropriate
coverage for certain legal actions against the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of
the connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
disclosed in note 46 to the financial statements.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were
entered into () in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favorable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and (jii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION (Continued)

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor's Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the Group
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, certain Directors and companies controlled by
certain Directors entered into transactions with the Company
which are disclosed in note 46 “Related Party Transactions” to the
consolidated financial statements of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

At December 31, 2020, the interests of the Directors in the share
capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ”), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

ESHRIDERS

2020512 A318 - EE N AR RIS A BEEAE (F
ERBHFRAEGY ([FHRKBAEGG])EXVE) B
BRAFEBTHERARBRIEEH RAEGHIE352
BEATEMELM IRELEMBITAZESETES
R HWIZETRBEME AR A REBH RN
T

Long Positions in Ordinary Shares of the Company: RAQXATZRERNEBS:

Percentage of

Controlled the Company’s

Corporation issued share

Note  Directly owned owned Through spouse Total capital
PN

BRITRE

Name of director EEHE BisE EREREE SEHLEES BBER @t MWEIR

Mr. Lam Lung On MHER S @ 6,036,485 1,660771,721(0)  1,670,588438  3,346,396,644 58.77

Ms. Kwok Ying Lan PEELL (a) 1,204,397 1,669,384,041(c)  1,675,808,206  3,346,396,644 58.77

Mr. Lin Conghui MIBE % & 8,931,943 - - 8,931,943 0.16

(@  Ms. Kwok Ying Lan and Mr. Lam Lung On are married to each  (a) SPEBLZ THEMEREEBE RS-
other.

() These 1,669,771,721 Shares were registered in the name of  (b) #%1,669,771, 7210 A LB HER AR ([EE])
Studious Profits Limited (“Studious Profits”). Mr. Lam Lung On held HEEL MERLSEREEHN2IEHITRA
100% of the entire issued share capital of Studious Profits and WRBEZELFLMBEKRAGERAREEEREN
was deemed to be interested in the 1,669,771,721 Shares held by 1,669,771,721R%f% 17 ©
Studious Profits pursuant to the SFO.

(©) These 1,669,384,041 Shares were registered in the name of ()  #%1,669,384,041E & AB M RAR AR ([E

Plentiful Wise Developments Limited (“Plentiful Wise”). Ms. Kwok
Ying Lan held 100% of the entire issued share capital of Plentiful
Wise and was deemed to be interested in the 1,669,384,041
Shares held by Plentiful Wise pursuant to the SFO.

Save as provided above and in the sub-section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, none of the Directors have any interests
or short positions or short positions in the share capital of the
Company or its associated corporations.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at
December 31, 2020, the following shareholders, other than those
disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares”
in this Directors’ Report section of this annual report, had notified
the Company of its interests and/or short positions in the Shares
and underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO and so far as the Directors were aware, persons other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had an
interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Report of the Directors (Continued)

N E )

T RIRRNAR D ERS

AATIRERES R EKRAIEIBBRREFENEE
MR A MR - R2020F 128318  BRAARFER[ES
gREIANEETHORMOERS] —BEEIN THBRE
EMEARABERAR ARG RABERD T HEBIRE
BEL IS IEHEXVE F2R FEID FIEX BT HE
WERSE/SAR  RBREZMA TIAL (EE
RRAFEmREITHRABBRIN RAR T IG5 A8 R
PR AN REEF KA EIEDI 33615 17
ENELMaERIOAR

Percentage of
the Company’s

Number of issued share
Name of substantial shareholder Note Capacity/Nature of interest Shares capital
AR H
B2EBTRA
FTERRER fier B4 HEEEE ROEE WAL
Overseas Chinese Town (Asia) Holdings Limited () Interest of controlled 566,184,108 9.94
corporation

EHW (M) ERBRLQAE @ XEfEE#ER

City Legend International Limited () Beneficial owner 566,184,108 9.94
ZEFE AR AR @ Em#EAA

(@ City Legend International Limited (EEEEEBERAF)is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Overseas Chinese Town (Asia)
Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability, the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock
code: 03366.HK).

Save as provided above, the Company has not been notified by
any person who had any interests and/or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On May 24, 2010, a share option scheme (the “2010 Scheme”)
was adopted and approved by the then shareholders of the
Company for a period of 10 years commencing on the adoption
date. The 2010 Scheme expired on May 23, 2020, but the
share options already granted under the 2010 Scheme before its
expiration remain valid.

On June 4, 2020, a new share option scheme (the “2020 Scheme”)
was adopted and approved by the Shareholders for a period of 10
years commencing from the adoption date.

2010 Scheme

Pursuant to the 2010 Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion,
invite any directors (including executive directors, non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors) and employees
of any member of the Group and any advisors, consultants,
distributors, contractors, customers, suppliers, agents, business
partners, joint venture business partners, service providers of
any member of the Group who the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group to
participate in the 2010 Scheme.

On December 31, 2012, the Company granted share options
(the “Share Options”) under the 2010 Scheme to certain directors
and employees of the Group (the “Grantees”) which, subject to
their acceptance, entitles them to subscribe for an aggregate of
43,693,200 new shares of HK$0.1 each (the “Shares”) in the share
capital of the Company, as adjusted as a result of the bonus issue
of the Shares by the Company in July 2013.

On December 31, 2013, the Company further granted the Share
Options under the 2010 Scheme to the Grantees which, subject to
the acceptance of the Grantees, entitles the Grantees to subscribe
for an aggregate of 11,626,000 new Shares.

On January 20, 2015, the Company granted the Share Options
under the 2010 Scheme to the Grantees which, subject to their
acceptance, entitles the Grantees to subscribe for an aggregate of
16,445,000 new Shares.

On January 27, 2016, the Company granted the Share Options
under the 2010 Scheme to the Grantees which, subject to their
acceptance, entitles the Grantees to subscribe for an aggregate of
19,790,000 new Shares.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

2010 Scheme (Continued)

On January 26, 2017 and July 21, 2017, the Company granted
the Share Options under the 2010 Scheme to the Grantees which,
subject to their acceptance, entitles the Grantees to subscribe
for an aggregate of 22,690,000 and 2,500,000 new Shares
respectively.

On January 25, 2018, the Company granted the Share Options
under the 2010 Scheme to the Grantees which, subject to their
acceptance, entitles the Grantees to subscribe for an aggregate of
36,860,000 new Shares.

On January 24, 2019, the Company granted the Share Options
under the 2010 Scheme to the Grantees which, subject to their
acceptance, entitles the Grantees to subscribe for an aggregate of
45,270,000 new Shares.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

2010 Scheme (Continued)

On January 22, 2020, the Company granted the Share Options
under the 2010 Scheme to the Grantees which, subject to their
acceptance, entitles the Grantees to subscribe for an aggregate B

BIRRESTE (&)
20105518l (&)

of 64,208,000 new Shares, the details of which are disclosed as

202091 A22H » AR A E R 120105 &) A A& 1% A
BREBRE (EASERABERNTAESR)  HEARA
& H64,208,0000% M fn - EFFIBT

below:
Share options Closing price
reclassified/ of shares
Share options cancelled/  Share options immediately
Share options awarded lapsed exercised Share options before the
Executive Director, outstanding during the during the during the outstanding date on which
Key Management asat period ended period ended period ended asat share options
Personnel and Period during which share January 1, December 31, December 31, December 31, Exercise price December 31, were awarded
other eligible employees  Date of grant  options exercisable 2020 2020 2020 2020 (HKS) 2020 (HKS)
HZ2020F
HZE20205 12A318 BE20205 RIPH R
H2020%F 12A31H LFE 128318 A2020%F REBRE
irES. 1A1R tFE EFSE/ LEE 12A31H BEATH
TEEEARR RETREN RGN 28/ KU AT TEE RBOENE KHE
HitaERER REAH BRETFIEZHY BREHE" BREYE BREHE BREXE (%) REHE (#B7x)
Executive Director
HiTES
Lam Lung On 31/12/2012 1/1/2020-31/12/2022 360,000 - - (360,000) 1.8750 - 1.87501
HEZ 31/12/2013 1/1/2021-31/12/2023 300,000 - - - 1.9300 300,000 1.9300
20/1/2015 21/1/2020-20/1/2025 300,000 - - (300,000) 1.8920 - 1.8920
20/1/2015 21/1/2022-20/1/2025 300,000 - - - 1.8920 300,000 1.8920
27/1/2016 28/1/2021-27/1/2026 300,000 - - - 1.8120 300,000 1.8120
27/1/2016 28/1/2023-27/1/2026 300,000 - - - 1.8120 300,000 1.8120
21/7/2017 22/7/2020-21/7/2027 400,000 - - - 4.5500 400,000 4.5500
21/7/2017 22/7/2022-21/7/2027 300,000 - - - 4.5500 300,000 4.5500
21/7/2017 22/7/2024-21/7/2027 300,000 - - - 4.5500 300,000 4.5500
25/1/2018 26/1/2021-25/1/2028 800,000 - - - 5.8800 800,000 5.8800
25/1/2018 26/1/2023-25/1/2028 600,000 - - - 5.8800 600,000 5.8800
25/1/2018 26/1/2025-25/1/2028 600,000 - - - 5.8800 600,000 5.8800
24/1/2019 25/1/2022-24/1/2029 800,000 - - - 3.6500 800,000 3.6500
24/1/2019 25/1/2024-24/1/2029 600,000 - - - 3.6500 600,000 3.6500
24/1/2019 25/1/2026-24/1/2029 600,000 - - - 3.6500 600,000 3.6500
22/1/2020 23/1/2023-22/1/2030 - 1,200,000 - - 42740 1,200,000 4.2740
22/1/2020 23/1/2025-22/1/2030 - 900,000 - - 42740 900,000 4.2740
22/1/2020 23/1/2027-22/1/2030 - 900,000 - - 42740 900,000 4.2740
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BEE2RS .
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BIRREStEl (|
2010 Scheme (Continued) 2010518 (@)
Share options Closing price
reclassified/ of shares
Share options cancelled/ Share options immediately
Share options awarded lapsed exercised Share options before the
Executive Director, outstanding during the during the during the outstanding date on which
Key Management asat period ended period ended period ended asat share options
Personnel and Period during which share January 1, December 31, December 31, December 31, Exercise price December 31, were awarded
other eligible employees  Date of grant  options exercisable 20207 2020 2020 2020 (HKS) 2020 (HKS)
BZ2020F
HZ2020% 12A318  EE2020F RARBE
H2020F 128310 LEE 12A318 R2020F R BRE
HiTEE: 1818 tFE  BHAE/ LEE 12A318 BEAH
TZEEAER RETEN LS VS {1 RTER TRE RBTEHE KHE
HttaERES REAH BRETFIEZHE BREHE" BREHE BREHA BREHE (B7) REHE (Bx)
Kwok Ying Lan 31/12/2012 1/1/2020-31/12/2022 360,000 - - (360,000) 1.8750 - 1.87501
PEH 31/12/2013 1/1/2021-31/12/2023 300,000 - - - 1.9300 300,000 1.9300
20/1/2015 21/1/2020-20/1/2025 300,000 - - (300,000) 1.8920 - 1.8920
20/1/2015 21/1/2022-20/1/2025 300,000 - - - 1.8920 300,000 1.8920
27/1/2016 28/1/2019-27/1/2026 276,000 - - - 1.8120 276,000 1.8120
27/1/2016 28/1/2021-27/1/2026 300,000 - - - 1.8120 300,000 1.8120
27/1/2016 28/1/2023-27/1/2026 300,000 - - - 1.8120 300,000 1.8120
21/7/2017 22/7/2020-21/7/2027 400,000 - - - 4.5500 400,000 4.5500
21/7/2017 22/7/2022-21/7/2027 300,000 - - - 45500 300,000 4.5500
21/7/2017 22/7/2024-21/7/2027 300,000 - - - 4.5500 300,000 4.5500
25/1/2018 26/1/2021-25/1/2028 800,000 - - - 5.8800 800,000 5.8800
25/1/2018 26/1/2023-25/1/2028 600,000 - - - 5.8800 600,000 5.8800
25/1/2018 26/1/2025-25/1/2028 600,000 - - - 5.8800 600,000 5.8800
24/1/2019 25/1/2022-24/1/2029 800,000 - - - 3.6500 800,000 3.6500
24/1/2019 25/1/2024-24/1/2029 600,000 - - - 3.6500 600,000 3.6500
24/1/2019 25/1/2026-24/1/2029 600,000 - - - 3.6500 600,000 3.6500
22/1/2020 23/1/2023-22/1/2030 - 1,200,000 - - 4.2740 1,200,000 4.2740
22/1/2020 23/1/2025-22/1/2030 - 900,000 - - 42740 900,000 4.2740
22/1/2020 23/1/2027-22/1/2030 - 900,000 - - 4.2740 900,000 42740
Lin Conghui 31/12/2012 1/1/2018-31/12/2022 2,590,000 - - (2,296,000) 1.8750 294,000 1.8750"
B 31/12/2012 1/1/2020-31/12/2022 3,780,000 - - - 1.8750 3,780,000 1.8750"
27/1/2016 28/1/2021-27/1/2026 150,000 - - - 1.8120 150,000 1.8120
27/1/2016 28/1/2023-27/1/2026 150,000 - - - 1.8120 150,000 1.8120
21/7/2017 22/7/2020-21/7/2027 200,000 - - - 4.5500 200,000 4.5500
21/7/2017 22/7/2022-21/7/2027 150,000 - - - 45500 150,000 4.5500
21/7/2017 22/7/2024-21/7/2027 150,000 - - - 4.5500 150,000 4.5500
25/1/2018 26/1/2021-25/1/2028 200,000 - - - 5.8800 200,000 5.8800
25/1/2018 26/1/2023-25/1/2028 150,000 - - - 5.8800 150,000 5.8800
25/1/2018 26/1/2025-25/1/2028 150,000 - - - 5.8800 150,000 5.8800
24/1/2019 25/1/2022-24/1/2029 200,000 - - - 3.6500 200,000 3.6500
24/1/2019 25/1/2024-24/1/2029 150,000 - - - 3.6500 150,000 3.6500
24/1/2019 25/1/2026-24/1/2029 150,000 - - - 3.6500 150,000 3.6500
22/1/2020 23/1/2023-22/1/2030 - 320,000 - - 42740 320,000 4.2740
22/1/2020 23/1/2025-22/1/2030 - 240,000 - - 4.2740 240,000 4.2740
22/1/2020 23/1/2027-22/1/2030 - 240,000 - - 42740 240,000 4.2740
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EE2RS @)
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BARREST 8l ()
2010 Scheme (Continued) 2010CE 5181 (@)
Share options Closing price
reclassified/ of shares
Share options cancelled/ Share options immediately
Share options awarded lapsed exercised Share options before the
Executive Director, outstanding during the during the during the outstanding date on which
Key Management asat period ended period ended period ended asat share options
Personnel and Period during which share January 1, December 31, December 31, December 31, Exercise price December 31, were awarded
other eligible employees  Date of grant  options exercisable 2020 2020 2020 2020 (HKS) 2020 (HKS)
BZ22020%F
HZ20205 12A318  EE2020F RARBEE
H2020F 128318 LEE 12A318 R2020F R BRE
HiTESE: 1818 LFE  BHAE/ LFE 12A318 BEAH
TZEEAER RETREN S VS (1) RTER TRE RBTEHE KHE
HttaERES REAH BRETFIEZHE BREZE" BREHE BREHE BREHA (B7) REHE (Bx)
Key Management Personnel and other eligible employees
IZEBABREMAERES
N/A TR 31/12/2012 1/1/2016-31/12/2022 161,280 - (2,400) (7,680) 1.8750 151,200 1.87501"
N/A @A 31/12/2012 1/1/2018-31/12/2022 70,920 - (1,800) (21,240 1.8750 47,880 1.87501
N/A TR 31/12/2012 1/1/2020-31/12/2022 8,106,120 - (1,800) (7,678,440) 1.8750 425,880 1.87501"
N/A RNE A 31/12/2013 1/1/2017-31/12/2023 296,800 - (2,000) (8,400) 1.9300 286,400 1.9300
N/A TR 31/12/2013 1/1/2019-31/12/2023 594,300 - (10,500) (305,700) 1.9300 278,100 1.9300
N/A RNE A 31/12/2013 1/1/2021-31/12/2023 972,300 - (12,000) - 1.9300 960,300 1.9300
N/A TR 20/1/2015 21/1/2018-20/1/2025 292,000 - 0 (10,000 1.8920 282,000 1.8920
N/A RNE A 20/1/2015 21/1/2020-20/1/2025 2,431,500 - (9,000) (691,500 1.8920 1,731,000 1.8920
N/A TR 20/1/2015 21/1/2022-20/1/2025 2,431,500 - (9,000) - 1.8920 2,422,500 1.8920
N/A RNE A 27/1/2016 28/1/2019-27/1/2026 622,000 - (120,000) (192,000 1.8120 310,000 1.8120
N/A TER 27/1/2016 28/1/2021-27/1/2026 2,926,500 - (105,000) - 1.8120 2,821,500 1.8120
N/A @A 27/1/2016 28/1/2023-27/1/2026 2,926,500 - (105,000) - 1.8120 2,821,500 1.8120
N/A TER 26/1/2017 27/1/2020-26/1/2027 6,628,000 - (620,000) (2,504,000) 2.6200 3,504,000 2.6200
N/A @A 26/1/2017 27/1/2022-26/1/2027 4,971,000 - (534,000) - 2.6200 4,437,000 2.6200
N/A TER 26/1/2017 27/1/2024-26/1/2027 4,971,000 - (534,000) - 2.6200 4,437,000 2.6200
N/A @A 25/1/2018 26/1/2021-25/1/2028 7,848,000 - (1,284,000) - 5.8800 6,564,000 5.8800
N/A TER 25/1/2018 26/1/2023-25/1/2028 5,886,000 - (963,000) - 5.8800 4,923,000 5.8800
N/A RNE A 25/1/2018 26/1/2025-25/1/2028 5,886,000 - (963,000) - 5.8800 4,923,000 5.8800
N/A TER 24/1/2019 25/1/2022-24/1/2029 12,718,000 - (2,574,000) - 3.6500 10,144,000 3.6500
N/A RNEA 24/1/2019 25/1/2024-24/1/2029 9,538,500 - (1,930,500) - 3.6500 7,608,000 3.6500
N/A RER 24/1/2019 25/1/2026-24/1/2029 9,538,500 - (1,930,500) - 3.6500 7,608,000 3.6500
N/A T F 22/1/2020 23/1/2023-22/1/2030 - 22,963,200 (4,762,000) - 4.2740 18,201,200 4.2740
N/A RER 22/1/2020 23/1/2025-22/1/2030 - 17,222,400 (3,571,500) - 4.2740 13,650,900 42740
N/A RNE A 22/1/2020 28/1/2027-22/1/2030 - 17,222,400 (3,571,500) - 42740 13,650,900 4.2740

(1) Adjusted as a result of the bonus issue of shares by the Company (1) 4IRS EE AT B AR A R2013F7 AEH A% -

in July 2013.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

2010 Scheme (Continued)

The grant of Share Options to each of the above Directors had
been approved by the independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with Rule 17.04(1) of the Listing Rules and approved
by the remuneration committee of the Company.

The purpose of the 2010 Scheme is to provide Participants with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company,
to encourage Participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole, and to provide the Company with a
flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to Participants.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted under the 2010 Scheme
shall not exceed 345,599,999 shares of the Company in aggregate,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company on
the date of adoption of the 2010 Scheme (i.e. May 24, 2010),
as adjusted as a result of the bonus issues of the Shares by the
Company in July 2012 and July 2013, and the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted under the 2010 Scheme and any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company to each Participant in
any 12 month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue. At the time of grant of the options under the 2010
Scheme, the Company may specify any minimum period(s) for
which the options must be held before it can be exercised. The
period within which the options under the 2010 Scheme may be
exercised will be specified by the Company at the time of grant.
This period must expire no later than 10 years from the relevant
date of grant.
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EE2RE @\

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

2010 Scheme (Continued)

The amount payable on acceptance of an option to be granted
under the 2010 Scheme is HK$1.00 and the exercise price of the
option shall be such price determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion and notified to the Participant at the time an offer of the
grant of an option is made, but in any event, shall be no less than
the higher of:

(@ the closing price of the share of the Company as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on the date of grant;

(b) the average closing price of the share of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; or

(c) the nominal value of the share of the Company on the date of
grant.

2020 Scheme

Pursuant to the 2020 Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion,
invite any directors (including executive directors, non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors) and employees
of any member of the Group and any advisors, consultants,
distributors, contractors, customers, suppliers, agents, business
partners, joint venture business partners, service providers of
any member of the Group who the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group to
participate in the 2020 Scheme.

On January 28, 2021, the Company granted the Share Options
under the 2020 Scheme to the Grantees which, subject to their
acceptance, entitle the Grantees to subscribe for an aggregate
of 69,585,000 new Shares, among which 3,000,000, 3,000,000,
800,000 and 1,000,000 Share Options were granted to Mr. Lam
Lung On, Ms. Kwok Ying Lan, Mr. Lin Conghui and Ms. Lam Yu
Fong respectively. Save as disclosed above, none of the Grantees
is a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules).

The grant of Share Options to each of the above Directors had
been approved by the independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with Rule 17.04(1) of the Listing Rules and approved
by the remuneration committee of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

2020 Scheme (Continued)

The purpose of the 2020 Scheme is to provide participants with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company,
to encourage participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole, and to provide the Company with a
flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to participants.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted under the 2020 Scheme
shall not exceed 522,155,066 shares of the Company in aggregate,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
on the date of adoption of the 2020 Scheme (i.e. June 4, 2020),
and the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted under the 2020
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
to each participant in any 12 month period shall not exceed 1%
of the total number of shares in issue. At the time of grant of the
options under the 2020 Scheme, the Company may specify any
minimum period(s) for which the options must be held before it can
be exercised. The period within which the options under the 2020
Scheme may be exercised will be specified by the Company at the
time of grant. This period must expire no later than 10 years from
the relevant date of grant.

The amount payable on acceptance of an option to be granted
under the 2020 Scheme is HK$1.00 and the exercise price of the
option shall be such price determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion and notified to the participant at the time an offer of the
grant of an option is made, but in any event, shall be no less than
the higher of:

(@  the closing price of the Shares of the Company as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on the date of grant;

(o)  the average closing price of the Shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; or

(c) the nominal value of the Shares of the Company on the date
of grant.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

2017 Facility Agreement

On November 1, 2017, the Company as borrower entered into a
facility agreement (the “2017 Facility Agreement”) with certain banks
as lenders in relation to 42-month term loan facilities in amounts of
US$258,000,000 and HK$334,000,000 (the “2017 Facility”). The
2017 Facility Agreement includes a condition imposing specific
performance obligation on Mr. Lam and Ms. Kwok, that it will
be an event of default, if () Mr. Lam and Ms. Kwok collectively
cease to maintain ownership of 51% or more of the voting share
capital (or equivalent right of ownership including where the voting
share capital may have been transferred by way of security or is
otherwise held by a nominee) of the Company, or power to direct
its policies and management, whether by contract or otherwise; or
(i) Mr. Lam ceases to be the chairman of the Board.

Upon and at any time after the occurrence of an event of
default, the lenders may immediately cancel all or any part of the
commitment and the outstanding amount together with interest
accrued thereon may become immediately due and payable.

As at December 31, 2020, the term loan facilities of
US$141,900,000 and HK$183,700,000 remained outstanding.

2019 Facility Agreement

On October 16, 2019, the Company as borrower entered into a
facility agreement (the “2019 Facility Agreement”) with certain banks
as lenders in relation to 42-month term loan facilities in amounts
of US$242,000,000 with the possibility of incremental term loan
facilities subject to and on the terms thereof (the “2019 Facility”).
The 2019 Facility Agreement includes a condition imposing specific
performance obligation on Mr. Lam and Ms. Kwok, that it will
be an event of default, if () Mr. Lam and Ms. Kwok collectively
cease to maintain ownership of 51% or more of the voting share
capital (or equivalent right of ownership including where the voting
share capital may have been transferred by way of security or is
otherwise held by a nominee) of the Company, or power to direct
its policies and management, whether by contract or otherwise;
or (i) any person other than Mr. Lam or Ms. Kwok becomes the
chairman of the Board.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES
(Continued)

2019 Facility Agreement (Continued)

Upon and at any time after the occurrence of an event of
default, the lenders may immediately cancel all or any part of the
commitment and the outstanding amount together with interest
accrued thereon may become immediately due and payable.

As at December 31, 2020, the term loan facilities of
US$242,000,000 remained outstanding.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report, being the latest practicable date prior to the
date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Board has reviewed the accounting
policies, accounting standards and practices adopted by the
Group, discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting
matters, and reviewed the consolidated financial statements and
results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2020.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares
listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The
Group’s subsidiaries are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
Samoa, Singapore, Hong Kong and China. The Group’s operations
are mainly carried out by the Group’s subsidiaries in China while
the Group also has a corporate and administrative office in Hong
Kong.
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EE2RE @\

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
(Continued)

Our establishments and operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the British
Virgin Islands, Samoa, Singapore, Hong Kong and China. During
the year ended December 31, 2020, as far as the Company is
aware of, there was no incidence of non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group’s business.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by the Company’s
auditors, Ernst & Young, who will retire and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming AGM. There has
been no change of the auditors of the Company since the listing
of the Company’s shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on
November 2, 2009.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lam Lung On v~
Chairman

Hong Kong
March 30, 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the management of the
Company are committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Company believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework that is essential
for effective management, a healthy corporate culture, successful
business growth and enhancing shareholders’ value. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasis a quality Board,
sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability to
all shareholders. The Company has applied the principles and
complied with all, except A.2.1, where applicable, of the code
provisions and, where applicable, most of the recommended best
practices as set out in Appendix 14 Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
throughout the year ended December 31, 2020.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and the shareholders at all times.

Dividend Policy

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to
shareholders of the Company to be its goal and endeavors to
maintain a dividend policy to achieve such goal. When considering
the dividend payment, the Board shall take into account the
factors including but not limited to our earnings and financial
condition, operating requirements, capital requirements and any
other conditions that the board may deem relevant. There is
no assurance that dividends of any amount will be declared or
distributed in any given period.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises eight
members, consisting of four executive Directors, one non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors as set out
below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Lung On (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Lin Conghui

Ms. Lam Yu Fong

Non-executive Director
Ms. Xie Mei

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang
Dr. Zhai Pu

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section
headed “Directors’ Biographies” of this annual report.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has provided an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and the Company considers each of them to be
independent.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors
are invited to serve in the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

The Directors have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other, except that Mr. Lam Lung
On, Chairman, executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, is the spouse of Ms. Kwok Ying Lan, our executive
Director, is the father of Ms. Lam Yu Fong, our executive Director
and brother-in-law of Mr. Lin Conghui, our executive Director.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

As regards the CG Code provision requiring Directors to disclose
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments as well as their
identity and the time involved, Directors have agreed to disclose
their commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

Directors are continually updated on the latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules, the CG Code and other regulatory
requirements in order to ensure the compliance with the same
by the Directors. Directors are also encouraged to participate in
professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. All of the existing Directors
had provided record of training they received during the year
to the Company. They participated in continuous professional
development mainly by attending seminars or reading various
materials regarding corporate governance, regulatory development
and other relevant topics.

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Training on
corporate
governance,
regulatory
development and
other relevant

topics
tEER.
EERRE
Directors EEgHE HihAgRE EREE I
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lam Lung On (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) MELREE (FEREENTE) v
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan (Vice Chairman) SEBLL (BIEE) v
Mr. Lin Conghui IR ME 5 A v
Ms. Lam Yu Fong eI+ v
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. Xie Mei A+ v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKBITES
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu WEIR L A& v
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang EEETAE 4
Dr. Zhai Pu B2LiE+L v/
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code of the Listing Rules
as a code of conduct of the Company for Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the
Directors have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended December 31, 2020.
Employees who are, or likely to be, in possession of unpublished
price sensitive information in relation to the Company or its shares
are required to prohibit from dealing with shares of the Company
during the black-out period.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Lam Lung On
is the Chairman and also the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.
After due consideration to the unique history and development
of the Group’s own business and structure, the Board decided
to maintain this structure. Mr. Lam has extensive experience in
real estate management projects, is responsible for the Group’s
overall strategy planning and business management. The Board
believes that the current structure gives significant benefits to
the Group as it maintains a strong and effective leadership and
ensures an efficient decision making process. Furthermore, the
Board comprises reputable and experienced professionals who
assist in maintaining a balance of power without compromising the
consistent leadership of the Group. The Chairman, as convener
and chairperson of Board meetings, has no special power which is
different from that of other Directors in the decision-making of the
Board.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Director has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of
three years while each of the independent non-executive Directors
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of three years.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and the
CG code, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation once
every three years and are subject to re-election. Newly appointed
Directors are also required to offer themselves of re-election at
the next following general meeting (in the case of filling a causal
vacancy) or at the next annual general meeting (in the case of
an addition to the existing Board) following their appointment.
Accordingly, four Directors, namely Mr. Lam Lung On, Mr. Wee
Henny Soon Chiang, Dr. Zhai Pu and Ms. Xie Mei shall retire from
office and are eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Board Meetings

During the Year, four board meetings were convened by the
Company. The attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings
was as follows:

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Number of
attendance
Directors EEZERE R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lam Lung On (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) MBELEE (EEREEHNTE) 4/4
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan (Vice Chairman) SR E (FFE) 4/4
Mr. Lin Conghui MREEIE S A 4/4
Ms. Lam Yu Fong MHF X+ 4/4
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. Xie Mei Azt 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHITES
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu MEI S & 4/4
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang =R 5 A 4/4
Dr. Zhai Pu BEBL 4/4

The Directors are provided with agenda and relevant Board
materials related to the agenda in advance before the meeting. They
can access to the senior management and the Company Secretary
of the Company at all time and, upon reasonable request, seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Apart from Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting with
all the independent non-executive Directors without presence of
the other Directors.
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TEEBRE (#)

THE BOARD (Continued)

Board Committees

To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the
Board has established four Board committees including the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and the sustainability committee (the
“Sustainability Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”).
The Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities
as set out in their respective terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang (chairman), Mr. Lam Kwong Siu and
Dr. Zhai Pu.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4.  develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

Directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee (both English and
Chinese versions), which follow closely the requirements of the
CG Code and are modified from time to time and adopted by the
Board, are posted on the websites of the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Year, the Audit Committee held meetings with the senior
management and independent auditor of the Company to review
the interim and annual results, and discuss the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company. The attendance of
the Directors at the Audit Committee meetings was as follows:

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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FR BEZZEGEARASMEREARRBIZH
MRTEH BEHARATHERFEERE Milw
NANEREERLANEERR -EEFLEEXEE

BB RAT

Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang (Chairman) ERBEE (L/E) 3/3
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu IS A& 3/3
Dr. Zhai Pu 2EEt 3/3
Remuneration Committee FHEES

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Lam Kwong Siu (chairman), Mr. Lam Lung On and Mr.
Wee Henny Soon Chiang.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include determining the policy and structure for the remuneration
of all executive Directors, evaluating the performance of executive
Directors and senior management, reviewing incentive schemes
and Directors’ service contracts and fixing the remuneration
packages for all Directors and senior management, and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
independent non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, which
follow closely the requirements of the Code Provisions, including
determination of the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and senior management, have been adopted by the
Board, and are posted on the Company’s website and Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s website.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held meetings to
review the structure of the remunerations, the performance of
executive Directors, the package of the new executive Director
and non-executive Director, the renewal service contracts of
Directors and grant of share options for Directors of the Company.
The attendance of the Directors at the Remuneration Committee
meetings was as follows:
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Mr. Lam Kwong Siu (Chairman) WREIR A (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Lam Lung On MEZ A& 2/2
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang EEEEE 2/2
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The remuneration of the senior management analysed by bands for
the year ended December 31, 2020 is set out below:

2= (@)
HFMESE (/)

DEFEE ST

%iizozoimﬁenaﬁiﬁ BREEAET

Number of Persons

Annual Income 2ERA AE
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 078 ¥ 21,000,0007% #& 5
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,0017% % 2=2,000,000/% #& 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,00178 # 24,000,000/ #& 3
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001/ ¥ Z=5,000,0007% #& 1

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Lam Kwong Siu (chairman), Mr. Lam Lung On and Mr.
Wee Henny Soon Chiang.

The nomination committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least once every
year to ensure that it has a balanced composition of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the businesses of
the Company, identifying, screening and recommending to the
Board appropriate candidates to serve as Directors, overseeing the
process for evaluating the performance of the Board, assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has made the terms of reference of the nomination
committee on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held meetings to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board. The attendance
of the Directors at the Nomination Committee meetings was as
follows:
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Mr. Lam Kwong Siu (Chairman) WEIREE (£E) 2/2
Mr. Lam Lung On MEER LA 2/2
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang EREEEE 2/2
Sustainability Committee IRKEEEEES

On November 27, 2020, the Company has established the
sustainability committee for the purpose of providing assistance
and advice in monitoring the decisions and practices of
management in achieving the Company’s goal to be a sustainable
organization. The Sustainability Committee currently comprises four
members, namely Ms. Lam Yu Fong (chairman), Mr. Lam Lung On,
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan and Mr. Lin Conghui.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Sustainability Committee (Continued)

The Sustainability Committee shall perform the following duties:

1.

Responsible for reviewing, and suggesting any changes
to, the Company’s strategy in respect of sustainable
development (the “SD Strategy”) more than twice a year
(including approving targets or key initiatives recommended
by the working groups under the Committee), ensuring that
the Company’s operations and practices are carried out in
line with the SD Strategy;

the Committee is also responsible for reviewing on an annual
basis the management approach and performance of the
Company in achieving targets or undertaking key initiatives
recommended by the following six working groups which
are responsible for their respective aspects of sustainable
development:

(i) the Employee Safety and Health Working Group;
(i)  the Anti-Corruption Management Working Group;
(i) the Environmental Performance Working Group;
(iv)  the Social Performance Working Group;

(v)  the Governance Performance Working Group; and

(v the Sustainable Development Communication and
Engagement Committee;

the Committee is responsible for reviewing any significant
risks, opportunities or investments in connection with the
implementation of the SD Strategy, and approving any
material matters (whether financial or otherwise) arising from
such review;

the Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving the
annual Environmental, Social and Governance Report and
any relevant ancillary public documents; and

to report relevant matters of significance relating to
sustainable development to the Board through its Chairman.

The Company has made the terms of reference of the sustainability
committee on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Sustainability Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Sustainability Committee held meetings
to review the implementation of the SD Strategy and its future
development priorities. The attendance of the Directors at the
Sustainability Committee meetings was as follows:

BEEXE (@)
ORFERXEEZES (#)

FR AFERRZEGRTEAETHIHERRER
BZATRAREREH EFHFEHELEREE

ERHERMT

Ms. Lam Yu Fong (Chairman) MBEFt (E) 2/2
Mr. Lam Lung On MEZ A& 2/2
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan FEF L+ 2/2
Mr. Lin Conghui ARBENE S A 2/2
Board Diversity Policy BESSITCBR

The Company has established a policy concerning diversity of
Board members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) with a view to
achieving a sustainable and balanced development. In designing
the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance

During the Year, the Company has arranged appropriate Directors
and Officers liability insurance coverage in respect of legal action
against its Directors and officers.

Internal Controls

The Board is ultimately responsible for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and for review of their
effectiveness. The risk management and internal control systems
are designed to help the achievement of business objectives in the
following categories:

1)  effectiveness and efficiency of operations which include
safeguarding assets against unauthorised user or disposition;

2) reliability of financial and operational reporting; and

3) compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and internal
policies and procedures.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Internal Controls (Continued)

An internal audit department has been established to perform
regular financial and operational reviews and recommend
necessary actions to the relevant management. The works carried
out by the internal audit department ensure the risk management
and internal control system are in place and function properly as
intended. The results of the internal audit and reviews are reported
to the Directors of the Company. The Directors have reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems during the Year and considered them effective and
adequate.

Independent Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the remuneration paid/
payable to the external auditor of the Company is set out as

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
EXRECES (8

EEA-4¢-)
P BB IZEE (8)

M EPEAZAPPI O R RAL - A E I 1T RIS B B it -
YABEREREABRZMTITE NEFEZAFIE
T TR RRERER EIE R N B ST R A @i
T UIRBEDEEWEF NBEXZLEHNER
ERARREEFRE - EFCEHRNEAFELAEEA
SEEMABEZERFANBRE LEREEUNE

5o

18 17 % 21 6 89 5 B

H E2020F12A31H L F[E BT B T A QRSN
IEiZEEm B AT

follows:
RMB

Service rendered FriR AR 7% AREETT
Audit service for 2020: 2020%F [€ BT IR 75 -

— Annual audit services of the Company — RN RIFEEIRS 5,000,000

— Property management spin-off services —MEERDIFRE 3,400,000
Non-audit services in relation to: BT EENIEERS

— Issue of USD senior notes —BIELELER 3,200,000

— Tax advisory services — B E5 1,000,000

— Others —HAb 750,000
Communication with Shareholders and B ER BB R R R R RER!

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company ensures that fair and transparent disclosure is
made for its business and financial performance through a variety
of formal communication channels. Information regarding the
Company is published in its website: https://yuzhou-group.com/
Interim and annual reports, circulars and notices of the Company
are despatched to the shareholders. The website of the Company
provides information such as e-mail address, correspondence
address, telephone numbers for enquiries, and provides information
on the business activities of the Group. Shareholders may at any
time send their enquires and concerns to the Board in writing either
by email to ir@yuzhou-group.com or direct mailing to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary.

AARIBBRSZEIENNBBEERE BRYELEF LY
BRAELRATMERNEEZE - BRARAIHNERR
H 48 ik https://yuzhou-group.com/ A 45 » It & [A) f% 3R
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HEBAEEEREE R E K - B 5 AT b5 555 16 T H
ir@yuzhou-group.comsk & # S E E 42 X AR R 7]
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Communication with Shareholders and
Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the
Company. Pursuant to the Articles of Association, shareholders
holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in the requisition; and the Company
shall hold general meeting within two months after receiving the
requisition. If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than
a retiring Director for election as a Director at a general meeting,
pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Shareholder (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote
at the general meeting shall send a written notice, duly signed by
the shareholder, of his/her intention to propose such person for
election and also a notice signed by the person to be proposed of
his/her willingness to be elected. These notices should be lodged
at the Company’s head office or the office of the Hong Kong
Share Registrar of the Company. The period for lodgement of such
notices shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice
of such general meeting and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting. All substantive resolutions at
general meetings are decided on a poll which is conducted by the
company secretary and scrutinised by the share registrar of the
Company. The results of the poll are published on the websites
of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Regularly
updated financial, business and other information on the Group is
made available on the website of the Company for shareholders
and investors.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Communication with Shareholders and
Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Code Provision A.6.7

Under code A.6.7, independent non-executive Directors should
attend general meetings of the Company. Attendance of the
Directors at the general meeting was as follow:

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Number of
attendance
Directors EEZERE R E
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lam Lung On (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) MR EE (EEREENTE) 1/1
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan (Vice Chairman) SR (FFE) 11
Mr. Lin Conghui MERRE ST 1/1
Ms. Lam Yu Fong ZN==p 1/
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. Xie Mei A+ 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu MEIRE A 1/1
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang = A58 5 A4 11
Dr. Zhai Pu BEBL 1/1

Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group which were
prepared in accordance with statutory requirement and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the publication of
the financial statements of the Group is in a timely manner.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding its
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 164 to 171.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIZEENRS

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Yuzhou Group Holdings Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yuzhou
Group Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as “Yuzhou
Properties Company Limited”) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 172 to 354, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BIIBEIRS (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to

FARESI SR (&)

AZBEMCBITARSE [RHA R FaT 4756 BEHE
AEMNEF| —HRzBEE BRAEZEEERDN
BE-HEN ARBMOES TEREBERTAES
AHh AR & B IS R R BN BA R RO B B 1 AR ET RO B AR
FeARRHBEMBEAEFONER SEBRATEEMN
TR RARBEN N BEGRA MBS HRRNET
ERRHAER-

address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion

on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
BREISE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ARBMETEHERENETENSR

Adequacy of income tax and other taxes provision

P38 R AL b B IR 15 7 /2 1

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s
corporate income tax charge of RMB271 million and land
appreciation tax charge of RMB315 million were calculated at
a statutory tax rate at 25% and the land appreciation tax at
tax rates ranged from 30% to 60%, respectively, incurred by
the Group’s subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China.
The determination of the tax provision involves significant
management estimates about the group companies’ taxable
income and the appropriate application of the tax rate, in
particular when estimating the land appreciation tax. We
identified this as a key audit matter because the income
tax expense is significant to the Group and the income
tax provision assessment process is complex and involves
estimates.

Related disclosures of accounting judgements and estimates
and tax provisions are included in notes 3, 10 and 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ELE2020F12A31HIEFE: BESERPEARKME
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166 BWAEEMBEBRARAT  Yozhou Group Holdings Company Limited

o We obtained management’s schedules to assess their tax
computation and recalculated the income tax expenses.

° We checked the financial information used in these
management schedules to the corresponding accounting
records or other underlying documentation.

o We involved our internal tax specialists to evaluate
management’s application of the relevant tax regulations
when performing the tax computation, on a sample basis.

° We also examined the correspondences with tax
authorities and identified if there were any uncertain tax
positions or tax disputes.

o We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures of
income tax in the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
ARETEE

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BB ENRE (&)

EEESHEIEIE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FRBMETEHEAREAETENSR

Valuation of investment properties and inventory properties acquired through business combinations

REVEREBEBEHITREFEYXE G E

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had investment
properties amounting to RMB14,628 million which were
measured at fair value. In addition, the Group acquired
property projects with inventory properties of RMB15,859
million through business combinations during the current
year. Management engaged an external valuer to determine
the fair values of the investment properties at the end of the
reporting period and the fair values of the inventory properties
at the date of acquisitions. Different valuation models were
applied by the external valuer on different types of investment
properties and inventory properties. We identified this as
a key audit matter because the carrying amounts of the
investment properties and the inventory properties acquired
through business combinations are significant and significant
estimation is required to determine their fair values.

Related disclosures of accounting judgements and estimates
and fair values of investment properties are included in notes
3, 14 and 39(b)()) to the consolidated financial statements.

R20205F12A31H BERERAAEFENKRENES
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BHRSHAHRETMEEVERABENRBEHNEZEE M
MRS ~ 14239(b)())

We evaluated the objectivity, independence and
competency of the external valuer engaged by
management.

We also involved our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the assumptions, methodologies
and parameters adopted in the valuation, on a sample
basis. Our internal valuation specialists independently re-
performed the valuation based on the market values,
rental values, capitalisation rates and development profits
of the properties located in the adjacent location.

We reviewed management’s development plans and
budgets with reference to statistics for estimated
construction costs and signed construction contracts or
quotations from suppliers, on a sample basis.

We compared the valuation performed by the external
valuer to the range provided by our internal valuation
specialists. We further assessed the correctness of the
property related data used as inputs for the valuation.

We conducted site visits to properties under construction
to observe the progress of the development, on a sample
basis.

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures of
the valuation of the investment properties and inventory
properties acquired through business combinations in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BIIBEIRS (&)

OTHER INFORMATION
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other

INCLUDED IN THE

information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BIIBEIRS (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chow Chi Chung.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
MO IR

Year ended 31 December 2020 & 2202012310 L FE

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz AR®BTRT ARETT
REVENUE PN 5 10,411,604 23,240,705
Cost of sales & K AR (9,931,691) (17,148,995)
Gross profit EF 479,913 6,091,710
Fair value gain on investment properties, net KEMER R EREHFEE 14 387,260 600,546
Other income and gains H A R U e 5 715,235 2,167,688
Selling and distribution expenses SHE & sHA AR (428,036) (659,594)
Administrative expenses TEAX (803,737)  (1,090,645)
Other expenses H A 5 2 (309,615) (310,739)
Finance costs — interest expenses BEKA—F B 6 (124,281) (181,601)
Finance costs — loss on early redemption of BLERA— IR ERELEER .
senior notes 518 = (178,744)
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures Fﬂ.ﬁA WNSIEE 206,889 (63,489)
Share of profits and losses of associates JE{R B2 A RIE R 23,371 229,369
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R B A 7 78 7 146,999 6,604,501
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiEe,/ (AX) 10 81,231  (2,637,705)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERE 228,230 3,966,796
Attributable to: AT %75 G -
Owners of the parent SYNCIEZZS PN 116,992 3,605,776
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR HE 2 111,238 361,020
228,230 3,966,796
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BAREBERESFEAA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EhERAEF
THE PARENT
Basic (RMB cents per share) AR (BRARESD) 12 0.09 71.13
Diluted (RMB cents per share) e (BERARES) 12 0.09 70.77
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REEEEER

VYear ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31H L FE
2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARB®TT

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEFE 228,230 3,966,796
Net other comprehensive income that may REBEANESETSES

be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods — 1825~ Hith & E U2 HE5E—

Exchange differences on translation of TINETGIRE 2 IE N =R

foreign operations 1,866,802 289,672
Other comprehensive income that will not REZBEETEENSEE

be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods — 18275 2 Hith & Uz —

Gain on property revaluation Y E W 445,963 -

Income tax effect Fristis & (111,491) -
Net other comprehensive income that will not be REZHHEBTIEEN ES

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods Bmz  Hth2EW S F5E 334,472 -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR FETHWEEEE 2,429,504 4,256,468
Attributable to: AT &7 e

Owners of the parent NaEA A 2,318,266 3,895,448

Non-controlling interests JEIE R M = 111,238 361,020

2,429,504 4,256,468
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBIRRR

31 December 2020 2020512 431H

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AR®BTRT ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB MRS 13 2,548,612 2,802,912
Investment properties "EYE 14 14,627,949 12,864,131
Land held for property development for sale BIEMEREHEER SN T 20 1,401,811 -
Goodwill EE 16 741,202 724,147
Investments in joint ventures A ENFIRE 17 4,478,206 4,471,802
Investments in associates REEE R EIRE 18 5,657,286 4,867,561
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss R QAR Bt ABFH & RS E 19 661,492 -
Deferred tax assets RIET IR E B 33 848,469 907,607
Total non-current assets ERBEELTE 30,965,027 26,638,160
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Land held for property development for sale BIEMEREHEER SN T 20 4,407,408 2,813,172
Properties under development VeSELyES 21 43,399,851 25,054,430
Properties held for sale RIEHERENYE 22 23,739,481 21,220,032
Prepayments for acquisition of land Uy B8 + 30 38 (< 5K 1B 912,000 124,008
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets FEfT - HEMEWHRENEMEE 23 38,020,675 33,744,638
Prepaid corporate income tax TERT IR EEH 819,501 388,019
Prepaid land appreciation tax TEfS L3R AR 1,465,298 885,775
Derivative financial instruments TAESEITA 28 - 55,627
Restricted cash REHIEE 24 2,743,227 1,866,122
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity  #1#4EIR BB =@ A =
of over three months EIR IR EHGF R 24 8,139,087 5,189,418
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEED 24 23,586,502 28,455,729
Total current assets MEEER 147,233,030 119,796,970
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Contract liabilities BRAEE 25 22,825,634 8,658,302
Trade payables B S RN HIA 26 8,850,899 9,783,041
Other payables and accruals H e IE R ERHE A 27 40,413,832 36,090,052
Derivative financial instruments TESmT A 28 67,905 -
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STRRTAEMEER 29 9,233,514 7,612,774
Corporate bonds NAEESR 30 5,000,000 6,000,000
Senior notes BEAERE 31 4,650,232 1,658,842
Corporate income tax payables JERT R EEATISHE 2,029,335 2,819,745
Provision for land appreciation tax + IR T B 32 1,944,232 2,228,566
Total current liabilities B REER 95,015,583 74,851,322
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFH 52,217,447 44,945,648
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES REERRDER 83,182,474 71,583,808
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e RRIER (8

31 December 2020 2020512 31 H

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i ARBTR ARBTT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE

Derivative financial instruments PTEEmT A 28 19,831 -

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FERTAEAEMEE 29 10,851,905 9,598,056

Corporate bonds NGIIEES 30 4,500,000 3,500,000

Senior notes BREE 31 29,664,057 27,298,834

Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEAE 33 3,843,751 2,459,289

Total non-current liabilities ERBBERTE 48,879,544 42,856,179

Net assets BEFH 34,302,930 28,727,629

EQUITY R

Equity attributable to owners of the parent BRATEEAELER

Issued capital BT A 34 489,142 447 146

Senior perpetual securities EAUKEES 37 1,911,986 1,911,986

Reserves 1 36 22,228,346 20,544,015
24,629,474 22,903,147

Non-controlling interests P 9,673,456 5,824,482

Total equity T AR 34,302,930 28,727,629

Lam Lung On Kwok Ying Lan

MER SRR

Director Director

EE EBZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MO EREEIR
Vear ended 31 December 2020 #% 220205712 431 A IEF

Attributable to owners of the parent

ENGEEIN.
Shares held
Share  Statutory  Exchange Share under share Senior Non-
Issued  premium surplus ~ fluctuation option award Capital Revaluation ~ Retained perpetual controlling Total
Notes capital  account reserve reserve reseve  scheme reserve reserve profits  securities Total interests equity
RERS
HE Ej b3 BR

i BRARE RORER BHRE ROEE BREGE FRRG  ASBE  ERER  REWE  AEER3 &5t FEREER BRLE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARNTR ARBTR ARETZ ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR

(note 34) (note 36(i) (note 36(i) (note 37)
(Kir4) (Hak36()) (Ki=E36(i) (W)

At 1 January 2020 202081418 447146 1,464,077 62642 (289,847) 26,615 - (850993 - 19831521 1911,986 22,903,147 5824482 28,727,629
Proft for the year ERHE - - - - - - - - 116992 - 116,992 11,228 228280
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREMZELE:

Exchange differences related to BNEHIRE ESZE

foreign operations - - - 1,866,802 - - - - - - 1,866,802 - 1,866,802

Gain on property revaluation, net of tax NEER 2N (NBHE) - - - - - - - 34m2 - - 34n2 - 3%4n2
Totel comprehensive income for the yeer FERENELE - - - 1,866,802 - - - %42 116992 - 2318266 111,288 2429504
Second Interim 2019 dividend and 0195E-RPERR

special interim dividend BAIR RS - (1,167,017) - - - - - - - - (1,167,017) - (1,167,017
Interim 2020 ciidend 00EPERE - (560,884) - - - - - - - - (560,884) - (560,884
Issue of shares for scrip dividend BOUBRRERA 40659 1,313,843 - - - - - - - - 1354502 - 1354502
Issue of shares in connection with the ATEERERGRG

exercise of share options 1,387 29,225 - - (3.804) - - - - - 26,758 - 26,758
Acqistion of subsiclaries KENSAR 390 - - - - - - - - - - - 1319724 1319724
Acquistion of non-controling interests WEkERER - - - - - - (134331) - - - (134331) (26945 (161,276
Capital contriution from non-controling FERBELE

sharenolders - - - - - - - - - - - 2652357 2,652,357
Retun of capital EXDR - - - - - - - - - - - (2074000 (207,400
Distrbution to holders of senlor AERxERFREANR

perpetual securities - - - - - - - - (11232 - (11232 - (112,324
Equity-settied share option amangements WERSFERE 25 35 - - - - 10815 - - - - - 10815 - 10815
Shares purchased under share award scheme R () B EIE ARG - - - - - (9,458) - - - - (0,458) - (9,458)
At 31 December 2020 20208128318 489,142 1,079,244* 62,642 1,576,955 33,626* (9,458)*  (685,324) 334,472 19,836,189* 1,911,986 24,629474 9673456 34,302,930
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

KRB (8

Year ended 31 December 2020 8 22020512 A31H ILF[E

Attributable to owners of the parent

BLREEEARR
Share  Statutory  Exchange Share Senior Non-
Issued premium surplus fluctuation option Capital~ Retained ~ perpetual controling Total
Notes capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  securities Total interests equity
EE Ex Bl
M BEORE RNEEE ERHEE  RBRE BERERE AxER REBNE KBRS @5 FakEs  EREE
RMB'000  RMB0O0  RMB000  RMB000  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMB'000  RMBOO0 ~ RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000
ARBTL ARETR ARBTRL ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETR
(note 34) (note 36(1) (note 36(i) (note 37)
(M3tae) (iztse) (PitsE36(i)) (Mstar)
At 1 January 2019 20191718 410036 1,771,231 62,642 (579,519) 17945 (444218) 16336488 1911986 19486590 1,943,762 21,430,352
Proft for the year EREAME - - - - - - 3605776 - 3605776 361,020 3,966,796
Other comprehensive income FEEMEZENE:
for the year:
Exchange differences related BNEBIEEL
to foreign operations ERES - - - 280672 - - - - 280672 - 289672
Total comprehensive income FELANELES
for the year - - - 289,672 - - 3605776 - 3895448 361,020 4,256,468
Final 2018 dividend 018FFHHEE - (842,506) - - - - - - (842,5506) - (842,5506)
Interim 2019 dividend and special 0195 R HHEER
interim dividend BARHRE - (636,666) - - - - - - (636,666 - (636,666
Issue of shares for scrip dividend BMBRRERA 35,807 1,146,864 - - - - - - 1,182,761 - 1,182,761
Dividend to non-controling & FHERBRRE
shareholders - - - - - - - - - (294,000  (294,000)
Issue of shares in connection with the ~ BHTEEEREH TR
exercise of share options 1,214 25,154 - - (3,490) - - - 22,878 - 22,878
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR 39(b) - - - - - - - - - 585066 585,666
Acquisition of non-controling interests  MiEE FEFR IR ER - - - - - (106,775 - - (106775 (36225 (143,000)
Capital contribution from FIERRRLE
non-controling shareholders - - - - - - - - - 3348756 3348755
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HHBAR 4 - - - - - - - - - (84496 (84,496)
Distribution to holders of senior AaRfKEESEEA
perpetual securties ik - - - - - - (110743 - (10743) - (110,743)
Eqity-setfled share option INERT RERE ZH
arrangements 35() - - - - 12,160 - - - 12,160 - 12,160
At 31 December 2019 20196127318 47146 1,464,077" 62,642" (289,847 26615" (650,993 19,831,621" 1,911,986 22,903,147  5824,482 28,727,629

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves
of RMB22,228,346,000 (2019: RMB20,544,015,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

*

ZERERLERAVBKRARFEINEGS
1 AR 22 228,346,0007T (20194 : A R #&
20,544,015,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ReREME

Year ended 31 December 2020 & 2202012310 L FE

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AR®TR ARBTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES K& TEHELENRERE
Profit before tax B 50 B B 146,999 6,604,501
Adjustments for: BATIEB B A%
Finance costs — interest expenses B A —F 8 6 124,281 181,601
Finance costs — loss on early redemption of BERA IR ELELER
senior notes 18 - 178,744
Bank interest income HRITHAEHA 5 (540,503) (385,481)
Depreciation e 7 74,021 83,188
Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative PTEEMTARNRE
financial instruments Ea, () 159,514 (61,511)
Realised gain on derivative financial instruments #1744 @ LA D &1 W (10,821) -
Impairment of goodwill EESERIE 16 57,560 189,292
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures JEE& & AFBmE (206,889) 63,489
Share of profits and losses of associates FEAL B &N R B Bl (23,371) (229,369)
Fair value gain on investment properties, net REMERN R BN FE 14 (387,260) (600,546)
Equity-settled share option expense LARR I A R AR i =2 7 10,815 12,160
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B AR E 5 (2,372)  (1,400,044)
Gain on bargain purchase on acquisition of W EEKT B A R 2 B E BB S
a subsidiary 5 (2,292) (255,794)
(600,318) 4,380,230
Increase in properties under development e EIL N (3,018,721) (11,304,659)
Decrease in properties held for sale BIEHERRNYERD 1,006,878 8,076,999
Increase in prepayments for acquisition of land 4 8% £ 3 78 1< FRIHIE 0 (3,856,736)  (3,440,092)
Increase in prepayments, other receivables and  FEA 7k + £ FE Y 700E K
other assets H b & E 0 (1,511,801)  (4,393,161)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities BHEEEM ORD) 5,723,860  (5,563,200)
Increase in trade payables B 5 e FRIEE I 742,183 2,912,335
Increase in other payables and accruals H b A R BT B RGN 1,172,723 10,032,364
Cash (used in)/generated from operations EER) (BTA) /EENRS (341,932 700,816
Interest received EFE 540,503 385,481
Interest paid BAIFIE (5,170,018)  (4,338,458)
PRC corporate income tax paid BB EMSH (721,812)  (1,229,775)
PRC land appreciation tax paid BB L2 ERH (225,889) (1,377,228)
Net cash flows used in operating activities KEREFMACESREFHE (5,919,148)  (5,859,164)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

RERENER (B)

Year ended 31 December 2020 8 22020512 A31H ILF[E

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i ARBTR ARBTT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHELENRERE

Purchases of items of property, BEWE BEMRKEEE

plant and equipment 13 (130,788) (23,988)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE  BERZEMSRIA

property, plant and equipment 7,242 1,873
Additions of investment properties RNEREWMZHE 14 (207,992) (346,944)
Advance to joint ventures G- WNSIE-E (7,664,022)  (8,391,134)
Repayment from/(advance to) associates i ia* ’A AIER (A& QA

&) 3,154,784  (1,988,007)

Investments in joint ventures b‘(‘é.\ % NAEIRE (1,029,270)  (2,399,642)
Return of capital by joint ventures A& REERE R - 3,416,294
Investments in associates REE RRIRE (762,120) (2,052,703
Return of capital by associates /N 1= O =N ET - 809,361
Advance to non-controlling shareholders BESZ3°303 %*"“m}\ (1,117,987) -
Acquisitions of subsidiaries g gn )= 39 1,210,632 (1,651,910
Deemed disposals of subsidiaries BELE M\TJ?E? NG 40 (4,132)  (1,424,845)
Disposals of subsidiaries HE M B R A 41 1,533,126 215,926
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash ZRHIRE (#n),E (877,105) 81,222
Increase in non-pledged time deposits with AYIHABR BB =8 A =~

original maturity of over three months R 1R TE HAME 3R 0 (2,949,669) (5,189,418)
Net cash flows used in investing activities KREFSMARESREFE (8,837,301) (18,943,915)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITES BEZBHELNBESRE
Capital contributions from non-controlling R R T E

shareholders 2,652,357 3,348,755
Acquisition of non-controlling interests AT B8 S 422 P e 2 (161,276) (143,000)
Increase in amounts due to non-controlling JE 15T S 2 PR [ BR R I 3 AN

shareholders 330,389 1,522,678
Return of capital to non-controlling shareholders — FE#% Hil i% 5 2 & 7K & [@ (207,400) -
New bank and other borrowings R IT R EMEER 11,169,620 15,187,751
Repayment of bank and other borrowings Eéiﬁﬁ TR E A S éf (9,506,732)  (9,701,191)
Proceeds from issue of senior notes BITEEZRIETS 8,957,125 21,330,041
Redemption of senior notes ERBARRIE (2,092,358)  (4,181,617)
Premium on early redemption of senior notes REEREBLEELGE - (178,744)
Proceeds from issue of corporate bonds BT RRIEAESHE 3,000,000 3,500,000
Repayment of corporate bonds EEARGES (3,000,000)  (5,000,000)
Proceeds from issuance of shares in connection 47718 B8 I RE 35 1T A 17 P15 70 18

with the exercise of share options 26,758 22,878
Dividends paid BERRE (709,807) (296,411)
Payments for shares purchased under BRI IR 0 ZENET 81 B AR

share award scheme Z FT0R (9,458) -
Distribution to holders of senior A = Ao B ?f%%%*ﬁ_)\ﬁj‘ &

perpetual securities (112,324) (110,743)
Net cash flows from financing activities MEERYEANR S RETFHE 10,336,894 25,300,397
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

REREMNER (B)

Year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F12 431 B It F &

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AR®BTRT ARETT
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRBRESZEEY ORL)

CASH EQUIVALENTS FE (4,419,555) 497,318
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~F#3R & RIR& %fﬁ 1) 28,455,729 27,162,230
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EEREE g BT (449,672) 796,181
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREERAECEEY

AT END OF YEAR 23,686,502 28,455,729
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH AND RERASEBYHEBNIM

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Ba MIRITER 19,954,392 21,276,777
Non-pledged time deposits with original YN EARR R = A H 2

maturity less than three months I F BT 3,632,110 7,178,952
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the RINANGFERERER K

consolidated statement of cash flows and ST AR B B R A

included in the consolidated statement of RehkReEED

financial position 24 23,586,502 28,455,729
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Yuzhou Group Holdings Company Limited (formerly known
as “Yuzhou Properties Company Limited”) (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is located
at 4th Floor, Royal Bank House, 24 Shedden Road, George
Town, Grand Cayman KKY1-1110, Cayman lIslands and its
principal place of business in Hong Kong is located at Units
5801-02, 58/F, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road, Central, Hong
Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in
property development, property investment, property
management and hotel operations in the mainland of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “Mainland China”)
and Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors, Mr. Lam Lung On and Ms.
Kwok Ying Lan, both being directors of the Company, are
considered as the controlling shareholders of the Company.

1.

RIF R RMTEE

31 December 2020 2020512 431 H

NIAREBENR

BMNEEZERER AR (AT [HMbERS
BRARLD (KRR TIIRASES MK
VHEREERAR ERONREBBER SN
BRAB (BB ER LT -AR AR
= 8% == B2 7 734th Floor, Royal Bank House, 24
Shedden Road, George Town, Grand Cayman
KKY1-1110, Cayman lIslands & H E 2 & %
Wik R EE P IR E fF KB P95 IR L58HE
5801-02%F °

FA-ARARENBAR (BEIAKE]) X
ERPEARKMBEALE ([FE]HHEAX
EDRBEBREVERE DERE DEXEHE
PAR B S5 375

EERAR ARREEMELREERBREBLL
WAR BN R AR IR -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

MM EE (8)

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

182 EUNE A FRA T

(Continued)

1. RIREEER (@)

Information about subsidiaries WEAIEN
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RATEEMBAR ZFBOT :
follows:
Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and
registration and paid-up/ Equity interest attributable to the
Company name operations registered capital Company Principal activities
BRTR
HMAL/ ERE BrkE/
RAER TEnnY ZRBRAEE NG £ TEEH
Direct Indirect
E% B
Xiamen Yaozhou Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. * (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB10,800,000 - 100%  Property development
(EFZNFEEREERAR)
ERENEREREERAR (M) HE /R E AR AE%10,800,0007 nEFEE
Xiamen Gangyi Real Estate Marketing Agent Co., Ltd. * (Note) PRC/Mainland China HK$5,000,000 - 100%  Marketing
(EFARRELHARERDR)
EFBAREEEREERAF" (M) WE /R E AR 775,000,000 B
Xiamen Yuzhou Commercial Investment & Management PRC/Mainland China HK$5,000,000 - 100%  Property management
Co., Ltd. * (Note)
(EFBNEEREERERLR)
EFENEEREERARAA" (Fiz) VLN 715,000,0007 NEER
Xiamen Diyuan Bonded Storage and Distribution Co., Ltd. * (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(EFBTRHEEERAR)
ERFTRHEEERAR" (M) WE /R E AR AR 20,000,000 MERE
Xiamen Kim International Realty Development Co., Ltd. * (Note) PRC/Mainland China 1S$113,600,000 - 100%  Property development
(EFeBREREERAR)
EFeRRRERRARL A (M) mE /R AR 113,600,000% T nERE
Xiamen Richville Development Ltd. # (Note) PRC/Mainland China US$55,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(EFESRHEREERAR)
EMEERHEREARAR (M) HE /AR 55,000,000% 7T nEFE
Xiamen Gangyi Real-Estate Co., Ltd. * (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB160,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(EFAREXERAR)
EFBEEEERAA" (M5 WE /R E AR AR 160,000,000 MERE
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

IR IRMIEE (8)

31 December 2020 2020512 31 H

1. RIREEER (@)

WEATER (&)
ARRTEMBARZ HBEWOT: (&)

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and
registration and paid-up/ Equity interest attributable to the
Company name operations registered capital Company Principal activities
BRTR
HMAYL/ ERE BRBE/
RAER Bepns EMBRAEE NG LY £ FTEEH
Direct Indirect
Ef R
Xiamen Fengzhou Real-Estate Co., Ltd. * (Note) PRC/Mainland China HK$18,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(EFENEXERAR)
EFEHEZERDA" (fi5) HE /R E AR 7118,000,0007T nEHRE
Xiamen Yuzhou Grand Future Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China RMB1,500,000,000 - 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd. * (Note)
(EMSMBEEREERAA)
EFEMEERERZERAF" (Fi:) VLN A #1,500,000,00070 nEFRE
Xiamen Skyplaz Realty & Development Co., Ltd. * (Note) PRC/Mainland China US825,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(EFEREHEREERAA)
EFEREMEREERAR () WE /R E AR 25,000,000% 7 nEHE
Hefei Yuzhou Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. * (Note) PRC/Mainland China 1U3890,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(RREBNEHEREERAR)
aEENEHEREBRAF (HE) HEl/ mEIARE 90,000,000% 7T nER%
Xiamen Huagjao City Real Estate Co., Ltd. * (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(EFEBREHEREERAR)
EFZEURnEREBRAA" (M) VAN AR #20,000,0007 nEFRE
Anhui Overseas City Construction & Development PRC/Mainland China 1S$3,000,000 - 100%  Property investment
Co., Ltd. ¥ (Note)
(RHEBHRRERERAF)
THEBNRRRBARDA (W) VN 3,000,000% 7 NERE
Xiamen Yuzhou Group Ltd. © (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB116,064,000 - 100%  Property investment
(EFBNEERAERAR)
EFBNERRAERARS (K) VAN AR 116,064,007 MER
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAREEEN @)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) WEATGER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RRAREEWBRBZFBOT : (&)
follows: (Continued)
Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and
registration and paid-up/ Equity interest attributable to the
Company name operations registered capital Company Principal activities
BRTR
HMAYL/ ERE BRBE/
RAER ReEpns aRBRAEE NG £ TEEH
Direct Indirect
Ef R
Shanghai Kangtai Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. © (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(LERFRUHEREERAA)
LERRRREREARAR® (M) VN AR30,000,0007T nER%
Shanghai Jinyue Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. ® (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(LESBRIHEREERAR)
LEEREREREARAR (M) mE /R AR AR 100,000,0007C nERE
Shanghai Yuzhou Real Estate Investment Co. Ltd. © (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(LEBNEHEREERAR)
HEBMEREREERAR® (M) HE/REAR AR 100,000,00070 nEFRE
Shanghai Yanhai Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. © (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB48,450,000 - 100%  Property development
(DERBRHEREBEERERLA)
FERERHEREEEERAM AR (M) WE /R E AR AR 48,450,000 nEHE
Shanghai Liyade Property Investment Co., Ltd. © (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB42,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(EBFIERREEXERAH)
LERREREEZARAAe (M) mE /R AR AR 42,000,000 ESES
Shanghai Yuzhou Hotel Management Co., Ltd.  (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 - 100%  Hotel management
(LEBMBEERERAR)
LEEMBEERARAT® (M) hE/REKE AR 2,000,000 BEER
Yuzhou Real Estate Service Company Limited @ (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Property management
(BMDEREERRA)
BNNERBERLFC (M) VLN AR 50,000,000 ES:

Yuzhou Group Holdings Company Limited
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Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

IR IRMIEE (8)

31 December 2020 2020512 31 H

1. RIREEER (@)

WEATER (&)
ARRTEMBARZ HBEWOT: (&)

follows: (Continued)

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and
registration and paid-up/ Equity interest attributable to the
Company name operations registered capital Company Principal activities
BRTR
HMAYL/ ERE BRBE/
RAER Bepns aRBRAEE NG LY £ FTEEH
Direct Indirect
Ef R
Xiamen Yuzhou Property Development Co., Ltd. © (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB23,600,000 - 100%  Property development
(EFBNELEREERAR)
EFENRHEREERARC (M) WE /R E AR AR %23,600,0007C nEHE
Fujian Yingfeng Real Estate Investment Co., Ltd. @ (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Property investment
(BRBEHEREARAR)
REREMERERRARC (M) VN AR 50,000,000 nERE
Fujian Wanlong Property Management Co., Ltd. ® (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMBS,000,000 - 100%  Property management
(BRERMEERREERAA)
BEBENEFERREERAT® (M) VLN AK#5,000,0007T NEER
Hefei Ludong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. ® (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB80,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(APEREHEREERETAR)
ERERFHEREERELAR® (FiT) WE /R E AR AR 80,000,007 nERE
Hefei Kangli Realty Co., Ltd. © (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(RETREESARAR)
AETRBEXARAR® (M) HE/ mEARE AR 30,000,007 nERE
Goastal Greenland Development (Fujian) Limited * PRC/Mainland China US$10,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(HERERBEER (BR)ERRA)
HESERERR (BR)BRLA ME/hEKE 10,000,000% 7 EEES
Xiamen Shunzhou Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. * (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB800,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(EFRMELEREERAR)
ERRNEHEREERAF (M) WE/ RE AR AR %800,000,0007 nEHE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. QAIREBER (#®)

(Continued)

WEATZER ()
ARRTEMBARZ HBEWOT: (&)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
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follows: (Continued)

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and
registration and paid-up/ Equity interest attributable to the
Company name operations registered capital Company Principal activities
BRTR
HMAYL/ ERE BRBE/
RAER ReEpns aRBRAEE NG £ TEEH
Direct Indirect
Ef R
Xiamen Yuzhou Seaview Property Development Co., Ltd. ® (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB1,500,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(EFBMERERLERRLR)
EfEMERHEREERA RS () VN ARH1,500,000,0007T ESGES
Shanghai Yuzhou Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. ® (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(EEBNEREREERAR)
TEENEREREERARC (M) mE /R AR AR 100,000,0007C nERE
Shanghai Nankai Realty Development Ltd. ® (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB90,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(LEMAEXERARRAR)
LEEYEEERARDAC (M) VLN AE%90,000,0007 nEFRE
Shanghai Kangyi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. © (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB48,714,300 - 100%  Property development
(DERREHEREERAA)
LERBEREREARARS (M) VN ARB48,714,3007 nER%
Yuzhou Properties (Beiing) Co., Ltd. @ (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(BMEE (ER)ERAA)
BME () BRAT® (F) mE /AR AR 100,000,0007C ESES
Yuzhou Properties (Quanzhou) Co., Ltd. @ (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB150,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(BME (RI)ERAR)
BillsE (RM) BRARC (M) WE/REAR AR %150,000,00070 nEFRE
Xin Yi Fang Tian (Quanzhou) Construction Materials PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Trading of construction
Co., Ltd. ¥ (Note) materials
(MHFX (M) BEMBERDA)
MARR (M) BEMHAR DR () mE /AR AR 10,000,000 BEREMH
Tianjin Yuzhou Jinhai Real Estate Investment Co., Ltd. © (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(REEM2EHEREERAA)
KEEMEEHEREERARC () HE/REAR AR %200,000,00070 nEFRE

Yuzhou Group Holdings Company Limited
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Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
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1. RIREEER (@)

WEATER (&)
ARRTEMBARZ HBEWOT: (&)

follows: (Continued)

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and
registration and paid-up/ Equity interest attributable to the
Company name operations registered capital Company Principal activities
BRTR
HMAYL/ ERE BRBE/
RAER Bepns aRBRAEE NG LY £ FTEEH
Direct Indirect
Ef R
Xiamen Xiang'anwan Baseball and Softball Industrial Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 76.25%  Property development
Co., Ltd. @ (Note)
(EMAREREREERE ERAR)
EFAREREREEZRABRARTC () mE /R E AR AR 10,000,000 nER%
Xiamen Gangyi Communication Co., Ltd. © (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMBS,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(EFEERAERAA)
EFEERAERARe () VAN AK#5,000,0007T NEFRE
Xiamen Junyu Trade Co., Ltd. © (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Trading of construction
(EFEFESERAR) materials
EFEFESERAAC () WE /R E AR AR 50,000,007 BEREMH
Xiamen Xin Cheng Li Da Trading Co., Ltd. © (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100%  Trading of construction
(BEFfERIEEHBRAR) materials
ERERIEESERARC (M) WE /AR AR 20,000,000 EERENH
Longyan Yuzhou Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. © (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(EEBMRHEREERAR)
EeRMEHEREBRARC (M) EVETEN AE#500,000,0007 nEFEE
Anhui Shengtian Property Co., Ltd. ® (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB150,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(RERREXERAR)
RHFREZBERDAC (M) WE /R E AR AR 150,000,000 nERE
Anhui Shenghe Property Co. Ltd. © (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(RHBNELERDA)
LRRNEXARAR® (W) mE /AR AR 10,000,000 ESES
Huainan Yuzhou Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. © (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB16,000,000 - 100%  Property development
CERBNEHEREERAR)
EmBMEHEREBRARC (M) EVETEN AR 16,000,000 nEFEE
Yuzhou Properties (Shanghai) Company Limited ® (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMBG600,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(BMEE(LB)ERAA)
BMES (L) ERRAC (M) WE /R E AR AR 600,000,000 nEHE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. QAIREBER (#®)

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) WEATZER ()
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RRAREEWBRBZFBOT : (&)

follows: (Continued)

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and
registration and paid-up/ Equity interest attributable to the
Company name operations registered capital Company Principal activities
BRTR
HMAYL/ ERE BRBE/
RAER ReEpns aRBRAEE NG £ TEEH
Direct Indirect
Ef R
Fujian Yu Gang Construction Materials Company Limited * (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB18,290,700 - 100%  Trading of construction
(REBERENHBRAR) materials
REBEREMHBRRR (M) WE /R E AR AR 18,200,707 BRREMH
Xiamen Rungang Property Investment Co., Ltd. @ (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB18,348,300 - 100%  Property investment
(EFEBREEEABRAR)
EFBERAEXARARC (M) mE /AR AR 18,348,307 nERE
Xiamen Gangzhou Co., Ltd. * (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB300,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(EFmENE B2 a)
EFTEMERA R () HE/REAE AK300,000,0007T EEES
Xiamen Yuzhou City Co., Ltd. * (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB1,680,0